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SAS GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 1, 2014
SCIX 2014, GRAND SIERRA RESORT, RENO, NV, MCKINLEY ROOM 3:00 PM

I. Call to Order 						Ian R. Lewis
3:17 PM

II. Roll Call						Gloria Story
	Voting Executive Committee Members:
	
	

	Position
	Name
	Attendance
(√ = present, empty = absent)

	President
	Ian R. Lewis (IL)
	√

	President-Elect
	Diane Parry (DP1)
	√

	Past President
	Katherine Bakeev (KB1)
	√

	Treasurer
	Bruce Chase (BC1)
	√

	Secretary
	Gloria Story (GS)
	√

	
	
	5

	Elected Governing Board Delegates:
	
	

	Name
	Attendance
(√ = present, empty = absent)
	

	Richard Crocombe (RC)
	on phone
	

	Rina Dukor (RD)
	√
	

	Nancy Jestel (NJ)
	√
	

	Linda Kidder (LK)
	√
	

	Mary Miller (MM1)
	√
	

	Geoffrey Coleman (GC)
	√
	

	Robert Lascola (RL)
	√
	

	Karla McCain (KM1)
	on phone
	joined during Fellows discussion

	Michael Morris (MM2)
	
	

	Brandye Smith-Goettler (BSG)
	
	

	
	8
	

	Regional/Technical/Student Delegates:
	

	Representing
	Name
	Attendance
(√ = present, empty = absent)

	Delaware Valley
	Karl Booksh (KB2)
	√

	Minnesota
	Fred LaPlant (FL)
	√

	New England
	Edita Botonjic-Sehic (EBS)
	√

	Pittsburgh
	John Jackovitz (JJ)
	√

	United Kingdom
	John Chalmers (JC)
	√

	Chirality
	Larry Nafie (LN)
	√

	Atomic
	Paul Farnsworth (PF)
	

	Coblentz
	Mark Druy (MD)
	√

	CNIRS
	Susan Foulk (SF)
	√

	Indiana Student Section
	Elise Dennis (ED)
	√

	
	
	9

	Second Past President Delegate:
	
	

	Name
	Attendance
(√ = present, empty = absent)
	

	Mary Kate Donais (MKD)
	√
	

	
	1
	

	Non-voting EC members:
	
	

	Position
	Name
	Attendance
(√ = present, empty = absent)

	Membership Coordinator
	Karla McCain (KM1)
	on phone

	Newsletter Editor
	Fred Haibach (FH)
	

	Regional, Technical, and Student Section Affairs Coordinator
	Robert Lascola (RL)
	√

	Web Editor
	Anna Donnell (AD)
	√

	Student Representative
	Chad Atkins (CA)
	√

	Journal Editor-in-Chief
	Michael Blades (MB)
	√

	Journal Editor
	Peter Griffiths (PG)
	√

	Journal Managing Editor
	Kristin MacDonald (KM2)
	√

	Parliamentarian
	John Wasylyk (JW)
	√

	Executive Director
	Bonnie Saylor (BS)
	√

	
	
	

	Total number of voters present:
	23
	



Others present:
Stephanie Iocco (SI), Bill Cunningham (BC2), Alex Scheeline (AS), Kathryn Kalasinsky (KK), John Helgeth (JH), Isao Noda (IN), Curt Marcott (CM), and Jim de Haseth (JDH).  Don Pivonka (DP2) arrives during the RFP presentation.

III. Introductions					Ian Lewis

IV. Meeting Rules of Order 				John Wasylyk
JW advises we are following Robert’s Rules of Order and SAS Bylaws and Constitution.  7 of 10 elected delegates are present – quorum is satisfied.

V. Approval of Minutes from October 1, 2013		Gloria Story (Rob Lascola for Q&A for 2013 minutes)
Governing Board Meeting					
LK moves to approve the minutes; NJ 2nds.  Motion passes 22-0 (BSG, KM1, MM2 absent)

VI. Reports
DP moves to accept all reports; KB 2nds.  Motion passes 22-0 (BSG, KM1, MM2 absent)

J. Regional, Technical, & Student Sections (RTSS)			Rob Lascola




RL presents that he is working on re-invigorating non-active sections.  The minimum requirements to be considered active are holding elections and submitting a final yearly report.  A letter from RL and IL was sent out to all members and posted on the SAS LinkedIn page.  They are recommending declaring Penn York, Rio Grande, and Rocky Mountain inactive.  Piedmont has potential.  Snake River has too few members – recommend it be declared inactive.  They are postponing decisions on technical sections as RL’s focus was on regional sections; however they are recommending declaring Chirality and NMR inactive.  RD comments that she will contact RL about Chirality.  Two student sections have no students; Utah will be active and Clemson and South Carolina have declared interest at this meeting.  Amsterdam is also interested in a student section.  RL is working with AD to update the website content.  After the upcoming survey results are in, he’s thinking of taking on the ACS model where members are assigned to sections and then can choose a technical section.  RL is asking the GB to inactivate Penn York, Rio Grande, Rocky Mountain, and Snake River regional sections and the NMR technical section.  RD asks about India – 3 professors are interested (RL will follow-up with David Heaps).  There is also a possibility of an Austria/PanGermanic section (Bernard Lendl).  NJ asks if we can postpone a decision on the NMR technical section and look at technical sections as a whole.  IL replies that the EC has voted to inactivate, but the GB can override that vote.  KB1 asks if the journal lists NMR as a focus area.  MB replies no, but we get a few papers.
IL moves to inactivate the regional sections noted; KB1 2nds.  Motion passes 21-0, 1 abstain (BSG, KM1, MM2 absent)
IL moves to inactivate the NMR technical section; BC1 2nds.  RL asks NJ to clarify her comments – it is cleaner to handle separately.  FL adds that he is attempting to re-invigorate Low-field NMR – once the section is dead, it will be hard to restart.  RL asks for some names in the area of expertise; the goal is to keep sections.  IL declares he is open to rescind.  FL replies that he will provide the names.  Motion to inactivate NMR technical section is rescinded.
California Affiliate – they need to obtain 501(c)(3) status and have not completed this over the past 3 years of communication with the office.  The topic was discussed with Steve Barnett and a letter was written to declare them inactive.  They will become a chapter of the California Society and then reorganize as a section of SAS.  BS adds that since they were never an affiliate or section of SAS we don’t need to declare them inactive.  They just need to declare themselves a chapter.  Their funds were never in SAS’s care.  IL replies that he understood they wanted SAS to handle their funds.  They have about 30 members, but there have been no reports lately.  BS adds they used to be very faithful.  IL concludes that there will be no recommendation; we will continue to monitor their status.  RL concludes that he will revisit at PittCon 2015. 

VII. National SAS Committee Reports
BC1 moves to accept the reports into the record; LK 2nds.
IL notes the Fellows Committee for 2015 presented their 2015 recommendations to avoid having it only happen an hour before awarding.  Long-range planning has no report at this time.
Motion passes 22-0 (BSG, KM1, MM2 absent)

VIII. Delegate Reports
A. Chemical Heritage Foundation 			Ian Lewis




KB1 asks about our membership benefits – are we on their website?  Should we include them on our website and in the Journal?  LK asks about the cost of membership.  BC1 replies $1000.  IL adds that Dave Trimble attends and sends a report.  We get little benefit.
KB1 moves to accept into the record; JC 2nds.  Motion passes 21-0 (RC abstains as it was hard to hear the discussion over the phone; BSG, KM1, MM2 absent)





B. FACSS						Ian Lewis



                                                                  
RD asks about FACSS funding.  IL replies that at the Finance meeting yesterday there was a recommendation to present at their Thursday GB meeting.  SAS has about $31,000 in FACSS funds presently.  We will use half this year and $15,000 next year to offset costs at SciX (wine and cheese member event, symposia, and poster session).  BC1 adds we must spend it on FACSS activities.  IL adds that the funds are held at no interest so there is no value to hold on to them.
SciX 2018 potential locations are: Atlanta, Raleigh, Cincinnati, Providence, or Palm Springs.  The FACSS GB will vote to empower negotiations.  Presently, meeting location plans are:  2015 – Providence; 2016 – Minneapolis; 2017 – Reno; and 2020 – Reno.  RK recommends a strong section location – Cincinnati.  RL recommends Raleigh and Providence to grow sections in those areas.  AS adds that for a student boost – Cincinnati; for air service – Atlanta; no to Palm Springs.  AD adds there are a lot of airports near Cincinnati.  RD recommends an East Coast location including Cincinnati.
KB1 moves to recommend any of the locations listed but Palm Springs; RD 2nds.  Motion passes 20-1, 1 abstain (BSG, KM1, MM2 absent)

IX. Unfinished Business
A. TPM Report – Marketing the Society			Bill Cunningham




BC2 shares that we have had lots of advertising sales, but some loss on the print side due to the economy downturn.  He’s hoping for increased budgets to change that.  We’ve created a buyers’ guide – Marketplace; we’ve realized $40,000 in digital ad revenue by the end of 2014.  To capture new opportunities, he’s proposing a budget for marketing of $15,000 to expand the Marketplace.  He plans to include some marketing questions in the up-coming SAS membership survey.  There are challenges, but lots of opportunities.  The budget will cover travel to different conferences like Photonics West.  He sees a definite return on investment (ROI) from doing this – to get new advertisers.  LK asks if this was included in the proposed budget.  BC1 replies that it is part of the $15,000 marketing budget.  This money is for anyone doing marketing.  Expenses must be approved by the EC.  NJ asks if there was a risk to the Society monetarily.  BC2 replies that it isn’t expected; there is usually always an ROI.  He earns a commission on his sales.  PG adds that you need to sow the seeds and it may take a year or two to reap the rewards.  RD asks if the $40,000 in digital revenue is in addition to what is in the report.  BC2 replies no; that is included.  RD adds this is still excellent work on Marketplace.
RD moves to accept the report; JJ 2nds.  BC1 adds that Photonics West, like CLEO, wishes they are at PittCon; there isn’t much overlap.  Motion passes 22-0 (BSG, KM1, MM2 absent)

B. Journal Updates/ Publications			Michael Blades




The first four pages of the report is info on the market currently.  The Journal office is working well and the Journal looks good – a hybrid with Open Access (OA) papers.  Our Focal Point articles have been all along.  We have 2 OA papers so far.  Subscriptions numbers are down – the 2nd lowest in 7 years.  Paper submissions are up and continuing.  Our impact factor is the highest in the last 5 years…driven by solicitation of Focal Point articles (1/3 of the citations).  NJ asks if OA articles break the chain.  MB replies that some say to go totally OA, but he doesn’t recommend it – we won’t earn enough and it would be crap.


                                   

From today’s Publications meeting, they appointed an ad hoc committee on alternative publication providers.  We currently use Allen Press for publishing and Ingenta for posting – two entities to deal with is problematic and not giving us good value.  There is no marketing to libraries.  OSA says they market, but not reality.  Ingenta is antiquated – no metrics.  Allen Press can’t keep up with production and there is lots of turnover.  We are looking for a new home with one roof – lots of benefits.
BC1 moves to empower the ad hoc committee, that includes the editorial team, to investigate alternative publishing models and/or publishing partners for Applied Spectroscopy, providing editor approval; GC 2nds.  RD asks about cost savings.  MB replies that savings is likely, but it is getting better service.  We have a very conservative proposal with costs for transitioning legacy content.
[At this point in the meeting, JW (Parliamentarian) needs to leave to present a paper.  Doug Gilman from FACSS steps in.]
NJ asks if a performance clause is included.  MB replies that he is open to that idea.  IL adds we would create these requests in further negotiations.  MB adds we’d move to Highwire – a better situation.  NJ requests to protect us in contract to deliver now and 5 years from now.  KB1 comments that this was worth considering based on experience with Allen Press.  BC2 offers to assist with contract language.  AS adds it isn’t like in the past when we had folks nearby.  KM2 comments about beating on them daily.  DP1 adds that the cost part of this needs to be considered.  BC1 comments that they make more money if subscriptions increase but even without a cost benefit, the services will be tremendous.  Looking at the numbers, we will save.  MB adds that even if the cost is the same; we should still do it.  LK adds with the marketing piece; we should gain.  IL adds there will be savings in work effort for the Journal office too.  PG says that 2015 cost savings is modest; onward can be up to $50,000.  RD asks about timing.  IL replies it is too late for the beginning of the year; maybe February or end of 1st quarter.  Our contract is a 30-day notice.  NJ asks if we can have a document with Allen Press issues and new product on deliverables.
Motion passes 22-0 (BSG, KM1, MM2 absent)
BS adds that documents are public-domain on our newsletter – we must be careful.  We can distribute information to GB only.

IL moves to recess for 10 minutes; BC1 2nds.  Motion passes 22-0 (BSG, KM1, MM2 absent) 4:47 PM

IL calls back to order 5:00 PM; Doug Gilman checks for quorum – still good.

C. Constitution and Bylaws (C&BL)			Diane Parry
The report was submitted after the 30-days requirement so a vote on the report will occur at the next meeting.  DP asks to consult the report chart.




IL confirms there will be no request to approve today, but suggestions are welcome and then we’ll restart the 30-day communication.  NJ asks if there were any issues with operating without having it in C&BL.  IL replies that all our activities were cleared by JW.  RD comments that a correction is needed on reference on voting; it is pointing to the wrong section of the C&BL.  RD would like to create an “E section” for Women in Spectroscopy.  KB1 replies this is a good idea.  We may not need to create an “E section” but include it in the technical sections as a lot of them operate virtually.  IL comments we wanted to consider that as some of the speakers in the session aren’t members – yet.  AD adds having it open is more welcoming, so keep our LinkedIn page as open.  GS adds that our LinkedIn page is for members only – to control content or people drop out.  BS adds we should add a free section for special interest groups like SASsy.  RD concludes we should still consider including a special section in future C&BL edits.

D. Fellows						Ian Lewis



                                                                     
RD shares that she is very honored to be a Fellow, but the Fellow position was created for top scientific efforts – not service.  JDH confirms he was President when Fellows began and RD is correct.  The Distinguished Service Award is not supposed to go to EC members because of that work.  KB1 adds that it is the Fellows Committee that recommended the adjustments.  BC1 comments that for the APS you must be a member; ACS?  KB2 answers yes.  BS confirms –Fellows must maintain membership.  RL adds that the ACS includes service.  IL adds that current proposed language is ok.  DP1 concludes they will line up with the ACS Fellows language as the 3rd option.
[KM1 has joined the call]
BC1 – we should delay until more work is done.  DP1 will adjust the document and put out for 30 days when final version goes out to RTSS.  RD thought it was more like 90 days.  PG is concerned that 30 days is too long – can we shorten it now that we are digital.  NJ adds that connections when traveling can make it tricky to meet that timing.  RD agrees and sections usually meet once a month.  DP1 concludes that the consensus is 30 days.  NJ adds to accept all but Fellows.  DP1 and IL concluded that there is a need for all to have documents.

[JW returns to the meeting and Don Pivonka (DP2) joins as well]

E. Office Proposal/RFP Summary			Mary Kate Donais/Ian Lewis
IL goes over the embedded slides:




BC1 comments that this doesn’t include savings of changing to new publishers.  AS adds that this assumes nothing else changes – linear extrapolation is tricky.  BC1 replies if no change in cost; then linear is a good estimate.  If more members change to on-line, there is less print cost.  JDH asks about those members that paid ahead.  IL and BC1 reply nothing – that is a contract.  JDH added that it looked like a good idea – what are the numbers?  Office cost is ~$100 per member.
LK moves that we move forward with the EC to continue studying the proposals to create a graph of comparisons that is apples to apples.  RL adds to clarify it.  DP1 asks to share her perspective.  Presently, the timing doesn’t match.  We are out of time.  Our rent contract is up at the end of December.  The home office requires a year contract.  We have a plan to get back in the green during 2016 or even sooner if TPM delivers.  At PittCon, we should develop a single vision rather than 3.  RD adds she supports DP1 – she is the next President.  DP1 continues that we have Allen Press changes too and she doesn’t recommend we do both.  We continue our saving plans and move to a home office for the next year and continue evaluations.  MB adds that the earliest Publishing change would be the end of 1st quarter.  NJ asks if there are any temporary spaces that don’t require a contract.  SI answers we are in line to get a non-profit space but with the home office in BS’s basement, there is no rent; no charges.  DP1 adds there is no problem with other options but we still save $20,000.  RD suggests we look at the budget.  IL replies that the budget isn’t hard and will be approved at the end of the meeting.  JDH adds that with 30-day rent space – you can get removed for a longer-term renter.
IL concludes that LK accepts DP1 version of the motion.  DP1 – continue evaluations, work on savings, and move office to BS’s basement for a year.  KB2 calls to question – no more debate on the topic.  
Call passes 22-0, 1 abstain (BSG, MM2 absent)
Motion passes 21-2 (BSG, MM2 absent)

F. Web Savings Proposal				Bonnie Saylor
BS presents her proposal to move from Caktus ($138/hr) to Bixley ($65/hr).  This will save $16,000/year, however there will be no dedicated programmer.  She is requesting to pursue this cost saving with BC1 and AD once the PayPal addition is complete.




RD moves to accept into record; KB1 2nds.  NJ adds that while this is attractive, can we get bids?  BS replies that D’Jango programmers are expensive – Bixley is a middleman and they bid out their work.
IL moves to empower BC1, AD, and BS to move forward for 2015; DP1 2nds.  Motion passes 23-0 (BSG, MM2 absent)

IX. New Business

A. Dues Increase Proposal				Ian Lewis
IL presents the embedded proposal:




BC1 moves to institute the increases as described; RD 2nds.
RD comments that we must do this; we haven’t done this in years.  IL adds it is a managed increase.  AS comments that he sympathizes on possible loss of members, but we can’t afford the Journal subsidy.  SF asks how it is administered - proposals to RTSS committee and presented to EC for approval?  The proposal has no details.  FL asks are there any comparable dues numbers?  MD replies that SPIE electronic dues are $105/year.  DP2 adds that members don’t realize this number difference; a lot would change to digital only now.  IL answers that it will be communicated when notification goes out.  NJ wonders how many members have employer support.  DP1 answers we’ll get some information from the survey.  IL adds that converting to digital will lose some advertising revenue – they like print.  DP2 – so we should stay print because of this?  IL replies yes; minus the subsidy, we make money on print.  When we move to new publishers, we’ll have print on demand.
Motion passes 23-0 (BSG, MM2 absent)

B. Appointment of New Officers				Ian Lewis
IL informs the GB that we need to re-appoint MB as Editor-In-Chief (EIC).
KB1 moves to appoint MB as EIC; NJ 2nds
RD asks if there are any requests from MB.  IL replies no.
Motion passes 23-0 (BSG, MM2 absent)
IL informs the GB that KM1 is stepping down as Membership Chair after SciX.  Ingebord Petterson volunteered to complete her term.
RD moves for IP to complete KM1’s Membership chair term; KB1 2nds.
KB1 asks when the term ends.  IL answers at the end of 2015; we will need to repeat this at SciX 2015.
Motion passes 23-0 (BSG, MM2 absent)






C. Certification Proposal					Bonnie Saylor
BS presents the embedded proposal:




SF asks if a member pays once.  BS answers that a member would pay for 3 years.  MKD asks if we can test drive without web changes to see how it goes.  BS answers that we could skip the front end (the part the member sees on the web); but we would need the back end (database) to store the data.  IL comments that we can include this on the survey to see if it is wanted.  RD adds that it is needed in the consultant field or for job seekers.  It gets us visibility too.  RL comments that members might be less in need of this; if the survey is tepid on the subject – not sure – it might still work.  RD asks if it would have impact in industry.  JW replied yes; there are pros and cons of course, but it would be good after workshops too.  BC1 adds that as far as web effort, income streams have to show up somehow, so it is needed.  LK adds that it would help in marketing; especially to Pharma.  SF adds that for legal work; certification is good.  KB2 comments that the Coblentz Society found this idea to be a negative – how to develop the documentation; creates an insider club.  BS recommends reading some of the certification levels – they are based on the member’s CV.  KB1 remarked that there is no degree for spectroscopy, so adjustments will be needed.  BS agrees and informs the GB that a committee will be created.  IL adds that the Coblentz Society stopped because their proposal was to create a certification test.  The liability made this idea unfeasible.  BS adds that the potential costs of this proposal are not in the budget and estimate it to be around $6000.  If we do nothing; we get nothing.  NJ asks if any other societies do this and what is there reputation.  BS replies that she is not aware of any others – she did follow up with the Ecological Society of America and they highly recommend it.  Their society is larger than ours.  SF comments that she is aware of certified geologists.  BS adds it is a low-level investment.  Low numbers, but no try – no gain.
RD moves to accept this proposal; LK 2nds.  Motion passes 20 – 2; 1 abstain (BSG, MM2 absent)

D. Voting on Budget					Bruce Chase




IL moves to approve the budget report with an amendment for the certification proposal; DP1 2nds.
NJ asks if it will include the dues increase.  BC1 replies no.  LK asks what it doesn’t include.  BC1 replies that it doesn’t include the dues increase, the home office savings, or the certification budget.  There is a budget entry for marketing ($15,000) and Journal work ($20,000).  Travel expenses for the EC and GB used to be $35,000 and will be cut in half next year – he will formalize the budgets formula; GB members still get $200 each.
NJ asks about line item 6400 – member services differential; Marketplace expenses put into this category?  BC1 replies that he’s going to work with Mary Anne to create an approve line for Marketplace.  We did a conservative budget and hope we do better.  KB1 adds that we projected $100,000 (negative), but it might not be as bad.  NJ asks what is “% of investment to cost”?  BC1 replies it is hard to break out.
[IL steps out]
RD - $600,000 in investments?  BC1 replied no; $300,000 in Vangard.
RD moves to approve the budget; JJ 2nds.  Motion passes 21 – 0; 1 abstain (BSG, IL, MM2 absent)

E. Chemical Heritage Foundation			Ian Lewis
[Report embedded in VII. Delegate Reports]
NJ moves to drop the CHF membership; BC1 2nds.
RD disagrees – this provides SAS visibility – especially at PittCon.
[IL returns]
IL comments that we get a logo on their website.  KB1 adds that we have a logo on their (physical) wall.  While it is a good experience to visit, she doesn’t see the value to the Society.  BS adds we should ask Dave Trimble – what are our benefits to remain a member.  KB2 adds that they have the archive of the Society and that’s why we are a member.  RD adds there will be an IYL promotion – instrumentation.  RD offers a friendly amendment to contact Dave Trimble.  NJ refuses the friendly amendment – they do excellent work however.
KB2 calls to question; RL 2nds.  Call passes 23-0 (BSG, MM2 absent)
Motion fails 4-19 (BSG, MM2 absent)
KB1 moves to request a pros and cons presentation by Dave Trimble and how we increase value; RD 2nds.
NJ asks about timing.
KB2 calls to question; DP1 2nds.  Call passes 23-0 (BSG, MM2 absent)
Motion passes 23-0 (BSG, MM2 absent)

F. Strategic Planning					Ian Lewis
IL proposes to move Strategic Planning to PittCon 2015; DP1 accepts the proposal.
NJ asks if we can start virtually – 6 months is a long time.  DP1 answers that she will accept input during the interim but we need team building.

BS asks if the Fellows Report was approved; GS looks back at the notes and replies no.  RD asks if the Teller’s report was approved.  IL replies that the Teller’s report was accepted already.
DP1 moves to approve the Fellows list; NJ 2nds.
RD asks if there will be any changes for 2016.  IL replied – yes.
Motion passes 23-0 (BSG, MM2 absent)

XI. Adjourn
At 7:58 PM, JJ moves to close; JC 2nds. Motion passes 23-0 (BSG, MM2 absent)
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Ian Lewis    SAS  
Katherine Bakeev   SAS  
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Jim Rydzak    Coblentz  
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Amy Bauer    NASLIBS (not voting) 
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Chris Palmer    FACSS Secretary (Voting for Exec Comm) 
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Greg Klunder called the meeting to order at 12:10 PM 
 
Introductions: 
 
Greg Klunder announced that Doug Gilman would be the Parliamentarian for this meeting. 
Greg  Klunder announced that Chris Palmer and Steven Ray would be the two voting members of 
the Executive Committee for this meeting. 
 
Society representatives, Executive Committee and FACSS committee members each introduced 
themselves. 
 
Secretary Palmer took role and announced that 12 of 17 voting society delegates representing 9 of 11 
member societies were present, meeting quorum requirements. 
 
Minutes: 
 
Charles Wilkins moved that the minutes for the 10/2/13 Governing Board meeting be accepted and 
Steven Ray seconded the motion.   
 
The motion to accept the minutes passed unanimously. 
 
Long Range Planning Committee Report-Diane Parry 
 
It was noted that Diane Parry is no longer officially a member of the LRP, but she gave extra service 
at the meetings this week. 
 
A written report (attached) was not yet complete at the time of the meeting.   
 
The Long Range Planning committees are working to revise the equity documents to more 
accurately represent the separate but related missions and goals of FACSS and SciX.  Equity 
document review and revision should become a regular process approximately every five years. 
 
Efforts are needed to build a volunteer base.  It was proposed to establish a database of volunteer 
positions and interested people.  New employment bureau efforts may also help to bring in new 
younger members with interest in volunteering. 
 
A reception may be organized along with future LRP meetings in an effort to increase participation 
and allow discussions in a less formal setting.      
 
Diane Parry has been collecting, organizing and analyzing the metrics for 9 years.  It is time for 
someone else to look at and analyze the data moving forward. 
 
FACSS long range planning discussions focused on what the Federation can be doing outside of 
SciX.  Plans to provide/establish a forum for communication between societies as well as to organize 
additional conferences were discussed. 
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Treasurer’s Report – Mark Druy 
 
A written report was provided (attached). 
 
Audited numbers for 2013 are not yet available but should be available soon. 
From unaudited numbers it appears that the 2013 meeting was about $43k in the black.  After 
approved Governing Board Chair, Society, and marketing expenditures there is about an $11k loss to 
the treasury, which is much less than anticipated.   
 
Finance Committee Report – Mark Druy 
 
A written report was included with the Treasurer’s Report (attached). 
 
Based on unaudited numbers, the recommendation at SciX will most likely be not to distribute the 
approximately $15k in surplus. No decisions on the surplus will be made until after the audit. 
 
Mark has been looking at the money in various bank accounts to see if it might be redistributed to 
earn better interest.  There is $248k in a savings account that earned about $1k in interest.  Mark will 
research whether it is possible to transfer some of these funds to a higher interest investment while 
still keeping enough money in easily accessible reserves to cover losses if a meeting had to be 
cancelled.   
 
Diane Parry moved that the Treasurer’s and Finance Committee reports be accepted into the record.  
Charles Wilkins seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Nominating Committee-Steven Ray 
 
The nominating committee provided a report and CVs for two nominees (attached). 
 
There are two positions to be voted on at this meeting for SciX 2016 General Chair for SciX 2016 
Program Chair. Alexandra Ros has been nominated for Program Chair.  Nominations from the floor 
are welcome. 
 
Mary Kate Donais is nominated for SciX 2016 General Chair 
 
Ian Lewis moved to accept the nomination and elect Mary Kate Donais as SciX 2016 General Chair.  
Katherine Bakeev seconded the motion.   
 
There were no additional nominations from the floor. 
 
Voting was conducted by a show of hands and was unanimous 17 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain. 
 
Charles Wilkins moved to elect Alexandra Ros as SciX 2016 Program Chair.  Ian Lewis seconded 
the motion.   
 
There were no additional nominations from the floor for SciX 2016 Program Chair.  
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Voting was conducted by show of hands and was unanimous, 17 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain. 
 
Past Governing Board Chair Report-Ian Lewis 
 
Ian provided a written report (attached), which was projected for the Board to see. 
 
Ian highlighted several sections of the written report: 
 
h.  The proposed sponsorship with ICORS will cost approximately $2k and will provide publicity for 
the societies and the federation.  Everything needs to be finalized before end of March or this will 
not go forward. 
 
k.  The Executive Committee sought legal advice on how to confirm nonprofit status of member 
societies, particularly international societies not headquartered in the United States.  Council 
recommended that non-profit status could and should be reaffirmed by all member societies on an 
annual basis, and that the 501(C)3 status from the U.S. tax code would no longer be required.  
Changes to the Bylaws and Operations Manual to reflect this approach will be coming. 
 
m.  Member societies can help to advertise and promote the SciX meeting.  Each society should have 
a publicity/news contact that John Wasylyk and Cindi Lilly can work with to facilitate this.    
 
Charles Wilkins moved to accept the report for the record.  The motion was seconded by Diane 
Parry.   
 
The motion to accept the report passed unanimously. 
 
IRDG Representative Karen Faulds left the meeting. 
 
Governing Board Chair Report-Greg Klunder 
 
Greg Klunder presented a written report (attached).  The report had been provided to delegates in 
advance of the meeting. 
 
Charles Wilkins moved that the report be received and Steven Ray seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed unanimously  
 
Budget Committee Report – Doug Gilman 
 
Doug presented a written report (attached)    
 
Review and revision of the 2014 budget resulted in no significant changes.  No changes over the 5% 
threshold requiring a vote were made. 
 
Mark Druy projected and presented a spreadsheet showing the budget  
 
The 2015 budget was constructed by moving the 2013 numbers forward and revising them.  The 
budget was then revised and altered with the goal of breaking even in 2015.  In order to meet that 
goal a 10% increase in registration fees is proposed.  There will be an increases in the costs for 
exhibits, but exhibits will still be a significant net gain for the meeting.  No dramatic increase in 
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attendance is anticipated or budgeted.  The 2015 budget does not include the large contributions 
income ($70k) that was realized in 2013,  but uses a more realistic $40k number that has been more 
typical in recent years.  There is about $40k in additional expenses for 2015 including meeting room 
rental and exhibit hall carpeting costs. 
 
Charles Wilkins moved to accept the budget report and Steven Ray seconded the motion. 
 
Mark and Doug explained that the proposal to break even on the budget rather than have a 5% profit 
was made to help absorb the increased costs. 
 
Igor Kovalenko asked why the contributions income for 2013 was so much larger than typical and 
why it was considered unrealistic for 2015.  The large contributions income in 2013 was primarily 
due to the efforts of Mike George and the location of the meeting convenient to Chicago. 
 
Mike Carrabba asked if the internal complimentary registrations could somehow be separated and 
split out from the funded complimentary registrations for clarity.  The really important number is the 
total number of attendees which, at 1056, was up 10% in Milwaukee. 
 
Diane Parry commented that the 2013 meeting was very successful in that 95% of respondents to the 
survey said that they would recommend the meeting to a friend. 
 
Mike Carrabba suggested that efforts to increase and maintain the level of contributions should be 
continued. 
 
The motion to accept the budget report passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
Yukihiro Ozaki, representing Spectroscopic Society of Japan, left the meeting.  This left the meeting 
below quorum since less than 2/3 of the voting societies were represented.  On the advice of 
Parliamentarian Gilman, the meeting was continued with presentation and discussion of the 
remaining items.  Voting on all remaining items was postponed to be conducted via email after the 
meeting. 
 
Nominations for FACSS Distinguished Service Awards 
 
Ian Lewis presented the nomination of Ed Havlena for the FACSS Distinguished Service Award.  
Supporting documentation was provided to the board 30 days in advance of the meeting. 
Ed was an early secretary of FACSS, he organized /covered the registration process onsite for all the 
FACSS meetings in Detroit until Cindi’s organization took over and then helped when we were last 
in Detroit in 2001, and he was a long-time ANACHEM delegate in the early years of FACSS. 
The nomination has the support of delegates from ANACHEM, SAS, RSC and ISA. 
There were no questions of comments regarding the nomination. 
 
Greg Klunder presented the nomination of Ron Williams for the FACSS Distinguished Service 
Award.  Supporting documentation was provided to the board 30 days in advance of the meeting. 
Ron was active with FACSS for many years especially during very critical transition periods.  Ron 
served in a variety of posts with FACSS: FACSS Workshop Chair, Secretary, Program Chair, 
Program Webmaster, Governing Board Chair Elect, Governing Board Chair, Past Governing Board 
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Chair, and Second Past Governing Board Chair.  He was instrumental in establishing and developing 
a web presence for FACSS. 
The nomination has the support of delegates from RSC, SAS, Coblentz and ISA. 
 
There were no questions of comments regarding the nomination. 
 
Marketing Report 
 
John Wasylyk presented a written report (attached).  
 
Ignite is working on “Search Engine Marketing,” in which key words that will drive traffic to our 
web sites are purchased.   Additional efforts are in progress to continue to allow continual updates of 
the web pages while maintaining a consistent look and format. 
 
Diane Parry noted that a Google search of “easing world poverty” now yields a link to the SciX 
page.  John Wasylyk suggested that this may not be due to current efforts by Ignite since they are 
just getting under way.  
 
Katherine Bakeev asked if there had been any progress working with Advanstar on podcasts.  John 
responded that discussions are ongoing as to how best to handle this in the future. 
  
Exhibits Report 
 
Mike Carrabba gave a powerpoint presentation (attached). 
 
In 2014 there will be free coffee breaks and lunches in the exhibits hall.  The lunch breaks will 
include 10 minute presentations by exhibitors. 
 
Society members can help with exhibits sales by encouraging companies to exhibit at SciX. 
 
As of now $85-86k in booth space has been sold.  Due to reorganization of space and the current 
early bird price, there may be a $6.4k shortfall in exhibits income.  This might not occur with a 
proposed increase in prices after the early bird period.  There are also possibilities to increase space 
and the number of paid exhibits by moving complimentary booths around. 
 
There were no comments or questions from the Board. 
 
2014 General Chair Report 
 
Luisa Profeta gave a powerpoint presentation (attached). 
 
The calendar provided at SciX 2013 in Milwaukee has been popular. 
 
The team made a visit to Reno in mid-January of 2014.  The downstairs area has been completely 
renovated with new paint and more lights.  Non-smoking areas will be set aside each morning, and 
there will be more ventilation to reduce cigarette smoke.  There will be more options for attendees 
including dining outside by the (closed) pool and shuttles to the River Walk Monday through 
Thursday from 11-3 and 6-11. 
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The Wednesday night event will have a wild west saloon theme.  
 
2014 Program Chair Report 
 
Jose Almirall gave a powerpoint presentation (attached). 
 
Keynote lectures have been confirmed. 
 
The program format will be very similar to SciX 2013. 
 
95% of the technical sessions have chairs.  A section chair for chromatography is still needed. 
Fliers for each of the respective areas/sections are available at the FACSS/SciX booth on the Pittcon 
exhibits floor. 
 
A visit to the Art Institute is planned, with the relevance being the use of SERS for 
analysis/characterization of Renoir paintings. 
 
John Chalmers asked if Ziliak’s title had been updated and Jose responded that it had been. 
 
2015 General Chair Report 
 
Edita Botonjic-Sehic gave an oral presentation. 
 
The 2015 conference in Providence will have an “Ocean State”/seafood theme.  There is a possibility 
of teaming up with a local culinary school for a presentation on chemistry of cooking.  
 
The team will have a site visit in May. 
 
There were no questions or discussion from the Board. 
 
2015 Program Chair Report 
 
Glen Jackson gave an oral presentation. 
 
General focus areas for the conference and symposia will be onsite environmental, water and/or 
security analyses. 
 
Glen received several suggestions for potential plenary/keynote speakers, including  Jimmie Oxley 
from the Energetic Materials Research Laboratory at the University of Rhode Island. 
 
Site Selection Committee Report 
 
Gary Brewer (Site Selection chair) was unable to attend this GB meeting and thus Mike Carrabba 
(Site Selection committee member) gave a powerpoint presentation (attached). 
 
The contract for 2016 has been signed with Minneapolis (Nov 2013).  SciX 2017 (& 2020) will be in 
Reno.  2018 and 2019 are open, and the committee is getting an early look at possible 2018 
locations. 
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For 2018 the conference would normally rotate east or northeast.  On the advice of Experient, 
several of the cities under early consideration have been eliminate (those in green in the powerpoint).  
That leaves several cities under consideration (those in black in the powerpoint).  The committee 
will continue to research those sites. 
 
Ian Lewis noted that Baltimore did not receive favorable consideration recently, and he asked what 
had changed since then.  Mike responded that the most appropriate space in Baltimore was not 
available the last time it was considered, but that it may be available for 2018. 
  
International Office Report 
 
Cindi Lilly briefly presented the highlights of a written report (attached). 
There were no questions or comments from the Board. 
 
Old Business 
 
None. 
 
New Business 
 
None. 
 
Next Governing Board Meeting 
 
Greg Klunder announced that the next Governing Board meeting would be held in Reno during the 
SciX meeting on Thursday, October 2 2014. 
 
The meeting was adjourned. 
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Addendum to the Minutes:  Post meeting voting 
 
The following questions as well as the relevant committee reports were sent via email to all 
delegates for consideration and voting on March 19. 2014.  All motions were made by Steven Ray 
and seconded by Chris Palmer.  Delegates were asked to respond with votes by March 31.  Votes 
were received from 20 delegates representing 11 societies and the Executive Committee. 
 
Question 1:  Nomination for FACSS Distinguished Service Award for Edward J. Havlena 
Ian Lewis presented the nomination of Ed Havlena for the FACSS Distinguished Service Award.  
Supporting documentation was provided to the board 30 days in advance of the meeting. 
Ed was an early secretary of FACSS, he organized /covered the registration process onsite for all the 
FACSS meetings in Detroit until Cindi’s organization took over and then helped when we were last 
in Detroit in 2001, and he was a long-time ANACHEM delegate in the early years of FACSS. 
The nomination has the support of delegates from ANACHEM, SAS, RSC and ISA. 
There were no questions of comments regarding the nomination. 
Seconded motion from the EC:  To accept the nomination and approve the presentation of the 
FACSS Distinguished Service Award to Edward J. Havlena. 
 
Vote: 19 yes, 0 no, 1 abstain.  Motion passes. 
 
Question 2:  Nomination for FACSS Distinguished Service Award for Ron Williams 
Greg Klunder presented the nomination of Ron Williams for the FACSS Distinguished Service 
Award.  Supporting documentation was provided to the board 30 days in advance of the meeting. 
Ron was active with FACSS for many years especially during very critical transition periods.  Ron 
served in a variety of posts with FACSS: FACSS Workshop Chair, Secretary, Program Chair, 
Program Webmaster, Governing Board Chair Elect, Governing Board Chair, Past Governing Board 
Chair, and Second Past Governing Board Chair.  He was instrumental in establishing and developing 
a web presence for FACSS. 
The nomination has the support of delegates from RSC, SAS, Coblentz and ISA. 
There were no questions of comments regarding the nomination. 
Seconded motion from the EC:  To accept the nomination and approve the presentation of the 
FACSS Distinguished Service Award to Ron Williams. 
 
Vote: 20 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain.  Motion passes. 
 
Question 3:  Marketing Report 
John Wasylyk presented a written report (attached).  
Ignite is working on “Search Engine Marketing,” in which key words that will drive traffic to our 
web sites are purchased.   Additional efforts are in progress to continue to allow continual updates of 
the web pages while maintaining a consistent look and format. 
Diane Parry noted that a Google search of “easing world poverty” now yields a link to the SciX 
page.  John Wasylek suggested that this may not be due to current efforts by Ignite since they are 
just getting under way.  
Katherine Bakeev asked if there had been any progress working with Advanstar on podcasts.  John 
responded that discussions are ongoing as to how best to handle this in the future. 
Seconded motion from the EC:  To accept the Marketing Report into the record. 
 
Vote: 20 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain.  Motion passes. 
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Question 4:  Exhibits Report 
Mike Carrabba gave a powerpoint presentation (attached). 
In 2014 there will be free coffee breaks and lunches in the exhibits hall.  The lunch breaks will 
include 10 minute presentations by exhibitors. 
Society members can help with exhibits sales by encouraging companies to exhibit at SciX. 
As of now $85-86k in booth space has been sold.  Due to reorganization of space and the current 
early bird price, there may be a $6.4k shortfall in exhibits income.  This might not occur with a 
proposed increase in prices after the early bird period.  There are also possibilities to increase space 
and the number of paid exhibits by moving complimentary booths around. 
There were no comments or questions from the Board. 
 Seconded motion from the EC:  To accept the Exhibits Report into the record. 
 
Vote: 20 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain.  Motion passes. 
 
Question 5:  2014 General Chair Report 
Luisa Profeta gave a powerpoint presentation (attached). 
The calendar provided at SciX 2013 in Milwaukee has been popular. 
The team made a visit to Reno in mid-January of 2014.  The downstairs area has been completely 
renovated with new paint and more lights.  Non-smoking areas will be set aside each morning, and 
there will be more ventilation to reduce cigarette smoke.  There will be more options for attendees 
including dining outside by the (closed) pool and shuttles to the River Walk Monday through 
Thursday from 11-3 and 6-11. 
The Wednesday night event will have a wild west saloon theme.  
Seconded motion from the EC:  To accept the 2014 General Chair Report into the record. 
 
Vote: 20 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain.  Motion passes. 
 
Question 6:  2014 Program Chair Report 
Jose Almirall gave a powerpoint presentation (attached). 
Keynote lectures have been confirmed. 
The program format will be very similar to SciX 2013. 
95% of the technical sessions have chairs.  A section chair for chromatography is still needed. 
Fliers for each of the respective areas/sections are available at the FACSS/SciX booth on the Pittcon 
exhibits floor. 
A visit to the Art Institute is planned, with the relevance being the use of SERS for 
analysis/characterization of Renoir paintings. 
John Chalmers asked if Ziliak’s title had been updated and Jose responded that it had been. 
Seconded motion from the EC:  To accept the 2014 Program Chair Report into the record. 
 
Vote: 20 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain.  Motion passes. 
 
Question 7:  2015 General Chair Report 
Edita Botonjic-Sehic gave an oral presentation. 
The 2015 conference in Providence will have an “Ocean State”/seafood theme.  There is a possibility 
of teaming up with a local culinary school for a presentation on chemistry of cooking.  
The team will have a site visit in May. 
There were no questions or discussion from the Board. 
Seconded motion from the EC:  To accept the 2015 General Chair Report into the record. 
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Vote: 20 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain.  Motion passes. 
 
Question 8:  2015 Program Chair Report 
Glen Jackson gave an oral presentation. 
General focus areas for the conference and symposia will be onsite environmental, water and/or 
security analyses. 
Glen received several suggestions for potential plenary/keynote speakers, including  Jimmie Oxley 
from the Energetic Materials Research Laboratory at the University of Rhode Island. 
Seconded motion from the EC:  To accept the 2015 Program Chair Report into the record. 
 
Vote: 20 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain.  Motion passes. 
 
Question 9:  Site Selection Committee Report 
Mike Carrabba gave a powerpoint presentation (attached). 
The contract for 2016 has been signed with Minneapolis.  SciX 2017 will be in Reno.  2018 and 
2019 are open, and the committee is getting an early look at possible 2018 locations. 
For 2018 the conference would normally rotate east or northeast.  On the advice of Experient, 
several of the cities under early consideration have been eliminate (those in green in the powerpoint).  
That leaves several cities under consideration (those in black in the powerpoint).  The committee 
will continue to research those sites. 
Ian Lewis noted that Baltimore did not receive favorable consideration recently, and he asked what 
had changed since then. 
Mike responded that the most appropriate space in Baltimore was not available the last time it was 
considered, but that it may be available for 2018. 
 Seconded motion from the EC:  To accept the Site Selection Committee Report into the record. 
 
Vote: 20 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain.  Motion passes. 
 
Question 10:  International Office Report 
Cindi Lilly briefly presented the highlights of a written report (attached). 
There were no questions or comments from the Board. 
Seconded motion from the EC:  To accept the International Office Report into the record. 
 
Vote: 20 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain.  Motion passes. 
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Attachments:  Treasurers’ Report, Nominations Report, Past GBC Report, GBC Report, Budget 
Report, DSA Nomination – Havlena, DSA Nomination – Williams, Marketing Report, Exhibits 
Chair Report, 2014 General Chair Report, 2014 Program Chair Report, Site Selection Committee 
Report, International Office Report 
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 Federation of Analytical Chemistry & Spectroscopy Societies 
PO Box 24379, Santa Fe, NM 87502 
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Shipping address:  2019 Galisteo Street, Bldg I, 


Santa Fe, NM 87505 
  


 
 


To: FACSS Governing Board 
From:  Treasurer 


Date: 2/3/14 
Treasurer’s Report to the FACSS Governing Board at Pittcon 2014 


 
a. At the time of writing we don’t have audited financial numbers for 2013.  So 


what I summarize below is from the unaudited Profit and Loss that the 
FACSS / SciX office.  The conference made money in 2013, approximately 
$43,000 vs $10,500 budgeted.  The Marketing and GBC fund spent around 
$36,000 vs the $70,000.  Member organizations spent almost $20,000 of 
their surplus funds (held in the FACSS treasury using our Form Ps).  Thus 
the net treasury loss was $11,000 vs. $59,000 originally approved by the GB.  
Based on these initial results, I will perform the calculation to determine 
whether we are in a surplus condition or not and will advise at the GB 
meeting.  Bear in mind, these calculations will be done on unaudited 
numbers if the audit is not yet complete by the Pittcon GB meeting. 


 
Remember these are unaudited numbers and are subject to change. 


 
b. I have been working with Cindi to classify the budget categories such that 


they adequately reflect the expenses associated with the SciX Conference 
and the FACSS organization.  In fact, we are trying to be consistent with the 
reporting that is done in our audited financial statements that are prepared 
by our accountant.  This will result in a change to the format of the approved 
budget for 2014 and will be presented at the Governing Board Meeting.  
Going forward there will be a line item in the budget for the Member 
organizations expenditure using the Form P’s.  This line item will add a 
projected expenditure based on an average of past years expenses in this 
category.  I believe it will give the GB a better starting financial picture.  For 
2014, I don’t expect that this will cause a 5% deviation from the approved 
budget. 
 


c. In late 2013, I was asked by Ian Lewis to investigate a new investment policy 
for FACSS and report at Pittcon to the GB.  Historically FACSS’s money has 
been held in insured savings account or CD’s.  Given the low rate of return 
on this money, I will present other options. 


 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Mark Druy 
FACSS Treasurer 
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Nominations Committee Report to the FACSS Governing Board  
Pittcon 2014 


 
. 


Steven J. Ray 
Governing Board Chair-Elect 
 
 There are two posts to be considered at the Pittcon Governing Board 
Meeting: 
 


1) General Chair, SciX 2016, Minneapolis, MN.  The Nominating Committee 
has identified one well-qualified candidate: Professor Mary Kate Donais, 
Department of Chemistry�Saint Anselm College.  Mary Kate is well known to 
the FACSS community having served in various programming capacities for 
some time. Mary Kate is also past-president of the SAS. 


2) Program Chair, SciX 2016, Minneapolis, MN.  The Nominating Committee 
has identified one well-qualified candidate: Professor Alexandra Ros, 
Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry, Arizona State University.  
Alexandra has a long record of excellence in research and service, and has 
strong affiliation with the AES. 
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To: FACSS Governing Board 
From:  Former Chairman of the Board 


Date: 2/2/14 
Report to the FACSS Governing Board at Pittcon 2014 


 
. 


Hello FACSS Governing Board, 
 
On this day, Punxutawney 
Phil (the Groundhog) saw 
his shadow and he 
predicts we (here in the 
northern US) are in for 6 
more weeks of winter.  
The Lewis family “brick” – 
formally known as our 
GMC Suburban apparently 
agrees! 
 
I sincerely hope Phil is 
wrong! 
 
 
 
 
 
This report serves as a 
summary of where we 
ended up in 2013 and 
passing the torch on a number of incomplete items to future FACSS/ SciX teams. 
 


a. On the Friday of SciX 2013, I gave a talk on FACSS’ 40th meeting and some 
history. I promised to give out a copy to anyone interested.  I just didn’t get 
around to doing this.  I will get a copy to Cindi by Pittcon to place on the 
extranet if anyone is interested in getting a copy. 
 


b. At time of writing we don’t have audited financial numbers for 2013.  So what 
I summarize below is from the unaudited Profit and Loss that the FACSS / 
SciX office.  The conference made money in 2013, approximately $43,000 vs 
$10,500 budgeted.  The Marketing and GBC fund spent around $36,000 vs 
the $70,000.  Member organizations spent almost $20,000 of their surplus 







               


funds (held in the FACSS treasury using our Form Ps).  Thus the net 
treasury loss was $11,000 vs. $59,000 originally approved by the GB. 


 
Remember these are unaudited numbers and are subject to change. 


 
These results are the direct result of the very hard work that the 2013 team 
put into the meeting.  Fred LaPlant, Mike George, Mike Carrabba, Mark 
Hayes, and Heather Brooke deserve special mention for all of their work to 
make SciX 2013 a success.  


 
c. Based on b. I am also making a recommendation to the Budgeting 


committee / Treasurer.  Historically we haven’t had a line item in the budget 
for the Member organizations expenditure using the Form P’s.  Now we have 
a few years of expenditures I suggest we add a projected expenditure based 
on an average of past years expenses in this category.  I believe it will give 
the GB a better starting financial picture. 
 


d. In late 2013, I asked Mark Druy to investigate a new investment policy for 
FACSS and report at Pittcon to the GB.  Historically FACSS’s money has 
been held in insured savings account or CD’s.  Given the low rate of return 
on this money, I asked Mark to investigate other options. 
 


e. The "FACSS speaker" at the UK IRDG Christmas event was Fred LaPlant.  
Mike George and Fred, provide plugs for both FACSS and the SciX 2014 
meeting in Reno.  We had representatives from the GB from RSC AD and 
IRDG as well as local section organizers from SAS’s UK section. 
 


f. FACSS supported an ambassador and speaker (Chris Palmer) at the RACI 
annual meeting in Australia.  Discussions went well and I believe that RACI 
will move to will apply for membership in FACSS in 2014.  Greg and Chris 
are now following-up on this. 


 
g. FACSS concluded an agreement with ICAVS 8 (International Conference on 


Advanced Vibration Spectroscopy - 2015) to allow FACSS to sponsor a 
speaker at the meeting and obtain recognition for the member organization, 
a booth space, to allow the member organizations to distribute literature at 
the meetings, and access to the ICAVS mailing list.  The commitment is for 
up to $2000 and was based on travel reimbursement post meeting.  The 
meeting is being organized by Professors Bernhard Lendl and Mike George.  
FACSS’s member organizations should consider how they wish to best 
utilize the booth space to publicize their organizations.  I believe it will be in 
all interested organizations interest to send a “booth” package from the 
FACSS /SciX International Office to the conference (as we did for ICORS in 
2012).  ICAVS 8 will be in August 2015 so material should be at FACSS’s 
office by June 2015. 


 
h. FACSS has proposed a sponsorship with ICORS XXIV in Jena for the 


ICORS (International Conference on Raman Spectroscopy) conference in 
August 2014.  The proposed sponsorship of a lecture with promotion 







               


opportunities similar to ICORS in 2012 and ICAVS in 2013 has been pitched.  
The General chair and program chair have acknowledged receipt of the 
proposal and I am awaiting their decision (which should be any day now).  I 
believe, if ICORS agree to the sponsorship, it will be in all interested 
organizations interest to send a “booth” package from the FACSS /SciX 
International Office to the conference (as we did for ICORS in 2012).  ICORS 
will be in August 2014 so material should be at FACSS’s office by June 2014 


 
i. As noted at the last GB meeting, Mark Hayes headed up a discussion with 


ITP about meeting at SciX 2016.  The feedback that we received in 2013 
remained positive and Mark is now working with Greg to finalize a proposal 
in 2014. 


 
j. The FACSS / SciX team is working on the General chair guide and 


Marketing chair guides.  As noted at the last meeting these are necessary as 
the current Operations manual doesn’t cover the transition from Governing 
Board Chair to General Chair for responsibility for SciX or the role of Long 
Range Marketing or the role of the Marketing Chair and Governing Board 
Chair to ensure cross meeting consistency and themes are continued.  We 
made progress in 2013 but this is a task that remains to be completed in 
2014. 
 


k. At SciX, the FACSS EC discussed the issue of non-profit status verification 
for all the member organizations of FACSS.  For our member organizations 
that are US-based, it is easy since we can ask for copies of the 501(c)3 
documentation.  For our international organizations, it isn’t so simple.  
Therefore FACSS sort legal opinion and I anticipate that FACSS will bring 
forth a proposed bylaws change for approval at SciX 2014.  See select 
comment from our counsel’s correspondence: 
 
“You can keep the “nonprofit” requirement in Article II, Section 2, without keeping the 501(c)(3) 
requirement. Doing so would help establish your charitable purpose if challenged someday. A 
“nonprofit corporation” in the US is formed under a state’s nonprofit corporation act and need not 
apply for (c)(3) status. We are not familiar with the laws of Britain and Japan with regard to these 
matters. We suggest having each organization send you a letter annually, or including on any annual 
membership renewal form you may have, a simple statement like: “Member hereby certifies that (a) if 
formed in the US, it is a nonprofit corporation or (b) if not formed in the US, it is an organization 
operated primarily for charitable, educational, scientific or religious purposes.” 


 
l. FACSS’s relationship with Advanstar, Spectroscopy Magazine, LCGC 


continues to bear fruit however the projects we are working on will change in 
2014.  At EAS, Mark Druy, Mark Hayes, John Wasylyk, and myself met with 
Laura Bush and Ed Fantuzzi. Advanstar have been monitoring the web traffic 
to the podcasts and they do not believe the traffic justifies their commercial 
investment of time and people.  They offered to move the program to a txt-
based program which will go on the website and the publication (cutting out 
their video production and editing steps). Advanstar would like to see the 
member organizations promote the series in their publications which would 
have helped encourage advertizers and helped justify their extra expense.  
FACSS could restart a podcast series but it is likely it would require a 







               


financial investment (based on the numbers we heard from Advanstar or 6 to 
12,000 per year). FACSS has agreed to the change to the written interview 
series.  At the EAS meeting Mark Hayes and I have handed-off the 
relationship to John Wasylyk (and Greg in absentia). 
 


m. Back at SciX I asked if each delegate would go back to their member 
organization in October and provide to FACSS a contact who is responsible 
for, or who can provide FACSS your organization’s publicity calendar and 
opportunities available to FACSS for both free and paid advertisements.  
This way we could coordinate providing material about SciX to each member 
organization to appear in your journals, websites, newsletters, member 
communications etc by meeting your member organizations deadlines.  As 
delegates, if you are willing to write up information on activities (technical 
sessions, social activities etc) at SciX, which you feel will be of interest to 
your fellow members, then that will help promote SciX immeasurably.  
 
RSC put out a short piece in Chemistry World (their all member communic-
ation on SciX 2013. 
 
I ask that you check in with John and Cindi to see if FACSS has a current 
publicity / news contact for your organization. 
 


h. The Site team concluded the 2016 agreement as authorized by the GB at 
SciX 2013,  After discussing with Greg and Steve Ray I signed the contracts 
in November and we are heading to Minneapolis in 2016.  I also asked 
Gary(as Site Selection chair) to start working on 2018.  I am sure there will 
be a lot more on the site for SciX 2016 and 2018 work in Gary’s report later 
in the agenda. 


 
I think that covers most of the things. I had hoped to shepard a few more items to 
completion before my term finish but it didn’t work out.    
 
 Finally, I wanted to thank Greg for the opportunity to summarize things from 2013.  
 
Now back to finding 
something to keep me busy 
in my “FACSS” retirement 
here in Michigan! 
 
 
Stay warm and safe. 
 
Ian 
 
 
Ian R. Lewis 
FACSS,  
Past Governing Board 
Chairperson. 
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Governing Board Chair report – PittCon 2014 
 
First off, I’d like to thank Ian Lewis for his outstanding service and leadership as the 
Governing Board Chair for the past 2 years.   He has been extremely helpful in mentoring 
me as I start my tenure as the GBC and set the bar at the high level that I hope to maintain.   
 
This report is presented to briefly summarize the recent activities of the FACSS and SciX 
teams. 
 
2014 Meeting Site Visit.  The 2014 team held its second site visit to Reno in January.  The 
Grand Sierra Resort has undergoing a lot of changes and has brighter guest rooms and 
hallways.  The meeting layout will be the same as in 2011. Workshops will continue in a 
similar format to last year where we experienced an increase in the classroom attendance.  
The Grand Sierra Resort staff is very accommodating, a pleasure to work with and has gone 
to great lengths to meet our needs.  Indeed, they will also be offering a Student Scholarship 
based on the number of room nights filled.  As a team, we accomplished a lot in planning 
the meeting and further details will be addressed in individual reports.   
 
Marketing Chair.  Many thanks to Mark Hayes for his efforts as Marketing Chair the past 3 
years and leading us into a new era.  John Wasylyk has enthusiastically taken over and will 
continue to lead this effort.  He has jumped in with both feet and is actively working with 
Cindi, Ignite and the rest of the 2014 SciX team.  John is leading a Search Engine Marketing 
(SEM) campaign with Ignite to drive new visitors to the website and hopefully new 
attendees to the meeting. 
 
2015 Meeting.  The 2015 team with Edita Botonjic-Sehic (General Chair), Glen Jackson 
(Program Chair), Mike Carrabba, John Wasylyk and Cindi Lilly are gearing up.  Glen is 
actively working with Jose as the Awards Chair and Edita will be helping with the mobile 
app.   
 
Steve Ray setup a FACSS/SciX booth at the Winter Plasma Conference at Amelia Island, 
FL in January.  This is an international meeting focused on atomic spectroscopy.  
 
Doug Gilman has agreed to be the Chair for the Long Range Planning committee.  Other 
members of the committee include myself as GBC, Steve Ray as GBC-Elect, Matthieu 
Baudelet, and Jean-Francois Masson.  The LRP meetings are open and we encourage 
representation from all of the member organizations. 
 
Mark Hayes is continuing his discussion to have ITP collocate with SciX in Minnesota in 
2016.  In addition, he is continuing his outreach to the separation community and is 
interacting with a new meeting on Dielectrophoresis, which will meet for the first time in 







               


July.  This can provide another opportunity for FACSS/SciX to gain the attention of 
international leaders in this field.  FACSS will provide some support for their meeting and 
hopefully recruit them to attend SciX and potentially collocate in the future.   
 
Chris Palmer visited Australia where he attended both an HPLC meeting and Royal 
Australian Chemical Institute (RACI) R&D Topics conference. During his visit, e presented 
information about FACSS/SciX to the board of the RACI Analytical Division.  They voted 
to pursue membership as a FACSS organization and tasked the executive committee with 
putting together the application.  I expect we may see an application from them at the SciX 
meeting in Reno.  Thanks to Chris for his efforts. 
 
Distinguished Service Awards are given to an individual who has demonstrated exceptional, 
long-term service to the FACSS organization. Typically, that person will have served with 
excellence in many different capacities and will have contributed to the continuing success 
of FACSS through consistent dedication and sacrifice.  This year, two individuals have been 
nominated for consideration of this award.  First is Ron Williams who served in a number of 
different roles from 1990-2005, including Workshops Chair, Secretary, Program Chair, 
Webmaster, and Governing Board Chair.  Second is Ed Havlena who played an integral role 
in bringing the ANACHEM meeting into FACSS and was one of the early leaders that 
worked tireless in order for FACSS/SciX to be around today.  Both nominees have the 
required support of four member organizations and more information is provided in the 
attached documents. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
Greg Klunder  
Governing Board Chair 2014-2015 
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Budget Committee Report – PittCon 2014 
(Doug Gilman – filling in for Ian Lewis, Budget Committee Chair) 


 
2014 Budget (Reno):  The 2014 FACSS/SCIX budget was discussed briefly during the 
planning meetings for SCIX 2014 on Sunday. No significant changes were made to the 
budget (none > 5%) that would require a Governing Board vote on the budget approved at 
PittCon 2013. That budget is available on the FACSS Extranet. 
 
2015 Budget (Providence):  The proposed 2015 FACSS/SCIX budget was prepared for 
consideration by the Governing Board at PittCon. The budget was drafted during the 2015 
SCIX planning meetings on Tuesday. Following standard FACSS/SCIX practices, the 
starting point for this budget was 2013 actual numbers (unaudited) with adjustments as 
needed due to specific related to the 2014 meeting location and normal evolution of the 
SCIX conference. The proposed budget essentially breaks even. It includes a 10% increase 
in registration fees (slightly less for students). The registration fees last increased about 5% 
from 2011 (Reno) to 2012 (Kansas City). The Northeast location (Providence) includes an 
expected increase in costs for Exhibits although Exhibits remain a critical net income source 
even with increased costs. 
  
Respectfully submitted, 


Doug Gilman 







 
 
 
 
 
January 12, 2014 
 
FACSS Governing Board 
Greg Klunder, Governing Board Chair 
 
Dear Fellow Members of the FACSS Governing Board, 
 
On behalf of ANACHEM, it is my honor to nominate Ed Havlena for a FACSS Distinguished 
Service Award.  His name may not be familiar to you.  However, Ed was an important 
contributor to the founding of FACSS.  Along with Detroit colleague, Dr. Ira James Holcomb, 
Ed persuaded the members of ANACHEM to discontinue their successful three-day symposium 
and join forces with other founding organizations to create FACSS.  Ed’s diverse efforts, which 
included effective negotiation, promotion, and tireless encouragement, helped to insure the 
success of the FACSS Symposium during the first critical years of its existence.  For more than 
40 years Ed has served on the executive committees of ANACHEM and the Detroit Section of 
ACS.  He has been a constant advocate for FACSS on those committees.  By honoring Ed with 
the Distinguished Service Award, we remember one of the dedicated leaders who laid the 
foundation for what has become SCIX, an international scientific conference of enduring value. 
Thank you for considering Ed Havlena for the award. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Keith Olson, ANACHEM President 
ANACHEM Delegate to FACSS 







From: Ian Lewis [mailto:irlewis@kosi.com]  


Sent: Monday, February 03, 2014 6:26 AM 
To: 'Cindi Lilly'; 'Greg Klunder' 


Subject: FW: Nomination for FACSS DSA for Ed Havlena 
Importance: High 


 
Hi Cindi and Greg, 
 
Please find a letter for nomination for Ed Havlena for a FACSS DSA award.  The letter is authored by 
Keith Olson from Anachem.  I have added some officer / delegate examples where Ed’s positions or 
responsibilities are listed in my email below. 
 
Anachem (Keith), SAS (Ian), Coblentz (Jim Rydzak), RSC Ad (John C.), and Gary Brewer (ISA) have 
indicated support that this nomination be considered at the GB meeting at Pittcon. 
 
Please let me know if you need this in a different format etc. 
 
Ian 
 
From: Ian Lewis [mailto:irlewis@kosi.com]  
Sent: Friday, January 31, 2014 2:08 PM 


To: 'Gary Brewer'; Jim Rydzak (James.W.Rydzak@gsk.com); John M Chalmers 
(JohnMChalmers@aol.com) 


Subject: Nomination for FACSS DSA for Ed Havlena 


Importance: High 


 
Gents, 
 
Will you support this nomination?  I haven’t had a chance to write anything additional yes but basically 
 


a. Ed was an early secretary of FACSS 


 
 


b.  He organized /covered the registration process onsite for all the FACSS meetings in Detroit until 
Cindi’s organization took over and then helped when we were last in Detroit in 2001. 


 



mailto:irlewis@kosi.com

mailto:James.W.Rydzak@gsk.com

mailto:JohnMChalmers@aol.com





 
 


c. Long time Anachem delegate in the early years 


 
 
Ed is 90 and wouldn’t come to SciX to receive the award even if awarded.  This would need to be a local 
presentation.  I included some info from past FACSS programs as examples of positions held. 
 
DSA nominations need to be in by end of business Monday.  Sorry to have to ask for a rush.  I support 
from SAS and Keith from Anachem, we need 2 more to support the application for consideration by the 
GB at Pittcon.  
 
Ian 
 
From: Gary Brewer [mailto:gary.brewer@us.abb.com]  


Sent: Friday, January 31, 2014 2:19 PM 
To: Ian Lewis 


Cc: Jim Rydzak; John M Chalmers 


Subject: Re: Nomination for FACSS DSA for Ed Havlena 


 



mailto:gary.brewer@us.abb.com





Hello Ian,  
 
On behalf of ISA we support the nomination.  
 
Best Regards,  
 
Gary  
 
Gary Brewer 
Product Manager 
Phone:  304-647-1792 
Cell:  304-210-1149 
Email:  gary.brewer@us.abb.com  
 


From: James Rydzak [mailto:James.W.Rydzak@gsk.com]  


Sent: Monday, February 03, 2014 9:15 AM 
To: Ian Lewis; 'Gary Brewer' 


Cc: 'John M Chalmers' 
Subject: RE: Nomination for FACSS DSA for Ed Havlena 


 
Hi Ian 
 
I will support it.  It must have been tough without a FACSS office! 
 
 


 


Regards 


Jim 
 


James Rydzak 
S Sr Scientific Investigator 
AS - Spectroscopy - US PAT 
RD Platform Technology & Science 
 
GlaxoSmithKline 
709 Swedeland Rd 
King of Prussia PA 19406 
Email   James.W.Rydzak@gsk.com 
Mobile  +732 616 9534 
Tel       +1 610 270 5242 
 
gsk.com  |  Twitter  |  YouTube  |  Facebook  |  Flickr 
 


 


 
 
 



mailto:gary.brewer@us.abb.com

mailto:James.W.Rydzak@gsk.com

mailto:James.W.Rydzak@gsk.com

http://www.gsk.com/

http://twitter.com/GSK

http://www.youtube.com/user/gskvision

http://www.facebook.com/glaxosmithkline

http://www.flickr.com/photos/glaxosmithkline





From: JohnMChalmers@aol.com [mailto:JohnMChalmers@aol.com]  


Sent: Monday, February 03, 2014 9:19 AM 
To: irlewis@kosi.com; gary.brewer@us.abb.com 


Cc: James.W.Rydzak@gsk.com 
Subject: Re: Nomination for FACSS DSA for Ed Havlena 


 
If its me you want, then I am on board; count my vote as a "yes". 
J. 
  


 



mailto:JohnMChalmers@aol.com

mailto:JohnMChalmers@aol.com

mailto:irlewis@kosi.com

mailto:gary.brewer@us.abb.com

mailto:James.W.Rydzak@gsk.com





	
  


October	
  21,	
  2013	
  
	
  
FACSS	
  Governing	
  Board	
  
2019	
  Galisteo	
  Street,	
  Building	
  I	
  
Santa	
  Fe,	
  NM	
  87505	
  
 
Dear	
  FACSS	
  Governing	
  Board,	
  


Re:	
  Nomination	
  of	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  for	
  FACSS	
  Distinguished	
  Service	
  Award	
  


The	
  undersigned	
  would	
  like	
  to	
  nominate	
  Dr.	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  for	
  the	
  FACSS	
  2014	
  Distinguished	
  
Service	
  Award.	
  	
  Ron	
  was	
  active	
  with	
  FACSS	
  for	
  many	
  years	
  especially	
  during	
  very	
  critical	
  
transition	
  periods	
  where	
  his	
  leadership	
  was	
  especially	
  valuable.	
  	
  Ron	
  served	
  in	
  a	
  variety	
  of	
  posts	
  
with	
  FACSS.	
  These	
  are	
  itemized	
  below:	
  


1990-­‐1992	
  –	
  FACSS	
  Workshop	
  Chair	
  


1993-­‐1997	
  –	
  Secretary	
  


1999	
  -­‐	
  Program	
  Chair	
  for	
  the	
  1999	
  FACSS	
  Conference	
  in	
  Vancouver	
  


2001	
  –	
  FACSS	
  Program	
  Webmaster	
  


2002	
  –	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair	
  Elect	
  


2003	
  –	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair	
  


2004	
  –	
  Past	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair	
  


2005	
  –	
  Second	
  Past	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair	
  


	
  


These	
  positions	
  are	
  a	
  matter	
  of	
  record	
  and	
  can	
  readily	
  be	
  found	
  by	
  searching	
  the	
  FACSS	
  
website.	
  	
  What	
  is	
  lesser	
  known	
  within	
  the	
  FACSS	
  organization	
  was	
  the	
  crucial	
  role	
  he	
  played	
  in	
  
the	
  development	
  of	
  the	
  FACSS	
  web	
  presence	
  including	
  on-­‐line	
  abstract	
  submission	
  for	
  the	
  
annual	
  meeting.	
  	
  	
  


In	
  November	
  1995,	
  at	
  Ron’s	
  insistence,	
  FACSS.org	
  was	
  registered	
  
(http://whois.domaintools.com/facss.org)	
  	
  well	
  before	
  the	
  ultimate	
  importance	
  of	
  owning	
  such	
  
URL’s	
  was	
  widely	
  understood	
  or	
  appreciated.	
  	
  For	
  the	
  1997,	
  1998,	
  1999,	
  2000,	
  and	
  2001	
  
meetings	
  Ron	
  wrote	
  software	
  (in	
  Perl	
  script)	
  and	
  maintained	
  a	
  website	
  designed	
  to	
  accept	
  
FACSS	
  abstracts	
  on-­‐line	
  and	
  to	
  make	
  the	
  data	
  available	
  to	
  the	
  Program	
  Chair	
  to	
  assist	
  in	
  
program	
  planning	
  and	
  symposium	
  organization.	
  	
  It	
  was	
  only	
  in	
  2001	
  that	
  this	
  service	
  was	
  
acknowledged	
  in	
  the	
  FACSS	
  Program	
  (see	
  above).	
  	
  In	
  1999-­‐2000	
  he	
  was	
  a	
  member	
  of	
  an	
  ad-­‐hoc	
  







	
  


committee	
  (Chaired	
  by	
  Bob	
  Michel)	
  that	
  oversaw	
  the	
  first	
  professional	
  FACSS	
  website	
  which	
  
was	
  implemented	
  for	
  the	
  2002	
  conference	
  (by	
  Newfangled)	
  in	
  Providence	
  for	
  abstract	
  
submission.	
  	
  This	
  new	
  website	
  became	
  the	
  template	
  for	
  subsequent	
  FACSS	
  websites.	
  	
  In	
  2004,	
  
in	
  his	
  role	
  as	
  past	
  GB	
  chair	
  he	
  was	
  instrumental	
  is	
  setting	
  up	
  the	
  “The	
  Retreat”	
  in	
  Portland	
  that,	
  
many	
  believe,	
  was	
  vital	
  in	
  ensuring	
  a	
  cooperative	
  relationship	
  between	
  the	
  existing	
  member	
  
societies	
  moving	
  forward.	
  	
  He	
  was	
  also	
  a	
  strong	
  promoter	
  of,	
  and	
  was	
  actively	
  engaged	
  in	
  
developing	
  the	
  “new”	
  template	
  for	
  poster/oral	
  presentations	
  that	
  debuted	
  at	
  the	
  2004	
  Portland	
  
meeting.	
  	
  Both	
  of	
  these	
  were	
  pivotal	
  developments	
  for	
  FACSS	
  and,	
  subsequently,	
  SCIX.	
  	
  


Dr.	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  is	
  currently	
  the	
  Dean	
  of	
  the	
  School	
  of	
  Arts	
  and	
  Sciences	
  and	
  before	
  that	
  was	
  
the	
  Dean	
  of	
  the	
  College	
  of	
  Science	
  Engineering	
  and	
  Technology	
  at	
  Saginaw	
  Valley	
  State	
  
University.	
  	
  Williams	
  has	
  taught	
  chemistry	
  and	
  carried	
  out	
  research	
  at	
  Armstrong-­‐Atlantic	
  State	
  
University	
  in	
  Savannah,	
  Clemson	
  University	
  and	
  Ohio	
  University.	
  	
  Williams	
  holds	
  a	
  Ph.D.	
  in	
  
analytical	
  chemistry	
  from	
  the	
  University	
  of	
  Georgia.	
  	
  He	
  will	
  play	
  “Stormy	
  Monday”	
  on	
  his	
  guitar	
  
if	
  you	
  ask	
  him	
  to.	
  
	
  


Considering	
  the	
  pivotal	
  roles	
  that	
  Ron	
  has	
  filled	
  with	
  FACSS	
  we	
  feel	
  that	
  recognizing	
  these	
  
contributions	
  is	
  highly	
  overdue.	
  


	
  	
  	
  


	
  


	
  


Michael	
  Blades	
   	
   	
   	
   	
   Date:	
  	
  October	
  21,2013	
  


	
  


	
  


Greg	
  Klunder	
  	
   	
   	
   	
   	
   	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  Date:	
  	
  October	
  14,	
  2013	
  


	
  


	
  







	
  


	
  


	
  







	
  


For	
  this	
  nomination	
  to	
  go	
  to	
  the	
  Governing	
  Board	
  for	
  voting	
  it	
  requires	
  the	
  supporting	
  
signatures	
  of	
  4	
  delegates	
  from	
  4	
  different	
  societies.	
  	
  The	
  following	
  delegates	
  have	
  provided	
  e-­‐
mail	
  support	
  for	
  the	
  nomination.	
  	
  These	
  are	
  attached	
  to	
  this	
  letter	
  


	
  


Society:	
  ISA	
  Analysis	
  Division	
   	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   	
   	
   Society:	
  Coblentz	
  Society	
  	
   	
  


Delegate:	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  Gary	
  Brewer	
   	
   	
   	
   Delegate:	
  	
  Jim	
  Rydzak	
  


Date:	
   October	
  17,	
  2013	
   	
   	
   	
   Date:	
  	
  October	
  17,	
  2013	
  


	
  


Society:	
  	
  RSC	
  AD	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   	
   	
   	
   Society:	
  	
  SAS	
  	
  	
   	
  


Delegate:	
  	
  John	
  Chalmers	
   	
   	
   	
   Delegate:	
  Katherine	
  Bakeev	
   	
  


Date:	
   October	
  18,	
  2013	
   	
   	
   	
   Date:	
  	
  October	
  19,	
  2013	
  


	
  


	
  


	
  


	
  


 







Hello Michael, 


Yes, I definitely support it for ISA.  Ian and I disucssed this and I was planning on doing the leg work on getting the necessary  signatures for the societies for
his award.   


I will be very glad to do that and have the forms ready to go - all I was waiting on was the letter.  Let me know if you still want me to do that or if you and Greg
are going directly to the delegates. 


Thanks, 


Gary 


Gary Brewer
Product Manager
Phone:  304-647-1792
Cell:  304-210-1149
Email:  gary.brewer@us.abb.com 


From:        Michael Blades <blades@chem.ubc.ca> 
To:        Gary Brewer/USPAD/ABB@ABB, 
Date:        10/16/2013 07:21 PM 
Subject:        DSA 2014 


Hello Gary; 


Greg Klunder and I are nominating Ron Williams for a FACSS Distinguished	
  Service	
  Award	
  for	
  2014.	
  	
  The	
  draft	
  text	
  for	
  the	
  nomination	
  is	
  below.	
  	
  I
will	
  tweak	
  it	
  a	
  little	
  more	
  before	
  submission.	
  	
   


For	
  this	
  nomination	
  to	
  go	
  to	
  the	
  Governing	
  Board	
  for	
  voting	
  it	
  requires	
  the	
  supporting	
  signatures	
  of	
  4	
  delegates	
  from	
  4	
  different	
  societies.	
  


I	
  am	
  writing	
  to	
  ask	
  if	
  you	
  would	
  be	
  willing	
  to	
  support	
  this	
  nomination. 


Regards; 


Michael 


~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~


We	
  would	
  like	
  to	
  nominate	
  Dr.	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  for	
  the	
  FACSS	
  2014	
  Distinguished	
  Service	
  Award.	
  	
  Ron	
  was	
  active	
  with	
  FACSS	
  for	
  many	
  years	
  especially	
  during	
  very	
  critical
transition	
  periods	
  where	
  his	
  leadership	
  was	
  especially	
  valuable.	
  	
  Ron	
  served	
  in	
  a	
  variety	
  of	
  posts	
  with	
  FACSS.	
  These	
  are	
  itemized	
  below:


1990-­‐1992	
  –	
  FACSS	
  Workshop	
  Chair


1993-­‐1997	
  –	
  Secretary


1999	
  -­‐	
  Program	
  Chair	
  for	
  the	
  1999	
  FACSS	
  Conference	
  in	
  Vancouver


2001	
  –	
  FACSS	
  Program	
  Webmaster


2002	
  –	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair	
  Elect
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2003	
  –	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair


These	
  posts	
  are	
  a	
  matter	
  of	
  record	
  and	
  can	
  be	
  found	
  by	
  searching	
  the	
  FACSS	
  website.	
  	
  What	
  is	
  lesser	
  known	
  within	
  the	
  FACSS	
  organization	
  was	
  the	
  crucial	
  role	
  he	
  played	
  in
the	
  development	
  of	
  the	
  FACSS	
  web	
  presence.	
  	
  At	
  Ron’s	
  insistence,	
  FACSS.org	
  was	
  registered	
  in	
  November	
  1995	
  well	
  before	
  the	
  ultimate	
  importance	
  of	
  owning	
  such	
  URL’s
was	
  widely	
  understood	
  or	
  appreciated.	
  	
  For	
  the	
  1997,	
  1998,	
  1999	
  meeting	
  Ron	
  wrote	
  software	
  (in	
  Perl	
  Script)	
  and	
  maintained	
  a	
  website	
  designed	
  to	
  accept	
  abstracts	
  on-­‐
line	
  and	
  to	
  make	
  the	
  data	
  available	
  to	
  the	
  Program	
  Chair	
  to	
  assist	
  in	
  program	
  planning.	
  	
  In	
  1999	
  he	
  was	
  a	
  member	
  of	
  an	
  ad-­‐hoc	
  committee	
  that	
  oversaw	
  the	
  first
professional	
  FACSS	
  website	
  which	
  was	
  implemented	
  for	
  the	
  2000	
  conference	
  and	
  was	
  the	
  template	
  for	
  all	
  subsequent	
  FACSS	
  websites.	
  	
  In	
  2004,	
  in	
  his	
  role	
  as	
  past	
  GB	
  chair
he	
  was	
  instrumental	
  is	
  setting	
  up	
  the	
  “retreat”	
  in	
  Portland	
  that	
  many	
  believe	
  was	
  vital	
  in	
  ensuring	
  a	
  cooperative	
  relationship	
  between	
  the	
  existing	
  member	
  societies
moving	
  forward.	
  	
  He	
  was	
  also	
  a	
  strong	
  promoter	
  of,	
  and	
  was	
  actively	
  engaged	
  in	
  developing	
  the	
  “new”	
  template	
  for	
  poster/oral	
  presentations	
  –	
  both	
  pivotal	
  developments
for	
  FACSS	
  and,	
  subsequently,	
  SCIX. 


Dr.	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  is	
  currently	
  the	
  Dean	
  of	
  the	
  School	
  of	
  Arts	
  and	
  Sci​ences	
  and	
  before	
  that	
  was	
  the	
  Dean	
  of	
  the	
  College	
  of	
  Science	
  Engineering	
  and	
  Technol​ogy	
  at	
  Saginaw
Valley	
  State	
  University.	
  	
  Williams	
  has	
  taught	
  chemistry	
  and	
  carried	
  out	
  research	
  at	
  Armstrong-­‐Atlantic	
  State	
  University	
  in	
  Savannah	
  and	
  at	
  Clemson	
  University	
  and	
  Ohio
University.	
  	
  Williams	
  holds	
  a	
  Ph.D.	
  in	
  analytical	
  chemistry	
  from	
  the	
  University	
  of	
  Georgia.	
  	
  He	
  will	
  play	
  “Stormy	
  Monday”	
  on	
  his	
  guitar	
  if	
  you	
  ask	
  him	
  to.


	
  


Considering	
  the	
  pivotal	
  roles	
  that	
  Ron	
  has	
  filled	
  with	
  FACSS	
  we	
  feel	
  that	
  recognizing	
  these	
  contributions	
  is	
  highly	
  overdue.     


Michael Blades, Professor and Canada Foundation for Innovation Coordinator
Department of Chemistry
The University of British Columbia
2036 Main Mall | Vancouver, BC  Canada V6T 1Z1 
Phone 604 822 4468
blades@chem.ubc.ca
http://www.chem.ubc.ca 
 
Editor-in-Chief - Applied Spectroscopy
http://s-a-s.org/journal/
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Hi Michael,
 
Certainly "yes"; more than happy to.
 
Best wishes,
John.
 
In a message dated 18/10/2013 19:37:21 GMT Summer Time, blades@chem.ubc.ca writes:


Hello John;


Greg Klunder and I are nominating Ron Williams for a FACSS Distinguished	
  Service	
  Award	
  for	
  2014.	
  	
  The	
  draft	
  text	
  for	
  the
nomination	
  is	
  below.	
  	
  I	
  will	
  tweak	
  it	
  a	
  little	
  more	
  before	
  submission.	
  	
  


For	
  this	
  nomination	
  to	
  go	
  to	
  the	
  Governing	
  Board	
  for	
  voting	
  it	
  requires	
  the	
  supporting	
  signatures	
  of	
  4	
  delegates	
  from	
  4
different	
  societies.	
  


I	
  am	
  writing	
  to	
  ask	
  if	
  you	
  would	
  be	
  willing	
  to	
  support	
  this	
  nomination.


Regards;


Michael


~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~


We	
  would	
  like	
  to	
  nominate	
  Dr.	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  for	
  the	
  FACSS	
  2014	
  Distinguished	
  Service	
  Award.	
  	
  Ron	
  was	
  active	
  with	
  
FACSS	
  for	
  many	
  years	
  especially	
  during	
  very	
  critical	
  transition	
  periods	
  where	
  his	
  leadership	
  was	
  especially	
  valuable.	
  	
  Ron	
  
served	
  in	
  a	
  variety	
  of	
  posts	
  with	
  FACSS.	
  These	
  are	
  itemized	
  below:


1990-­‐1992	
  –	
  FACSS	
  Workshop	
  Chair


1993-­‐1997	
  –	
  Secretary


1999	
  -­‐	
  Program	
  Chair	
  for	
  the	
  1999	
  FACSS	
  Conference	
  in	
  Vancouver


2001	
  –	
  FACSS	
  Program	
  Webmaster


2002	
  –	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair	
  Elect


2003	
  –	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair


These	
  posts	
  are	
  a	
  matter	
  of	
  record	
  and	
  can	
  be	
  found	
  by	
  searching	
  the	
  FACSS	
  website.	
  	
  What	
  is	
  lesser	
  known	
  within	
  the
FACSS	
  organization	
  was	
  the	
  crucial	
  role	
  he	
  played	
  in	
  the	
  development	
  of	
  the	
  FACSS	
  web	
  presence.	
  	
  At	
  Ron’s	
  insistence,
FACSS.org	
  was	
  registered	
  in	
  November	
  1995	
  well	
  before	
  the	
  ultimate	
  importance	
  of	
  owning	
  such	
  URL’s	
  was	
  widely
understood	
  or	
  appreciated.	
  	
  For	
  the	
  1997,	
  1998,	
  1999	
  meeting	
  Ron	
  wrote	
  software	
  (in	
  Perl	
  Script)	
  and	
  maintained	
  a
website	
  designed	
  to	
  accept	
  abstracts	
  on-­‐line	
  and	
  to	
  make	
  the	
  data	
  available	
  to	
  the	
  Program	
  Chair	
  to	
  assist	
  in	
  program
planning.	
  	
  In	
  1999	
  he	
  was	
  a	
  member	
  of	
  an	
  ad-­‐hoc	
  committee	
  that	
  oversaw	
  the	
  first	
  professional	
  FACSS	
  website	
  which
was	
  implemented	
  for	
  the	
  2000	
  conference	
  and	
  was	
  the	
  template	
  for	
  all	
  subsequent	
  FACSS	
  websites.	
  	
  In	
  2004,	
  in	
  his	
  role
as	
  past	
  GB	
  chair	
  he	
  was	
  instrumental	
  is	
  setting	
  up	
  the	
  “retreat”	
  in	
  Portland	
  that	
  many	
  believe	
  was	
  vital	
  in	
  ensuring	
  a
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cooperative	
  relationship	
  between	
  the	
  existing	
  member	
  societies	
  moving	
  forward.	
  	
  He	
  was	
  also	
  a	
  strong	
  promoter	
  of,	
  and
was	
  actively	
  engaged	
  in	
  developing	
  the	
  “new”	
  template	
  for	
  poster/oral	
  presentations	
  –	
  both	
  pivotal	
  developments	
  for
FACSS	
  and,	
  subsequently,	
  SCIX.


Dr.	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  is	
  currently	
  the	
  Dean	
  of	
  the	
  School	
  of	
  Arts	
  and	
  Sci​ences	
  and	
  before	
  that	
  was	
  the	
  Dean	
  of	
  the	
  College	
  of
Science	
  Engineering	
  and	
  Technol​ogy	
  at	
  Saginaw	
  Valley	
  State	
  University.	
  	
  Williams	
  has	
  taught	
  chemistry	
  and	
  carried	
  out
research	
  at	
  Armstrong-­‐Atlantic	
  State	
  University	
  in	
  Savannah	
  and	
  at	
  Clemson	
  University	
  and	
  Ohio	
  University.	
  	
  Williams
holds	
  a	
  Ph.D.	
  in	
  analytical	
  chemistry	
  from	
  the	
  University	
  of	
  Georgia.	
  	
  He	
  will	
  play	
  “Stormy	
  Monday”	
  on	
  his	
  guitar	
  if	
  you
ask	
  him	
  to.


	
  


Considering	
  the	
  pivotal	
  roles	
  that	
  Ron	
  has	
  filled	
  with	
  FACSS	
  we	
  feel	
  that	
  recognizing	
  these	
  contributions	
  is	
  highly	
  
overdue.    


Michael Blades, Professor and Canada Foundation for Innovation Coordinator
Department of Chemistry
The University of British Columbia
2036 Main Mall | Vancouver, BC  Canada V6T 1Z1 
Phone 604 822 4468
blades@chem.ubc.ca
http://www.chem.ubc.ca 
  
Editor-in-Chief - Applied Spectroscopy
http://s-a-s.org/journal/
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HI	
  Mike
	
  
I	
  will	
  support	
  the	
  nomination	
  of	
  Ron	
  for	
  the	
  Distinguished	
  Service	
  Award.
	
  
  
Regards


JimJim
  
James Rydzak
S Sr Scientific Investigator
AS - Spectroscopy - US PAT
RD Platform Technology & Science
 
GlaxoSmithKline
709 Swedeland Rd
King of Prussia PA 19406
Email   James.W.Rydzak@gsk.com
Mobile  +732 616 9534
Tel       +1 610 270 5242
 
gsk.com  |  Twitter  |  YouTube  |  Facebook  |  Flickr
 


	
  
From: Michael Blades [mailto:blades@chem.ubc.ca] 
Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2013 7:21 PM
To: James Rydzak
Subject: DSA 2014
 
Hello Jim;
 
Greg Klunder and I are nominating Ron Williams for a FACSS Distinguished	
  Service	
  Award	
  for	
  2014.	
  	
  The	
  draft	
  text	
  for
the	
  nomination	
  is	
  below.	
  	
  I	
  will	
  tweak	
  it	
  a	
  little	
  more	
  before	
  submission.	
  	
  
 
For	
  this	
  nomination	
  to	
  go	
  to	
  the	
  Governing	
  Board	
  for	
  voting	
  it	
  requires	
  the	
  supporting	
  signatures	
  of	
  4	
  delegates	
  from	
  4
different	
  societies.
 
I	
  am	
  writing	
  to	
  ask	
  if	
  you	
  would	
  be	
  willing	
  to	
  support	
  this	
  nomination.
 
Regards;
 
Michael
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~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 
We	
  would	
  like	
  to	
  nominate	
  Dr.	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  for	
  the	
  FACSS	
  2014	
  Distinguished	
  Service	
  Award.	
  	
  Ron	
  was	
  active	
  with	
  FACSS	
  for
many	
  years	
  especially	
  during	
  very	
  critical	
  transition	
  periods	
  where	
  his	
  leadership	
  was	
  especially	
  valuable.	
  	
  Ron	
  served	
  in	
  a
variety	
  of	
  posts	
  with	
  FACSS.	
  These	
  are	
  itemized	
  below:
1990-­‐1992	
  –	
  FACSS	
  Workshop	
  Chair
1993-­‐1997	
  –	
  Secretary
1999	
  -­‐	
  Program	
  Chair	
  for	
  the	
  1999	
  FACSS	
  Conference	
  in	
  Vancouver
2001	
  –	
  FACSS	
  Program	
  Webmaster
2002	
  –	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair	
  Elect
2003	
  –	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair
These	
  posts	
  are	
  a	
  matter	
  of	
  record	
  and	
  can	
  be	
  found	
  by	
  searching	
  the	
  FACSS	
  website.	
  	
  What	
  is	
  lesser	
  known	
  within	
  the	
  FACSS
organization	
  was	
  the	
  crucial	
  role	
  he	
  played	
  in	
  the	
  development	
  of	
  the	
  FACSS	
  web	
  presence.	
  	
  At	
  Ron’s	
  insistence,	
  FACSS.org
was	
  registered	
  in	
  November	
  1995	
  well	
  before	
  the	
  ultimate	
  importance	
  of	
  owning	
  such	
  URL’s	
  was	
  widely	
  understood	
  or
appreciated.	
  	
  For	
  the	
  1997,	
  1998,	
  1999	
  meeting	
  Ron	
  wrote	
  software	
  (in	
  Perl	
  Script)	
  and	
  maintained	
  a	
  website	
  designed	
  to
accept	
  abstracts	
  on-­‐line	
  and	
  to	
  make	
  the	
  data	
  available	
  to	
  the	
  Program	
  Chair	
  to	
  assist	
  in	
  program	
  planning.	
  	
  In	
  1999	
  he	
  was	
  a
member	
  of	
  an	
  ad-­‐hoc	
  committee	
  that	
  oversaw	
  the	
  first	
  professional	
  FACSS	
  website	
  which	
  was	
  implemented	
  for	
  the	
  2000
conference	
  and	
  was	
  the	
  template	
  for	
  all	
  subsequent	
  FACSS	
  websites.	
  	
  In	
  2004,	
  in	
  his	
  role	
  as	
  past	
  GB	
  chair	
  he	
  was
instrumental	
  is	
  setting	
  up	
  the	
  “retreat”	
  in	
  Portland	
  that	
  many	
  believe	
  was	
  vital	
  in	
  ensuring	
  a	
  cooperative	
  relationship
between	
  the	
  existing	
  member	
  societies	
  moving	
  forward.	
  	
  He	
  was	
  also	
  a	
  strong	
  promoter	
  of,	
  and	
  was	
  actively	
  engaged	
  in
developing	
  the	
  “new”	
  template	
  for	
  poster/oral	
  presentations	
  –	
  both	
  pivotal	
  developments	
  for	
  FACSS	
  and,	
  subsequently,
SCIX.
 
Dr.	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  is	
  currently	
  the	
  Dean	
  of	
  the	
  School	
  of	
  Arts	
  and	
  Sci​ences	
  and	
  before	
  that	
  was	
  the	
  Dean	
  of	
  the	
  College	
  of
Science	
  Engineering	
  and	
  Technol​ogy	
  at	
  Saginaw	
  Valley	
  State	
  University.	
  	
  Williams	
  has	
  taught	
  chemistry	
  and	
  carried	
  out
research	
  at	
  Armstrong-­‐Atlantic	
  State	
  University	
  in	
  Savannah	
  and	
  at	
  Clemson	
  University	
  and	
  Ohio	
  University.	
  	
  Williams	
  holds	
  a
Ph.D.	
  in	
  analytical	
  chemistry	
  from	
  the	
  University	
  of	
  Georgia.	
  	
  He	
  will	
  play	
  “Stormy	
  Monday”	
  on	
  his	
  guitar	
  if	
  you	
  ask	
  him	
  to.
	
  
Considering	
  the	
  pivotal	
  roles	
  that	
  Ron	
  has	
  filled	
  with	
  FACSS	
  we	
  feel	
  that	
  recognizing	
  these	
  contributions	
  is	
  highly	
  overdue.    
Michael Blades, Professor and Canada Foundation for Innovation Coordinator
Department of Chemistry
The University of British Columbia
2036 Main Mall | Vancouver, BC  Canada V6T 1Z1 
Phone 604 822 4468
blades@chem.ubc.ca
http://www.chem.ubc.ca 
  
Editor-in-Chief - Applied Spectroscopy
http://s-a-s.org/journal/
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Hi	
  Mike,
	
  
Yes	
  I	
  am	
  in	
  support	
  of	
  nominating	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  for	
  the	
  FACSS	
  DSA	
  for	
  2014.
Regards,
	
  
Katherine
	
  
From: Michael Blades [mailto:blades@chem.ubc.ca] 
Sent: Wednesday, October 16, 2013 7:23 PM
To: katherineb@bwtek.com
Subject: DSA 2014
 
Hello Katherine;
 
Greg Klunder and I are nominating Ron Williams for a FACSS Distinguished	
  Service	
  Award	
  for	
  2014.	
  	
  The	
  draft	
  text	
  for
the	
  nomination	
  is	
  below.	
  	
  I	
  will	
  tweak	
  it	
  a	
  little	
  more	
  before	
  submission.	
  	
  
 
For	
  this	
  nomination	
  to	
  go	
  to	
  the	
  Governing	
  Board	
  for	
  voting	
  it	
  requires	
  the	
  supporting	
  signatures	
  of	
  4	
  delegates	
  from	
  4
different	
  societies.
 
I	
  am	
  writing	
  to	
  ask	
  if	
  you	
  would	
  be	
  willing	
  to	
  support	
  this	
  nomination.
 
Regards;
 
Michael


~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 
We	
  would	
  like	
  to	
  nominate	
  Dr.	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  for	
  the	
  FACSS	
  2014	
  Distinguished	
  Service	
  Award.	
  	
  Ron	
  was	
  active	
  with	
  FACSS	
  for
many	
  years	
  especially	
  during	
  very	
  critical	
  transition	
  periods	
  where	
  his	
  leadership	
  was	
  especially	
  valuable.	
  	
  Ron	
  served	
  in	
  a
variety	
  of	
  posts	
  with	
  FACSS.	
  These	
  are	
  itemized	
  below:
1990-­‐1992	
  –	
  FACSS	
  Workshop	
  Chair
1993-­‐1997	
  –	
  Secretary
1999	
  -­‐	
  Program	
  Chair	
  for	
  the	
  1999	
  FACSS	
  Conference	
  in	
  Vancouver
2001	
  –	
  FACSS	
  Program	
  Webmaster
2002	
  –	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair	
  Elect
2003	
  –	
  Governing	
  Board	
  Chair
These	
  posts	
  are	
  a	
  matter	
  of	
  record	
  and	
  can	
  be	
  found	
  by	
  searching	
  the	
  FACSS	
  website.	
  	
  What	
  is	
  lesser	
  known	
  within	
  the	
  FACSS
organization	
  was	
  the	
  crucial	
  role	
  he	
  played	
  in	
  the	
  development	
  of	
  the	
  FACSS	
  web	
  presence.	
  	
  At	
  Ron’s	
  insistence,	
  FACSS.org
was	
  registered	
  in	
  November	
  1995	
  well	
  before	
  the	
  ultimate	
  importance	
  of	
  owning	
  such	
  URL’s	
  was	
  widely	
  understood	
  or
appreciated.	
  	
  For	
  the	
  1997,	
  1998,	
  1999	
  meeting	
  Ron	
  wrote	
  software	
  (in	
  Perl	
  Script)	
  and	
  maintained	
  a	
  website	
  designed	
  to
accept	
  abstracts	
  on-­‐line	
  and	
  to	
  make	
  the	
  data	
  available	
  to	
  the	
  Program	
  Chair	
  to	
  assist	
  in	
  program	
  planning.	
  	
  In	
  1999	
  he	
  was	
  a
member	
  of	
  an	
  ad-­‐hoc	
  committee	
  that	
  oversaw	
  the	
  first	
  professional	
  FACSS	
  website	
  which	
  was	
  implemented	
  for	
  the	
  2000
conference	
  and	
  was	
  the	
  template	
  for	
  all	
  subsequent	
  FACSS	
  websites.	
  	
  In	
  2004,	
  in	
  his	
  role	
  as	
  past	
  GB	
  chair	
  he	
  was


From: "Katherine Bakeev" <katherineb@bwtek.com>
Subject: RE: DSA 2014


Date: October 19, 2013 6:43:54 AM PDT
To: "'Michael Blades'" <blades@chem.ubc.ca>
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instrumental	
  is	
  setting	
  up	
  the	
  “retreat”	
  in	
  Portland	
  that	
  many	
  believe	
  was	
  vital	
  in	
  ensuring	
  a	
  cooperative	
  relationship
between	
  the	
  existing	
  member	
  societies	
  moving	
  forward.	
  	
  He	
  was	
  also	
  a	
  strong	
  promoter	
  of,	
  and	
  was	
  actively	
  engaged	
  in
developing	
  the	
  “new”	
  template	
  for	
  poster/oral	
  presentations	
  –	
  both	
  pivotal	
  developments	
  for	
  FACSS	
  and,	
  subsequently,
SCIX.
 
Dr.	
  Ron	
  Williams	
  is	
  currently	
  the	
  Dean	
  of	
  the	
  School	
  of	
  Arts	
  and	
  Sci​ences	
  and	
  before	
  that	
  was	
  the	
  Dean	
  of	
  the	
  College	
  of
Science	
  Engineering	
  and	
  Technol​ogy	
  at	
  Saginaw	
  Valley	
  State	
  University.	
  	
  Williams	
  has	
  taught	
  chemistry	
  and	
  carried	
  out
research	
  at	
  Armstrong-­‐Atlantic	
  State	
  University	
  in	
  Savannah	
  and	
  at	
  Clemson	
  University	
  and	
  Ohio	
  University.	
  	
  Williams	
  holds	
  a
Ph.D.	
  in	
  analytical	
  chemistry	
  from	
  the	
  University	
  of	
  Georgia.	
  	
  He	
  will	
  play	
  “Stormy	
  Monday”	
  on	
  his	
  guitar	
  if	
  you	
  ask	
  him	
  to.
	
  
Considering	
  the	
  pivotal	
  roles	
  that	
  Ron	
  has	
  filled	
  with	
  FACSS	
  we	
  feel	
  that	
  recognizing	
  these	
  contributions	
  is	
  highly	
  overdue.    
 


Michael Blades, Professor and Canada Foundation for Innovation Coordinator
Department of Chemistry
The University of British Columbia
2036 Main Mall | Vancouver, BC  Canada V6T 1Z1 
Phone 604 822 4468
blades@chem.ubc.ca
http://www.chem.ubc.ca 
  
Editor-in-Chief - Applied Spectroscopy
http://s-a-s.org/journal/
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Marketing Update for FACSS 
Pittcon 2014 


Overview:  FACSS has embarked on an SEM Online Marketing Campaign which is being handled by Ignite Design 
and Advertising, Inc.  The goal is to reach beyond the current FACSS network, while invigorating the current 
network, so as to enhance interest and participation in the organization and its marquee event, SciX. 


General Mechanism:  Through Ignite, the SEM Online Marketing Campaign is a direct response campaign with 
pull forms that will ultimately drive traffic and registration to SciX 2014 and beyond.  Using topical keywords, 
information on the SciX meeting and FACSS organization will be presented to prospects who are FACSS’ target 
audience.   Ignite, in conjunction with FACSS, will monitor, and adjust accordingly based on usage and cost, the 
keywords and phrases that provide the greatest level of ROI.   


Timeline Steps: 
  Creation of landing pages 
  Programming and testing 
  Set‐up Yahoo and Bing accounts 
  Final campaign testing 
  Go Live, Google....February 26, 2014 
  Optimize ....starting in March, 2014 
   
Details:  Keywords and phrases which the searcher (scientist) queries will drive them through a lead generation 
funnel and direct them ultimately to SciX landing pages.  We will also target keywords and phrases that related 
to the keynote and plenary speakers.  The landing pages will attract those of specific interest based on 
keywords, phrases and key speakers and award winners.   


The SEM campaign is broken down into three areas of focus: 
1.)  Students 
2.)  Sponsors 
3.)  Scientists (General) 


Each of these focus areas encompass different ad groups with ad copy specific to the searchers query.  


The Student campaign is currently limited to a limited radius around Reno and focuses on students searching for 
internships, career opportunities, scholarships and awards, as well as research and conferences.  I would like this 
to expand to the San Francisco Bay area. 


The Sponsor page focuses on a very narrow audience.  The keywords being purchased are very narrow in scope so 
to be sure we are not sending possible attendees' to this page and only corporate sponsors looking to promote their 
brand and products or services to our audience. This campaign is national in reach. 


The Scientist page is a general page since it is best at capturing the core attendee.  This portion of the campaign is 
broken down into several ad groups such as: 


1.) Competitive conferences (Pittcon) 
2.) Scientists Names 
2.) Topical areas of Scientific Focus 
3.) University & Research Center Names 
4.) General (Extensive Keyword List - Broad) 
5.) Sponsoring Companies 


Each of these campaigns and ad groups is utilizing dynamic keyword insertion into the ads to promote ad 
relevance and drive quality traffic to the landing page.  







The Bill:  There was the initial $4,965 to get things created, then for February, $2,000 SEM media planning, 
buying and account management was billed.   Media buying just started, so beginning March 1st, the monthly 
SEM billing will be $6,000 total. $4,000 to media buys on Google ($130/day) and $2,000 for management of the 
campaign. The $130 per day is set as a maximum and will be monitored as adjusted as appropriate. 


(NOTE:  In the first two days, 6 potential attendees signed‐up for information on SciX.  They completely filled out 
the form from the Landing Page.) 


The keywords will begin to narrow down as the data comes in this week which will lead to an increase in 
conversions...form entries being filled‐out.  The forms filled out were for sponsorship, student, and scientist 
attendee interest, so the SEM is appealing to all audiences. There will be a steep learning curve over the next 
few months as the SEM campaigns becomes more focused on the most relevant audiences.  


 


 


 







REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL OFFICE – March 4, 2014 
Follow up to Milwaukee, WI 


• Thank you sent to exhibitors with conference registration list and contact information 
• Reviewed and paid bills 
• Generated profit/loss for the year 


Reno-Tahoe, 2014 
• The Reno team has had two site visits 
• Announcement sent for journal calendars for both SciX 2014 and SciX 2015 
• Sent exhibitor information to vendor database and processed exhibit booths for 2014 
• Notified member organizations of deadlines for reserving meeting space, exhibit booth, student award nomination, program 


advertising 
• Call for papers mailed February 27. 


Web Site 
• Updates  made to the SciX website and Ignite is still working on improving some of the functionality of the website. 
•  Abstract submission is open,  Conference registration will open April 1. 
• Extranet: scix2012; Password: extranetuse 
• Pdfs of all programs from past FACSS conferences have been uploaded to the FACSS website. 


Board and Committee Reports from Governing Board Meeting 
• Please forward all reports electronically to the FACSS office as well as to Christopher Palmer 


(Christopher.palmer@umontana.edu), secretary. 
Audit – The audit for 2013 is currently in process with the auditor. 
Delegates: 


• Please make sure the FACSS International Office has the current contact information for any possible media coverage 
through your Society and/or Journal 


• As the Delegate for your Society, we ask that you periodically review your Society’s page on the website  
http://www.scixconference.org/index.php/about-facss/sponsoring-societies and notify the FACSS Office of any updates or 
revisions.  We also recommend that you review any Society awards that might be listed on 
http://www.scixconference.org/index.php/awards 


• The rotating delegate for the 2014 conference is SAS 
Impending Deadlines 
 March 14  Ads to RSC, Spectroscopy/Advanstar and JASMS 
 April 11 Ad for Spectroscopy Europe/Wiley 
 April 30 Title submission for orals 
 April 30 Tomas Hirschfeld Student Award Application, FACSS Student Award nominations 
  Camera ready advertisements for preliminary program 
 May 11 Scientific program to International Office for Preliminary Program including session titles and times, workshop 


schedule, Program Chair and Workshop Chair 
 May 15 Filing 990 with IRS 
 May 15 Editorial due to SAS Journal 
  Awards selection finalized and information provided to FACSS Office (Tomas Hirschfeld Scholar Award, 


FACSS Student Award), FACSS Awards Committee 
 June Mail preliminary program 
  Notify authors of scheduling of talks and posters, Program Chair and International Office 
  Notify recipients of Hirschfeld and FACSS Student Award and solicit biographical sketches and photographs, 


FACSS Award Committee/International Office 
  Identify session chairs and/or presiders.  Include times for talks, list of posters, Program Chair 
 June 4 Preliminary program (4 pages) to SAS Journal 
 June 11 Advanstar – 2nd Spectroscopy ad due 
 July 31 Deadline for poster submissions, revisions to abstracts for final program and final scheduling of all papers. 
 Aug 6 Advertisements for final program 
  Photos and biographical sketches from Governing Board Chair, General Chair, Program Chair and Exhibits 


Chair for Final Program, FACSS and member organization award recipients 
  Final program compiled including all titles by session and time, author index, and abstracts, Program Chair 


and FACSS Office 
 Sept. 5 Final program to printer 
  Hotel deadline at conference rate 
  Conference registration deadline at advance rate 





		Governing Board Minutes, March 4, 2014
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Federation of Analytical Chemistry and Spectroscopy Societies 


 
Proposal: Co-location of the SciX Conference Federation of Analytical Chemistry and Spectroscopy 


Societies (FACSS) and the Isotachophoresis Meeting (ITP) in 2016 
 
Summary: The governing board is asked to consider the co-location of the 23rd ITP meeting with the SciX 
meeting in Minneapolis, MN, in September, 2016.  The joint meeting would be known as SciX 2016/23rd 
ITP. 
 
Background: The ITP meeting is an international symposium on electro- and liquid phase- separation 
techniques held regularly since 1979.  The meeting hosts between 150-200 conferees from international 
origins, and offers a scientific program that is particularly strong in aspects of electrophoretic and 
chromatographic separations.  The website for the 2013 ITP meeting, held in the Canary Islands, can be 
viewed at http://www.itp2013.ull.es. 
 
Obligations of FACSS: Under this proposal, FACSS would assume overall management responsibility for 
the joint conference. Approximately 15 oral sessions would be added to the SciX program for content 
originated and organized by the ITP program committee.  These additional sessions would receive the 
same program support as provided to all SciX sessions.  Identical registration fees will be charged to both 
ITP and SciX memberships.  FACSS would also actively promote the meeting in joint printing/electronic 
publicity, host a web presence for the ITP conference, facilitate registration, and organize exhibit and 
hotel space.  At the conclusion of the 2016 conference, FACSS will place $5000 US in an internal 
FACSS surplus account that will be designated for ITP use at the next co-meeting of ITP and SciX and 
for future joint scientific programming.  FACSS is to retain management control over these funds.  This 
mechanism is based on the precedent 2005 co-meeting of FACSS with the International Conference on 
Analytical Sciences and Spectroscopy (ICASS), and it is designed to ensure that the 501(c)(3) non-profit 
status of FACSS is protected. FACSS legal council has vetted the arrangement.  In matters including, but 
not limited to registration, programming, booth sales and rates, and marketing, ITP shall advise FACSS 
but FACSS shall have final authority.   
 
Potential Advantages: The co-location of the ITP meeting with SciX conference is an opportunity for 
FACSS to reach a new audience and enhance its international reputation.  The meeting and hotel space in 
Minneapolis (already reserved) will accommodate the additional conferees.  The ITP conference holds 
potential for new, additional program sponsorship and exhibitors.  The ITP scientific program is 
traditionally strong and is focused on topics that will enhance, not diminish, the overall SciX program. 
The financial investment required to meet the FACSS obligations are manageable and should be covered 
by the additional registration proceeds. Most importantly, co-location with ITP supports the FACSS 
mission, advances the interests of its member organizations, and builds ties with an important 
international membership. 
 
Potential Disadvantages: There is certainly some overlap between ITP and SciX created by members of 
the American Electrophoresis Society (AES) that also would have attended the ITP meeting, and this may 
decrease the anticipated ITP attendance.  FACSS does also assume some financial risk in overseeing the 
entire conference, including ongoing costs (e.g. insurance, hotel pickup), and up-front additional 
marketing and website expenses.  However, calculations based on lower than average attendance of ITP 
suggest that FACSS would recoup these investments. 
 
Recommendation:  The executive committee strongly recommends approval. 
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FACSS Delegate’s Report 
9/17/14 


 
 
The summary of the last FACSS GB meeting held at Pittcon is provided in the integrated 
minutes attached.   
 
Initiatives 
As a major initiative FACSS proposes to host the ITP conference at the 2016 location in 
Minneapolis, MN.  FACSS have been in discussion with the 2016 ITP team over the last two 
years about this.  It is recommended that SAS endorse this as it allows for the potential for 
growth for the SciX conference, where SAS has the opportunity to profit from a FACSS surplus 
with only a modest investment from FACSS and with no impact to the SAS programming since a 
room dedicated to ITP can be provided at the 2016 location.   Due to the nature of ITP attendees, 
SAS shouldn’t anticipate a significant membership opportunity as the focus of ITP meetings is 
separations science. 
 
Locations 
SciX meetings under contract are 


Providence, RI 2015 
Minneapolis, MN 2016 
Reno, NV 2017 
Reno, NV 2019 


 
FACSS GB Voting 
SAS have 4 votes (3 standard and 1 extra on a 3 year rotation) at the FACSS GB in 2014 at SciX 
in Reno and Pittcon 2015.  At SciX the SAS voters will be Katherine Bakeev, Diane Parry, 
Bruce Chase, and Ian.  At Pittcon they are scheduled to be Ian, Diane, president-elect 2015, and 
TBD. 
 
National Meeting Technical Program Coordinator 
As noted in the President’s report SAS propose to negotiate for a define number of program 
sessions at SciX meetings moving forward and to appoint an SAS technical program coordinator 
to oversee those. 
 
Submitted by 
 
Ian R. Lewis 
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TECHNOLOGY PARTNERS MARKETING 
 


Report from TPM / SAS Executive Committee 
Bill Cunningham, Advertising Sales, August 2014 


 
 
This year we implemented several marketing changes to our products that had a positive effect 
for the Society to continue capturing advertising dollars from companies who are marketing their 
products and services to SAS members.   
 
However, the economy both here in the U.S. and Europe impacted our revenues.  Let’s review 
2014 progress report. 
 
Applied Spectroscopy Advertising Revenues – Print & Digital 


  2012 2013 2014 3yr Av 
%age 


change 


Q1 $67,255  $63,262  $74,164  $64,704.00  15% 


Q2 $62,320  $61,988  $51,962  $65,190.00  -16% 


Q3 $65,733  $66,843  $52,592  $65,312.00  -21% 


Q4 $69,076  $63,254  $74,360  $68,228.00  15% 


Total $264,384  $257,359  $253,078  $263,434.00  1.7% 
 
 


The first few months of 2014 looked very promising until several marketing directors who are 
long-term advertisers faced major reductions in their marketing budgets. 
 
Companies listed below had to choose from running 12 issues to 8, 6 or just 4 issues.  In some 
cases it was challenging to meet their requirements because of the amount of money that was 
reduced. 
 
Advantest, Andor Inc, Applied Spectra, Bruker Optics, Hellma USA, Horiba Scientific, Shimadzu, 
B&W Tek, Perkin Elmer, Princeton Instruments and Enwave Optical.  (These budget reductions 
resulted in loss of over $50,000 in revenue this year).  My recent communications with the 
majority of these marketing directors feel they will recover some of those dollars in 2015.   
 
The decision by the EC last year to approve the partnership for TPM to launch our SAS 
Spectroscopy Marketplace provided a new revenue stream for companies to advertise.  Several 
new organizations were looking for digital properties to invest in and our web platform promises 
to be very successful.  The website is promoted to the membership through a link on the SAS 
Home Page and the Spectrum eNews.  Digital revenue from this platform in 2014 is projected to 
reach $40,000.00. 
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TECHNOLOGY PARTNERS MARKETING 
 
 
 
While the mood of the majority of marketing directors remains optimistic, we are requesting a 
budget for marketing purposes.   We are recommending to the EC that we establish a marketing 
budget of approximately $15,000 for use in 2015.  
 
Here is a breakdown of our proposed budget: 
 
Expanding the SAS Spectroscopy Marketplace website:     proposed budget – $7,000 


 Realigning the current layout 
 Archiving Newsletter and RSS Editorial 
 Adding 20-30 second video options 


 
Market Survey of SAS Membership:         Proposed budget:  $500 


A new reader survey to determine: 
o Preferred digital platforms of members 
o Changes in the market since '07, the year of our last survey (see attached) 
o Size of budgets controlled by readers 


 
 
Update Applied Spec Rate Card:              Proposed budget:   $500 


 
Develop and launch new monthly digital newsletter -        annual budget - $1200 
The title of the proposed Bi-Weekly e-Newsletter titled “Spectroscopy & Lab Insite” 
produced by SAS Spectroscopy Marketplace.  Content featured will be current news (RSS 
Feeds) New products, Webinars, Calendar of Events 


 
Travel to national conferences (beyond Pittcon & SCIX) for prospecting clients dollars. 


 
 Winter Con Plasmaspectro Chemistry – Tucson, AZ January 10-16 2015   budget- 1800 
 Photonics West – San Francisco, CA  February 10-12, 2015   budget – 2,000 
 SPIE Optics Photonics – San Diego, CA  August  - 27-29      budget – 2,000 


     
  
The ROI for attending national conferences walking exhibit halls we should expect a minimum of 
$4-15K per conference in new advertising sales.  Projection 2015:  $25,000 
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Journal	
  Report	
  to	
  the	
  SAS	
  Executive,	
  EAB	
  and	
  Publications	
  Committee	
  


August	
  29,	
  2014	
  


Submitted	
  by:	
  Michael	
  Blades,	
  Peter	
  Griffiths,	
  and	
  Kristin	
  MacDonald	
  


	
  


	
  
We	
  begin	
  this	
  report	
  by	
  thanking	
  all	
  the	
  people	
  who	
  have	
  helped	
  us	
  to	
  publish	
  Applied	
  Spectroscopy	
  over	
  the	
  
past	
  year,	
  the	
  authors	
  and	
  reviewers,	
  the	
  associate	
  editors	
  and	
  various	
  special	
  section	
  editors,	
  Jonell	
  Clardy	
  
who	
  produces	
  the	
  stunning	
  covers	
  and	
  Focal	
  Point	
  graphics,	
  the	
  advertising	
  team	
  at	
  TPM	
  and	
  Elana	
  in	
  the	
  
Editorial	
  Office.	
  	
  Our	
  sincere	
  thanks	
  to	
  all	
  of	
  you.	
  	
  Thanks	
  also	
  to	
  the	
  SAS	
  Office	
  and	
  Executive	
  Committee	
  for	
  
supporting	
  the	
  journal	
  and	
  the	
  EIC,	
  Editor,	
  and	
  Managing	
  Editor.	
  


Overview	
  


In	
  general,	
  there	
  have	
  been	
  no	
  significant	
  changes	
  in	
  the	
  editorial	
  guidance	
  of	
  the	
  journal	
  although	
  there	
  have	
  
been	
  some	
  initiatives	
  that	
  will	
  certainly	
  have	
  an	
  impact	
  in	
  the	
  coming	
  years.	
  	
  Perhaps	
  the	
  most	
  important	
  of	
  
these	
  is	
  that	
  we	
  have	
  shifted	
  the	
  journal	
  to	
  a	
  hybrid	
  open	
  access	
  model,	
  i.e.,	
  a	
  subscription	
  journal	
  for	
  which	
  
some	
  of	
  the	
  articles	
  are	
  available	
  as	
  (Gold)	
  open	
  access.	
  	
  The	
  open	
  access	
  “movement”	
  continues	
  to	
  gain	
  
momentum	
  and	
  it	
  is	
  important	
  that	
  we	
  provide	
  authors	
  with	
  the	
  option	
  to	
  publish	
  in	
  this	
  manner.	
  This	
  model	
  
allows	
  us	
  to	
  publish	
  papers	
  submitted	
  by	
  authors	
  who	
  are	
  funded	
  by	
  agencies	
  that	
  provide	
  publication	
  funding	
  
for	
  the	
  work	
  to	
  be	
  available	
  on	
  an	
  open	
  access	
  basis	
  from	
  the	
  time	
  of	
  publication.	
  	
  This	
  shift	
  does	
  not	
  affect	
  
peer	
  review	
  or	
  the	
  “front-­‐end”	
  handling	
  of	
  the	
  submitted	
  manuscript.	
  	
  In	
  theory	
  it	
  provides	
  an	
  additional	
  
revenue	
  stream	
  but	
  we	
  do	
  not	
  expect	
  a	
  large	
  uptake	
  so	
  its	
  effect	
  will	
  probably	
  be	
  minimal,	
  at	
  least	
  in	
  the	
  near	
  
future.	
  Additionally,	
  the	
  society	
  have	
  been	
  using	
  open	
  access	
  publishing	
  with	
  Focal	
  Point	
  articles	
  to	
  fulfill	
  its	
  
mandate	
  to	
  “…advance	
  and	
  disseminate	
  knowledge	
  and	
  information	
  concerning	
  the	
  art	
  and	
  science	
  of	
  
spectroscopy	
  and	
  other	
  allied	
  sciences.”	
  	
  	
  A	
  side	
  benefit	
  of	
  this	
  strategy	
  is	
  that	
  it	
  increases	
  our	
  market	
  exposure	
  
and	
  visibility	
  by	
  introducing	
  the	
  journal	
  to	
  non-­‐subscribers	
  and	
  non-­‐members.	
  


The	
  journal	
  and,	
  because	
  of	
  the	
  close	
  relationship,	
  the	
  society,	
  continues	
  to	
  be	
  confronted	
  with	
  some	
  
significant	
  challenges,	
  most	
  of	
  which	
  are	
  being	
  dictated	
  by	
  market	
  forces	
  and	
  the	
  changes	
  that	
  on-­‐line	
  internet	
  
access	
  has	
  brought	
  to	
  the	
  business	
  of	
  scholarly	
  publishing.	
  	
  	
  


“	
  	
  with	
  the	
  availability	
  of	
  Internet	
  technology,	
  a	
  new	
  strategic	
  barrier	
  has	
  emerged.	
  Major	
  
publishers	
  have	
  begun	
  offering	
  libraries	
  bundled	
  packages	
  that	
  librarians	
  have	
  dubbed	
  the	
  “	
  Big	
  
Deal.	
  ”	
  The	
  bundles	
  are	
  across	
  journals	
  and	
  across	
  print	
  and	
  electronic	
  versions.	
  The	
  exact	
  terms	
  
vary,	
  but	
  in	
  a	
  typical	
  Big	
  Deal	
  contract	
  a	
  library	
  enters	
  into	
  a	
  long-­‐term	
  arrangement	
  to	
  get	
  
access	
  to	
  a	
  large	
  electronic	
  library	
  of	
  journals	
  at	
  a	
  substantial	
  discount	
  in	
  exchange	
  for	
  a	
  promise	
  
not	
  to	
  cut	
  print	
  subscriptions	
  (the	
  prices	
  of	
  which	
  will	
  increase	
  over	
  time).	
  In	
  this	
  sense	
  print	
  and	
  
electronic	
  are	
  bundled.	
  Because	
  the	
  electronic	
  library	
  becomes	
  much	
  cheaper	
  when	
  ordered	
  in	
  
quantity	
  (such	
  as	
  “	
  all	
  remaining	
  math	
  journals	
  ”	
  ),	
  there	
  is	
  likewise	
  bundling	
  across	
  electronic	
  
journals.”	
  -­‐	
  	
  From	
  “EXCLUSION	
  OR	
  EFFICIENT	
  PRICING?	
  THE	
  “BIG	
  DEAL”	
  BUNDLING	
  OF	
  
ACADEMIC	
  JOURNALS,	
  Aaron	
  S.	
  Edlin	
  Daniel	
  L.	
  Rubinfeld,	
  Antitrust	
  Law	
  Journal,	
  Vol.	
  72,	
  No.	
  1,	
  
2004.	
  


 
In	
  the	
  face	
  of	
  static	
  library	
  budgets	
  and	
  increasing	
  journal	
  prices	
  for	
  subscription	
  journals,	
  which	
  have,	
  on	
  
average,	
  been	
  increasing	
  at	
  a	
  rate	
  of	
  about	
  6-­‐10%	
  per	
  year	
  (See	
  Figure	
  1),	
  subscription	
  libraries	
  are	
  under	
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continual	
  pressure.	
  	
  To	
  cope,	
  libraries	
  have	
  been	
  accepting	
  the	
  “Big	
  Deal”	
  and	
  have	
  been	
  cutting	
  subscriptions	
  
at	
  the	
  periphery.	
  	
  


Figure	
  1:	
  	
  Price	
  Increases	
  for	
  serials	
  since	
  1986.	
  (Source:	
  
http://blogs.law.harvard.edu/pamphlet/2013/01/29/why-­‐open-­‐access-­‐is-­‐better-­‐for-­‐scholarly-­‐societies/)	
  


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   	
  


	
  


This	
  has	
  impacted	
  the	
  viability	
  of	
  small,	
  non-­‐profit	
  societies:	
  


“Since	
  bundle	
  size	
  governs	
  market	
  power,	
  non-­‐profits	
  have	
  less	
  ability	
  to	
  grow	
  margins	
  and	
  
scholarly	
  societies	
  rightly	
  complained	
  that	
  they’re	
  being	
  squeezed.	
  From	
  the	
  point	
  of	
  view	
  of	
  
libraries,	
  if	
  you	
  have	
  to	
  cancel	
  something	
  you	
  can	
  recoup	
  revenue	
  if	
  you	
  cancel	
  the	
  journals	
  from	
  
a	
  small	
  publisher.	
  You	
  can’t	
  recoup	
  revenue	
  if	
  you	
  cancel	
  journals	
  from	
  the	
  large	
  commercial	
  
publishers.	
  As	
  a	
  library,	
  what	
  are	
  you	
  going	
  to	
  do?	
  Cancel	
  scholarly	
  society	
  journals,	
  just	
  as	
  the	
  
societies	
  have	
  been	
  rightly	
  complaining	
  about.	
  
	
  
But	
  notice	
  that	
  the	
  problem	
  that	
  scholarly	
  societies	
  face,	
  a	
  problem	
  that	
  will	
  only	
  increase	
  in	
  a	
  
status	
  quo	
  future,	
  is	
  based	
  not	
  on	
  open	
  access	
  but	
  on	
  inherent	
  properties	
  of	
  the	
  subscription	
  
market	
  that	
  they	
  participate	
  in.	
  For	
  scholarly	
  societies,	
  the	
  status	
  quo	
  is	
  not	
  a	
  good	
  alternative.	
  
Doing	
  nothing	
  is	
  a	
  failing	
  strategy.”	
  	
  
-­‐	
  Stuart	
  M.	
  Shieber,	
  http://blogs.law.harvard.edu/pamphlet/2013/01/29/why-­‐open-­‐access-­‐is-­‐
better-­‐for-­‐scholarly-­‐societies/	
  
	
  


To	
  some	
  extent	
  the	
  association	
  with	
  OSA	
  represents	
  some	
  protection	
  for	
  Applied	
  Spectroscopy	
  in	
  this	
  big	
  deal	
  
marketplace,	
  but	
  the	
  price	
  that	
  the	
  society	
  has	
  paid	
  is	
  in	
  reduced	
  revenue	
  due	
  to	
  profit	
  sharing.	
  It’s	
  difficult	
  to	
  
know	
  whether	
  the	
  OSA	
  deal	
  protected	
  erosion	
  of	
  our	
  subscriptions	
  and	
  preserved	
  society	
  revenue	
  or	
  whether	
  
it	
  transferred	
  subscriptions	
  from	
  the	
  SAS	
  base	
  and	
  eroded	
  society	
  revenues	
  in	
  the	
  process.	
  	
  


	
  


A	
  recent	
  report	
  by	
  Bergstrom	
  and	
  Bergstrom,	
  
http://octavia.zoology.washington.edu/publishing/pageprice_table.html	
  )	
  points	
  out	
  what	
  Schieber	
  terms	
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“inefficiency”	
  in	
  the	
  journal	
  market	
  that	
  has	
  created	
  “wide	
  price	
  disparities.”	
  	
  	
  See	
  Figure	
  2	
  below.	
  	
  The	
  dark	
  
blue	
  is	
  for	
  commercial	
  publishers,	
  primarily	
  Elsevier,	
  Wiley,	
  Taylor	
  and	
  Francis,	
  Springer	
  and	
  SAGE,	
  and	
  the	
  light	
  
line	
  is	
  for	
  non-­‐profits,	
  like	
  the	
  ACS,	
  Royal	
  Society,	
  and	
  the	
  SAS.	
  The	
  graph	
  clearly	
  shows	
  that	
  for-­‐profit	
  
publishers	
  are	
  charging,	
  on	
  average,	
  on	
  the	
  order	
  of	
  five	
  times	
  more	
  for	
  their	
  journals	
  than	
  non-­‐profit	
  
publishers.	
  	
  	
  


The	
  right	
  side	
  of	
  the	
  graph	
  presents	
  the	
  same	
  data	
  cast	
  in	
  terms	
  of	
  a	
  quantity	
  that,	
  arguably,	
  represents	
  the	
  
quality	
  of	
  the	
  journal	
  –	
  citations	
  (the	
  underlying	
  basis	
  for	
  calculating	
  impact	
  factors).	
  	
  Shieber	
  observes	
  about	
  
the	
  disparity,	
  “This	
  kind	
  of	
  price	
  differential	
  is	
  a	
  clear	
  sign	
  of	
  market	
  failure,	
  especially	
  as	
  it	
  has	
  been	
  sustained	
  
over	
  decades.	
  You	
  just	
  do	
  not	
  get	
  this	
  kind	
  of	
  price	
  disparity	
  preserved	
  over	
  long	
  periods	
  of	
  time	
  in	
  well	
  
functioning	
  markets.”	
  


Figure	
  2.	
  


	
  


	
  


Put	
  another	
  way	
  the	
  for-­‐profit	
  publishers	
  are	
  price	
  gouging.	
  This	
  should	
  provide	
  journals	
  like	
  Applied	
  
Spectroscopy	
  with	
  a	
  marketing	
  advantage	
  but	
  there	
  are	
  barriers	
  that	
  need	
  to	
  be	
  overcome	
  to	
  exploit	
  this	
  
advantage,	
  the	
  “Big	
  Deal”	
  and	
  the	
  perception	
  of	
  quality	
  measured	
  by	
  impact	
  factor	
  being	
  the	
  most	
  significant	
  
of	
  these.	
  	
  More	
  on	
  this	
  in	
  the	
  impact	
  factor	
  section	
  later	
  in	
  this	
  report.	
  


Regarding	
  pricing,	
  a	
  publisher	
  recently	
  provided	
  us	
  with	
  a	
  price	
  comparison	
  for	
  Applied	
  Spectroscopy	
  and	
  
related	
  journals	
  (Table	
  1).	
  	
  The	
  immediate	
  conclusion	
  is	
  that	
  there	
  is	
  probably	
  room	
  for	
  a	
  price	
  increase	
  for	
  
Applied	
  Spectroscopy,	
  for	
  example	
  to	
  bring	
  it	
  in	
  line	
  with	
  the	
  pricing	
  for	
  JAAS.	
  	
  Before	
  we	
  can	
  do	
  that	
  however,	
  
we	
  must	
  provide	
  authors	
  to	
  an	
  improved	
  platform	
  for	
  hosting	
  their	
  (our)	
  content	
  in	
  our	
  opinion.	
  	
  We	
  have	
  been	
  
recommending	
  that	
  the	
  SAS	
  shift	
  from	
  Ingenta	
  to	
  a	
  more	
  modern	
  platform	
  in	
  several	
  past	
  reports.	
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Table	
  1:	
  	
  Competitor	
  price	
  analysis	
  


	
  


	
  


The	
  marketplace	
  forces	
  discussed	
  above	
  has	
  also	
  impacted	
  operations	
  of	
  non-­‐profit	
  societies	
  which	
  are	
  heavily	
  
dependent	
  on	
  journal	
  revenue.	
  The	
  impact	
  was	
  nicely	
  summarized	
  in	
  an	
  article	
  entitled	
  “The	
  New	
  Face	
  of	
  the	
  
Professional	
  Society”	
  in	
  “The	
  Scholarly	
  Kitchen”,	
  (http://scholarlykitchen.sspnet.org/2013/01/28/the-­‐new-­‐face-­‐of-­‐
the-­‐professional-­‐society-­‐2/):	
  	
  


“Professional	
  societies	
  began	
  their	
  publishing	
  ventures	
  as	
  a	
  means	
  for	
  members	
  to	
  share	
  
their	
  work	
  with	
  other	
  like-­‐minded	
  individuals.	
  Typically,	
  members	
  of	
  a	
  society	
  paid	
  a	
  fee	
  or	
  
dues,	
  and	
  among	
  the	
  benefits	
  of	
  membership	
  was	
  free	
  or	
  discounted	
  access	
  to	
  the	
  society’s	
  
publication.	
  Non-­‐members,	
  including	
  institutions,	
  paid	
  a	
  subscription	
  fee	
  for	
  the	
  journal,	
  
which	
  ultimately	
  gave	
  rise	
  to	
  the	
  situation	
  we	
  have	
  today,	
  where	
  academic	
  libraries’	
  
subscriptions	
  vastly	
  outstrip	
  membership	
  dues	
  as	
  a	
  source	
  of	
  revenue	
  for	
  societies.	
  When	
  
journals	
  became	
  digital	
  and	
  libraries	
  granted	
  remote	
  access	
  to	
  authorized	
  users,	
  many	
  
society	
  members	
  stopped	
  paying	
  their	
  membership	
  dues	
  because	
  the	
  journal	
  was	
  now	
  
available	
  to	
  them	
  at	
  no	
  cost	
  to	
  them.	
  While	
  societies	
  provide	
  other	
  benefits	
  to	
  members	
  
(discounted	
  conference	
  fees,	
  policy	
  work	
  with	
  government	
  officials,	
  public	
  education),	
  many	
  
societies	
  today	
  are	
  facing	
  a	
  difficult	
  problem	
  of	
  coming	
  up	
  with	
  benefits	
  that	
  their	
  members	
  
are	
  willing	
  to	
  pay	
  for.”	
  	
  


	
  


The	
  messages	
  are	
  clear.	
  The	
  society	
  and	
  the	
  journal	
  must	
  adapt	
  to	
  the	
  challenges	
  outlined	
  above	
  in	
  order	
  to	
  
survive	
  into	
  the	
  future.	
  	
  On	
  the	
  journal	
  side,	
  the	
  society	
  has	
  empowered	
  an	
  ad-­‐hoc	
  committee,	
  that	
  includes	
  
the	
  editorial	
  team,	
  to	
  investigate	
  alternative	
  publishing	
  models	
  and/or	
  publishing	
  partners	
  for	
  Applied	
  
Spectroscopy.	
  	
  It	
  is	
  expected	
  that	
  a	
  report	
  of	
  the	
  recommendations	
  of	
  this	
  committee	
  will	
  be	
  available	
  within	
  a	
  
few	
  months.	
  


	
  


	
  







	
   5	
  


The	
  remainder	
  of	
  this	
  report	
  is	
  intended	
  to	
  provide	
  a	
  summary	
  of	
  journal	
  operations	
  and	
  performance	
  for	
  2013	
  
and	
  2014	
  (to	
  date).	
  It	
  consists	
  mainly	
  of	
  tables	
  of	
  data	
  and,	
  in	
  some	
  cases	
  figures,	
  with	
  some	
  accompanying	
  
commentary	
  where	
  necessary.	
  	
  	
  
	
  


The	
  Editorial	
  Office	
  


In	
  early	
  December	
  2013,	
  Joanne	
  Jablkowski	
  submitted	
  her	
  resignation	
  (effective	
  January	
  3,	
  2014)	
  to	
  move	
  to	
  a	
  
similar	
  position	
  with	
  a	
  medical	
  journal.	
  We	
  advertised	
  the	
  position,	
  interviewed	
  five	
  candidates,	
  and,	
  on	
  
December	
  24th	
  offered	
  the	
  position	
  to	
  Elana	
  Baxter	
  who	
  accepted	
  the	
  position.	
  Elana	
  trained	
  with	
  Joanne	
  for	
  
two	
  days	
  in	
  January	
  and	
  has	
  been	
  working	
  as	
  Editorial	
  Assistant	
  since	
  January	
  2nd	
  2014.	
  	
  For	
  the	
  most	
  part,	
  the	
  
office	
  has	
  been	
  functioning	
  very	
  smoothly	
  since	
  the	
  transition	
  without	
  any	
  major	
  difficulties.	
  


Journal	
  Web	
  page	
  


Over	
  the	
  past	
  year	
  we	
  have	
  added	
  Manuscript	
  Submission	
  FAQ,	
  Ethical	
  Guidelines,	
  and	
  Open	
  Access	
  Policy	
  web	
  
pages	
  to	
  the	
  https://www.s-­‐a-­‐s.org/journal/	
  web	
  page.	
  We	
  continue	
  to	
  update	
  issue	
  information	
  to	
  the	
  website	
  
on	
  a	
  monthly	
  basis.	
  In	
  general,	
  we	
  have	
  found	
  that	
  the	
  inflexibility	
  of	
  the	
  web	
  page	
  constrains	
  the	
  kind,	
  and	
  
amount	
  of	
  information	
  that	
  we	
  can	
  provide	
  which	
  is	
  a	
  source	
  of	
  frustration	
  for	
  us.	
  	
  	
  


Allen	
  Track	
  and	
  Peer	
  Track	
  


The	
  reader	
  may	
  recall	
  last	
  year	
  we	
  indicated	
  that	
  we	
  would	
  be	
  switching	
  from	
  Allen	
  Track	
  to	
  Peer	
  Track	
  for	
  
manuscript	
  submission.	
  Our	
  reasoning	
  was	
  that	
  Peer	
  Track	
  is	
  a	
  newer	
  system	
  powered	
  by	
  Editorial	
  Manager	
  
(Aries),	
  which	
  is	
  used	
  by	
  more	
  than	
  5,000	
  publications	
  from	
  200	
  scholarly	
  societies,	
  university	
  presses	
  and	
  
commercial	
  publishers.	
  The	
  switchover	
  took	
  place	
  in	
  April	
  2014	
  after	
  a	
  short	
  training	
  period	
  provided	
  by	
  Allen	
  
Press.	
  However,	
  after	
  the	
  submission	
  of	
  about	
  15	
  manuscripts	
  we	
  became	
  bogged	
  down.	
  There	
  were	
  a	
  variety	
  
of	
  serious	
  issues	
  that	
  held	
  back	
  implementation:	
  	
  


• We	
  did	
  not	
  have	
  access	
  to	
  full	
  reviewer	
  data	
  base	
  statistics	
  and	
  we	
  couldn’t	
  do	
  keyword	
  searches	
  of	
  the	
  
previously	
  established	
  keyword	
  data	
  base	
  


• The	
  complexity	
  of	
  Peer	
  Track	
  and	
  the	
  lack	
  of	
  availability	
  of	
  certain	
  functions	
  that	
  was	
  available	
  on	
  Allen	
  
Track.	
  It	
  lacks	
  an	
  overview	
  page	
  that	
  summarizes	
  the	
  status	
  of	
  all	
  pending	
  manuscripts.	
  There	
  is	
  no	
  easy	
  
way	
  to	
  track	
  reviewer	
  acceptance	
  and	
  declines.	
  There	
  appeared	
  to	
  be	
  no	
  function	
  to	
  re-­‐issue	
  an	
  
invitation	
  to	
  a	
  reviewer	
  who	
  was	
  ignoring	
  a	
  request.	
  	
  


• Information	
  on	
  past	
  duties	
  for	
  reviewers,	
  etc.	
  was	
  lost	
  on	
  the	
  port	
  of	
  information	
  from	
  Allen	
  Track.	
  


In	
  May	
  and	
  June	
  we	
  spent	
  more	
  time	
  training	
  on	
  Peer	
  Track	
  and	
  accepted	
  another	
  10	
  manuscripts	
  in	
  June	
  2014,	
  
but	
  we	
  again	
  became	
  bogged	
  down	
  with	
  difficulties	
  outlined	
  above.	
  In	
  July	
  we	
  made	
  the	
  decision	
  to	
  halt	
  the	
  
transition	
  to	
  Peer	
  Track	
  and,	
  as	
  a	
  result,	
  we	
  are	
  using	
  Allen	
  Track	
  only	
  for	
  all	
  submissions	
  again.	
  In	
  our	
  opinion,	
  
Peer	
  Track	
  has	
  been	
  a	
  failed	
  experiment!	
  	
  It	
  is	
  apparent	
  that	
  the	
  production	
  component	
  (ArticleTrack,	
  quoted	
  at	
  
$11,100.00)	
  of	
  PeerTrack	
  is	
  necessary	
  for	
  the	
  smooth	
  operation	
  of	
  the	
  entire	
  process,	
  from	
  peer	
  review	
  to	
  
production.	
  We’ve	
  had	
  to	
  push	
  manuscripts	
  through	
  to	
  production	
  entirely	
  outside	
  of	
  the	
  system,	
  which	
  means	
  
we	
  are	
  missing	
  important	
  comments,	
  metrics,	
  and	
  details.	
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Ingenta	
  has	
  updated	
  their	
  look	
  but	
  we	
  continue	
  to	
  be	
  unsatisfied	
  with	
  their	
  hosting.	
  Although	
  there	
  were	
  some	
  
recent	
  upgrades,	
  the	
  look	
  and	
  feel	
  of	
  the	
  site	
  has	
  not	
  changed	
  in	
  many	
  years	
  and	
  the	
  site	
  is	
  not	
  capable	
  of	
  
providing	
  even	
  rudimentary	
  metrics	
  for	
  our	
  authors	
  nor	
  for	
  ourselves.	
  We	
  experience	
  difficulties	
  every	
  month	
  
in	
  uploading	
  the	
  XML	
  content	
  from	
  Allen	
  Track	
  and	
  the	
  site	
  is	
  slow	
  to	
  respond	
  on	
  most	
  accesses.	
  	
  Compared	
  
with	
  a	
  modern	
  hosting	
  platform	
  like	
  Highwire,	
  Ingenta	
  is	
  not	
  serving	
  us	
  well.	
  


Open	
  Access:	
  


As	
  was	
  discussed	
  in	
  the	
  introduction	
  to	
  this	
  report	
  in	
  late	
  2013	
  we	
  implemented	
  a	
  mechanism	
  for	
  gold	
  open	
  
access	
  submissions	
  to	
  Applied	
  Spectroscopy.	
  	
  Our	
  open	
  access	
  policy	
  can	
  be	
  viewed	
  at	
  https://www.s-­‐a-­‐
s.org/journal/OpenAccess/.	
  	
  In	
  addition	
  to	
  the	
  SAS	
  sponsored	
  Focal	
  Points,	
  journal	
  has	
  published	
  two	
  Gold	
  OA	
  
manuscripts	
  in	
  2014.	
  
	
  
Gold	
  OA:	
  
Subsurface	
  Raman	
  Analysis	
  of	
  Thin	
  Painted	
  Layers	
  	
  
Conti,	
  Claudia;	
  Colombo,	
  Chiara;	
  Realini,	
  Marco	
  ;Zerbi,	
  Giuseppe;	
  Matousek,	
  Pavel	
  
APPLIED	
  SPECTROSCOPY	
  Volume:	
  68	
  Issue:	
  6	
  Pages:	
  686-­‐691	
  Published:	
  JUN	
  2014	
  	
  
	
  
Millimeter-­‐Scale	
  Mapping	
  of	
  Cortical	
  Bone	
  Reveals	
  Organ-­‐Scale	
  Heterogeneity	
  
Buckley,	
  Kevin;Kerns,	
  Jemma	
  G.;	
  Parker,	
  Anthony	
  W.;	
  Goodship,	
  Allen	
  E.;	
  Matousek,	
  Pavel	
  
APPLIED	
  SPECTROSCOPY	
  Volume:	
  68	
  Issue:	
  4	
  Pages:	
  510-­‐514	
  Published:	
  APR	
  2014	
  
	
  
Green	
  OA:	
  
Variation	
  in	
  the	
  Transmission	
  Near-­‐Infrared	
  Signal	
  with	
  Depth	
  in	
  Turbid	
  Media.	
  	
  Nicola	
  Kellichan,	
  Alison	
  Nordon,	
  
Pavel	
  Matousek,	
  David	
  Littlejohn,	
  Gary	
  McGeorge.	
  Applied	
  Spectroscopy.	
  2013.	
  68(3):	
  383-­‐387.	
  
	
  
Subscription	
  Information:	
  


The	
  figures	
  below	
  summarize	
  the	
  subscription	
  data	
  for	
  the	
  period	
  2006-­‐2013	
  with	
  the	
  most	
  up	
  to	
  date	
  
information	
  for	
  2014	
  also	
  provided.	
  Since	
  2010	
  there	
  has	
  been	
  a	
  steady	
  decline	
  in	
  total	
  subscriptions.	
  There	
  has	
  
been	
  a	
  slight	
  uptick	
  in	
  subscriptions	
  for	
  2014,	
  which	
  is	
  an	
  encouraging	
  sign.	
  The	
  most	
  disturbing	
  aspect	
  of	
  the	
  
overall	
  decline	
  since	
  2008	
  is	
  that	
  it	
  has	
  affected	
  the	
  subscription	
  revenue	
  that	
  has	
  also	
  been	
  declining	
  since	
  
roughly	
  2009/10.	
  	
  


Figure	
  3:	
  	
  Subscription	
  numbers	
  for	
  SAS	
  and	
  OSA,	
  2006-­‐2014	
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Editorial	
  Office	
  Statistics:	
  
	
  	
  
The	
  table	
  below	
  (Table	
  2)	
  has	
  statistics	
  on	
  the	
  manuscript	
  flow	
  for	
  the	
  years	
  2009-­‐2014	
  (2014	
  is	
  completed	
  up	
  
to	
  August	
  20,	
  2014).	
  For	
  2012	
  there	
  was	
  a	
  significant	
  increase	
  in	
  number	
  of	
  manuscripts	
  submitted	
  relative	
  to	
  
2011,	
  and	
  2013	
  saw	
  a	
  further	
  significant	
  increase.	
  Fortunately	
  in	
  May	
  2013	
  the	
  Editorial	
  Assistant	
  position	
  was	
  
changed	
  from	
  80%	
  to	
  100%	
  full-­‐time	
  to	
  accommodate	
  the	
  increased	
  workload.	
  One	
  can	
  see	
  form	
  the	
  data	
  in	
  
the	
  table	
  and	
  the	
  graph	
  below	
  it	
  (Figure	
  4)	
  	
  the	
  submission	
  load	
  has	
  increased	
  by	
  approximately	
  30%	
  from	
  2011	
  
to	
  2013.	
  	
  	
  We	
  are	
  on	
  track	
  for	
  a	
  record	
  year	
  for	
  2014.	
  	
  	
  


Note	
  the	
  rejection	
  rate	
  which	
  has	
  increased	
  from	
  ~	
  43%	
  in	
  2013	
  to	
  ~56%	
  in	
  2014	
  (to	
  date).	
  	
  This	
  is	
  the	
  result	
  of	
  
two	
  factors.	
  	
  First,	
  while	
  the	
  number	
  of	
  submission	
  is	
  up	
  significantly,	
  for	
  the	
  most	
  part,	
  many	
  of	
  these	
  have	
  not	
  
been	
  of	
  the	
  quality	
  expected	
  of	
  an	
  AS	
  manuscript.	
  	
  Second,	
  the	
  Editors	
  are	
  applying	
  a	
  rigorous	
  triage	
  process,	
  
primarily	
  based	
  on	
  novelty	
  and	
  the	
  aims	
  and	
  scope,	
  on	
  submitted	
  manuscripts	
  (see:	
  Rejected	
  without	
  review)	
  
so	
  as	
  not	
  to	
  pass	
  along	
  an	
  increased	
  load	
  to	
  associate	
  editors	
  and	
  reviewers.	
  


Table	
  2:	
  	
  Manuscript	
  submission	
  statistics	
  


	
  	
   2009	
   2010	
   2011	
   2012	
   2013	
   2014	
  


2014	
  
on	
  
track	
  


Original	
  manuscripts	
  submitted	
   382	
   371	
   356	
   394	
   462	
   276	
   473	
  
Revised	
  manuscripts	
  submitted	
   260	
   262	
   208	
   255	
   289	
   153	
   262	
  
Manuscripts	
  accepted	
  without	
  revision	
   7	
   7	
   14	
   13	
   8	
   6	
   10	
  
Return	
  with	
  Revisions	
   201	
   223	
   206	
   227	
   227	
   120	
   206	
  
Manuscripts	
  rejected	
   123	
   124	
   109	
   137	
   184	
   150	
   257	
  
	
  	
  	
  	
  Rejected	
  with	
  review	
   66	
   86	
   80	
   82	
   83	
   74	
   127	
  
	
  	
  	
  	
  Rejected	
  without	
  review	
   57	
   38	
   29	
   55	
   101	
   66	
   113	
  
	
  	
  	
  	
  Rejected	
  after	
  revision	
   9	
   15	
   9	
   15	
   12	
   10	
   17	
  
Rejection	
  Rate	
  (%)	
   34.3%	
   34.6%	
   31.8%	
   38.5%	
   43.1%	
   56.2%	
   56.2%	
  
Manuscripts	
  requiring	
  additional	
  revision	
   65	
   54	
   37	
   63	
   71	
   32	
   55	
  
Manuscripts	
  accepted	
  after	
  revision	
   224	
   224	
   179	
   220	
   243	
   135	
   231	
  
Manuscripts	
  withdrawn	
   23	
   13	
   13	
   38	
   35	
   9	
   15	
  
Original	
  manuscripts	
  not	
  withdrawn	
   359	
   358	
   343	
   356	
   427	
   267	
   458	
  
Total	
  manuscripts	
  submitted	
  (original	
  &	
  revision)	
   642	
   633	
   564	
   649	
   751	
   429	
   735	
  
Total	
  papers	
  published	
  	
   196	
   200	
   177	
   177	
   188	
   	
  	
   	
  	
  
	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
  
Breakdown	
  of	
  Paper	
  Type	
   2009	
   2010	
   2011	
   2012	
   2013	
   	
  	
   	
  	
  
Focal	
  Point	
   3	
   3	
   9	
   10	
   8	
   	
  	
   	
  	
  
Accelerated	
  Papers	
   4	
   4	
   0	
   0	
   3	
   	
  	
   	
  	
  
Submitted	
  Papers	
   166	
   179	
   156	
   144	
   156	
   	
  	
   	
  	
  
Spec	
  Techs	
   11	
   6	
   4	
   12	
   7	
   	
  	
   	
  	
  
Notes	
   11	
   8	
   8	
   11	
   10	
   	
  	
   	
  	
  
	
  	
  Total	
  manuscript	
  pages	
  published	
   1442	
   1452	
   1440	
   1491	
   1484	
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Figure	
  4:	
  	
  Manuscript	
  Submission	
  (closely	
  related	
  to	
  Editorial	
  Office	
  work	
  load)	
  graphical	
  summary.	
  


	
  	
  	
  
	
  
Impact	
  Factor	
  and	
  citation	
  statistics:	
  
	
  
Good	
  news!	
  	
  Our	
  impact	
  factor	
  (IP)	
  is	
  up	
  for	
  2013—the	
  highest	
  in	
  five	
  years!	
  	
  
	
  
Figure	
  5:	
  	
  Impact	
  factor	
  2009-­‐13	
  (Source:	
  ISI	
  Web	
  of	
  Knowledge	
  Journal	
  Citation	
  Reports)	
  


	
  	
  
	
  
	
  
Table	
  3:	
  	
  	
  Impact	
  factor	
  for	
  a	
  number	
  of	
  related	
  journals	
  from	
  2006	
  to	
  2013.	
  The	
  %	
  change	
  row	
  is	
  for	
  2013	
  
relative	
  to	
  2012.	
  


	
  
	
  
While	
  the	
  increase	
  in	
  Impact	
  Factor	
  is	
  a	
  positive	
  sign	
  we	
  must	
  sound	
  a	
  note	
  of	
  caution.	
  	
  The	
  table	
  below	
  shows	
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a	
  re-­‐analysis	
  of	
  the	
  IP	
  data	
  for	
  Applied	
  Spectroscopy.	
  The	
  last	
  column	
  is	
  the	
  Impact	
  Factor	
  calculated	
  with	
  Focal	
  
Points	
  excluded	
  from	
  the	
  calculation.	
  One	
  can	
  see	
  how	
  important	
  the	
  Focal	
  Point	
  articles	
  were	
  to	
  the	
  impact	
  
factor	
  calculation	
  for	
  2013.	
  Further	
  one	
  can	
  see	
  that	
  the	
  submitted	
  papers	
  alone	
  are	
  being	
  cited	
  at	
  a	
  rate	
  that	
  is	
  
very	
  concerning	
  and	
  that	
  the	
  Focal	
  Point	
  citations	
  are	
  driving	
  the	
  increase	
  in	
  IP.	
  	
  
	
  
If	
  we	
  want	
  to	
  get	
  the	
  impact	
  factor	
  up	
  substantially	
  we	
  need	
  to	
  reject	
  more	
  papers	
  that	
  are	
  of	
  minimal	
  interest	
  
to	
  the	
  Applied	
  Spectroscopy	
  readership,	
  encourage	
  submission	
  of	
  more	
  potential	
  high	
  impact	
  papers,	
  and	
  
publish	
  more	
  high	
  quality	
  reviews	
  to	
  further	
  drive	
  citations.	
  If	
  we	
  can	
  get	
  the	
  Impact	
  Factor	
  above	
  3	
  then	
  some	
  
sort	
  of	
  self-­‐sustaining	
  mechanism	
  should	
  kick	
  in	
  since	
  it	
  will	
  make	
  Applied	
  Spectroscopy	
  more	
  attractive	
  to	
  
potential	
  authors.	
  
	
  
Table	
  4:	
  	
  Impact	
  Factor	
  calculated	
  with	
  Focal	
  Points	
  excluded	
  from	
  the	
  calculation	
  


Appl.	
  Spec.	
   Pubs	
  


Cites	
  to	
  
papers	
  


published	
  in	
  
the	
  2	
  years	
  
before	
  


Impact	
  
Factor	
  


FP	
  Reviews	
  
in	
  


publication	
  
year	
  


Cites	
  to	
  FP	
  
Reviews	
  


published	
  in	
  
the	
  2	
  years	
  
before	
  


Fraction	
  
of	
  cites	
  
that	
  are	
  
to	
  FP's	
  


IP	
  without	
  
FP's	
  


	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
  
2004	
   219	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   4	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
  
2005	
   201	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   6	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
  
2006	
   208	
   789	
   1.879	
   5	
   27	
   3.4	
   1.859	
  
2007	
   197	
   778	
   1.902	
   3	
   30	
   3.9	
   1.879	
  
2008	
   207	
   835	
   2.062	
   6	
   32	
   3.8	
   2.023	
  
2009	
   195	
   632	
   1.564	
   3	
   14	
   2.2	
   1.565	
  
2010	
   197	
   695	
   1.729	
   2	
   28	
   4.0	
   1.697	
  
2011	
   177	
   652	
   1.663	
   9	
   23	
   3.5	
   1.625	
  


2012	
  <-­‐-­‐	
   177	
   732	
   1.942	
   10	
   97	
   13.3	
   1.749	
  
2013	
   188	
   719	
   2.014	
   8	
   233	
   32.4	
   1.451	
  
2014*	
   170	
   367	
   	
  	
   5	
   111	
   30.2	
   	
  	
  


*	
  Data	
  is	
  incomplete	
  (August	
  14,	
  2014)	
   	
   	
   	
   	
   	
  


<-­‐-­‐	
  Focal	
  Points	
  were	
  made	
  open	
  access	
  starting	
  2012	
   	
   	
   	
   	
  


	
  


Submissions	
  by	
  country	
  of	
  origin	
  


Figure	
  6	
  (below)	
  shows	
  the	
  breakdown	
  of	
  submissions	
  2010	
  to	
  2013	
  by	
  country	
  of	
  origin	
  for	
  the	
  top	
  15	
  
countries.	
  The	
  number	
  of	
  submissions	
  from	
  China	
  has	
  increased	
  steadily	
  over	
  the	
  past	
  four	
  years,	
  a	
  trend	
  that	
  is	
  
expected	
  to	
  continue	
  in	
  the	
  future.	
  	
  	
  My	
  concern	
  with	
  this	
  is	
  that	
  journal	
  selection	
  for	
  authors	
  from	
  China,	
  like	
  
those	
  in	
  many	
  other	
  countries,	
  is	
  being	
  primarily	
  guided	
  by	
  impact	
  factor.	
  	
  There	
  is	
  anecdotal	
  evidence	
  that	
  
researchers	
  are	
  rewarded	
  by	
  publishing	
  in	
  higher	
  impact	
  factor	
  journals.	
  	
  I	
  believe	
  that	
  we	
  are	
  not	
  receiving	
  the	
  
more	
  cutting	
  edge	
  manuscripts	
  because	
  of	
  this.	
  	
  Rather	
  we	
  are	
  receiving	
  many	
  lower	
  quality	
  manuscripts	
  that	
  
lack	
  novelty	
  which	
  authors	
  are	
  trying	
  to	
  publish	
  in	
  journals	
  that	
  are	
  better	
  then	
  their	
  work	
  has	
  been	
  published	
  
in	
  the	
  past.	
  	
  This	
  is	
  not	
  universally	
  the	
  case	
  but	
  it	
  is	
  certainly	
  the	
  trend.	
  	
  	
  Until	
  we	
  get	
  the	
  impact	
  factor	
  up	
  or	
  the	
  
psychology	
  changes	
  this	
  is	
  going	
  to	
  continue	
  to	
  be	
  the	
  norm.	
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Figure	
  6:	
  	
  Submissions	
  2010	
  to	
  2013	
  by	
  country	
  of	
  origin	
  


	
  	
  
	
  
Review	
  times:	
  


Stats	
  on	
  the	
  review	
  time	
  are	
  provided	
  in	
  the	
  table	
  below.	
  The	
  rate	
  limiting	
  steps	
  are	
  the	
  securing	
  reviewers	
  and	
  
waiting	
  for	
  both	
  reviews	
  to	
  be	
  returned.	
  Our	
  goal	
  continues	
  be	
  to	
  reduce	
  the	
  “Average	
  Days	
  from	
  Received	
  to	
  
Decision	
  Rendered”	
  to	
  under	
  40	
  days.	
  We	
  are	
  doing	
  this	
  by	
  being	
  more	
  dogged	
  in	
  securing	
  overdue	
  reviews	
  and	
  
to	
  assigning	
  extra	
  reviewers	
  upon	
  initial	
  submission.	
  The	
  two	
  biggest	
  challenges	
  we	
  face	
  are	
  dealing	
  with	
  tardy	
  
reviewers	
  and	
  reviewers	
  who	
  do	
  not	
  respond	
  to	
  requests	
  to	
  review.	
  
	
  
Table	
  5:	
  	
  Review	
  time	
  data	
  
Applied Spectroscopy 2011 2012 2013 2014* 
Review Time Statistics         
Average Days from Date Received to Associate Editor Secured 2.7 3.8 4.5 3.4 
Average Days from Date Received to First Reviewer Secured 9.7 12.9 13.8 12.59 
Average Days from Date Received to Final Reviewer Secured 24.0 25.8 25.6 23.8 
Average Days from Date Received to First Decision (review 
returned) 39.3 38.9 39.0 32.87 
Average Days from First Reviewer Secured to Final Review 
Returned  42.7 42.7 35.4 26.34 
Average Days from Final Review Returned to Final Decision 2.8 3.2 4.0 3.75 
          
Average Days from Received to Decision Rendered 55.2 58.8 53.2 42.7 


*	
  Data	
  up	
  to	
  August	
  20,	
  2014	
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Downloads	
  Statistics	
  	
  


The	
  table	
  and	
  graphic	
  below	
  indicate	
  that	
  our	
  downloads	
  were	
  up	
  for	
  2013	
  relative	
  to	
  2012	
  for	
  both	
  Ingenta	
  
and	
  OSA.	
  	
  Downloads	
  to	
  the	
  end	
  of	
  July	
  for	
  2014	
  OSA	
  and	
  Ingenta	
  are	
  53,781	
  which	
  means	
  we	
  are	
  on	
  track	
  for	
  
about	
  100,000	
  for	
  2014.	
  


Figure	
  7:	
  	
  Number	
  of	
  full	
  text	
  downloads	
  by	
  year.	
  


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   	
  
	
  
	
  
Top	
  downloaded	
  articles	
  to	
  date	
  for	
  2014	
  (Source:	
  Ingenta	
  and	
  OSA)	
  
	
  


	
  	
   	
  	
   Volume	
   Issue	
   SAS	
   OSA	
   TOTAL	
  


1	
   Quantum	
  Dots	
  in	
  Bioanalysis:	
  A	
  Review	
  of	
  Applications	
  Across	
  Various	
  Platforms	
  for	
  
Fluorescence	
  Spectroscopy	
  and	
  Imaging	
   67	
   3	
   288	
   686	
   974	
  


2	
  
AFM-­‐IR:	
  Combining	
  Atomic	
  Force	
  Microscopy	
  and	
  Infrared	
  Spectroscopy	
  for	
  
Nanoscale	
  Chemical	
  Characterization	
   66	
   12	
   82	
   662	
   744	
  


3	
  
Surface-­‐Enhanced	
  Raman	
  Scattering	
  (SERS)	
  and	
  Surface-­‐Enhanced	
  Resonance	
  
Raman	
  Scattering	
  (SERRS):	
  A	
  Review	
  of	
  Applications	
   65	
   8	
   263	
   456	
   719	
  


4	
   Inductively	
  Coupled	
  Plasma-­‐Mass	
  Spectrometry	
  (ICP-­‐MS)	
  for	
  Quantitative	
  Analysis	
  
in	
  Environmental	
  and	
  Life	
  Sciences:	
  A	
  Review	
  of	
  Challenges,	
  Solutions,	
  and	
  Trends	
  	
  


66	
   8	
   18	
   673	
   691	
  


5	
  
Laser-­‐Induced	
  Breakdown	
  Spectroscopy	
  (LIBS),	
  Part	
  II:	
  Review	
  of	
  Instrumental	
  and	
  
Methodological	
  Approaches	
  to	
  Material	
  Analysis	
  and	
  Applications	
  to	
  Different	
  
Fields	
  


66	
   4	
   152	
   497	
   649	
  


6	
   Review	
  of	
  Super-­‐Resolution	
  Fluorescence	
  Microscopy	
  for	
  Biology	
   65	
   9	
   230	
   346	
   576	
  


7	
   Application	
  of	
  Spectroscopic	
  Ellipsometry	
  and	
  Mueller	
  Ellipsometry	
  to	
  Optical	
  
Characterization	
  


67	
   1	
   96	
   138	
   234	
  


8	
   Time-­‐Resolved	
  Resonance	
  Raman	
  Spectroscopy:	
  Exploring	
  Reactive	
  Intermediates	
   65	
   10	
   ?	
   146	
   146	
  


9	
  
Spectroscopy	
  of	
  Scattered	
  Light	
  for	
  the	
  Characterization	
  of	
  Micro	
  and	
  Nanoscale	
  
Objects	
  in	
  Biology	
  and	
  Medicine	
  	
  


68	
   2	
   20	
   146	
   166	
  


10	
   Subsurface Raman Analysis of Thin Painted Layers (Oen Access) 68 6 144	
   ?	
   144	
  


Yellow	
  –	
  Focal	
  Point	
  Review	
  (Open	
  Access)	
  






image8.emf
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SAS Publications Committee Report 


Fall 2014 


 


The committee discussed several topics at the Spring 2014 meeting and in subsequent months 


that will be updated and/or discussed further in the Fall 2014 meeting. These include 


Arrangements with OSA 


  Ongoing discussion about SAS future involvement with OSA.  


SAS marketing Strategy  


  On request of the EC the Committee reviewed the proposed SAS Marketing Strategy and 


  endorsed its content. 


Extension of Journal Chief–In Editors Term 


As the appointment term of the Editor‐In‐Chief of Applied Spectroscopy is now 


approaching the end of the three year term (ending in summer 2015) the Committee, as 


required by its by‐laws, discussed whether to extend the position of Michael Blades 


further or appoint a new Editor‐In‐Chief. The Committee has voted unanimously in favor 


of extending Michael Blades’ position for another three year term highlighting his 


outstanding and dedicated services to the Journal and Society. The recommendation is 


now passed to the EC and GB for approval. (Mike expressed his willingness to continue 


serving in this capacity if requested to do so.) 


 


Pavel Matousek 


Publications Committee, Chair 


21st August 2014 
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2014 SciX Report of the SAS Constitution and Bylaws Committee 
 
Members: Katherine Bakeev, Jeremy Shaver, Diane Parry 
 
We respectfully submit the following proposed changes, covering a variety of 
updates, clarifications, and proposed new initiatives.  All proposed change 
reasons are listed in the table, below, with details in Attachments using the 
same numbering system. 
 
 


OVERVIEW OF PROPOSED CHANGES 
 
Goal for Society Reason for Change Constitution 


Change? 
ByLaws 
Change?


1) Recognize 
Change 


Addition to Society of 
responsibility for Kowalski 
Award in ByLaws 


N Y 


2) Recognize 
Change 


Recognize use of virtual 
meetings for SAS business Y Y 


3) Recognize 
Change 


Recognize and enable use of 
electronic tools (e.g. email) 
for voting on SAS business. 


Y N 


4) Recognize 
Change 


Recognize ongoing need for 
Office and Treasurer 
involvement in the 
business/audit end of the 
Web-site work. 


N Y 


5) Recognize 
Change 


Recognize that external non-
profit audit requirements 
should match internal SAS 
audits. 


N Y 


6) Recognize 
Change 


Recognize the need for 
ongoing guidance from a 
Student Representative on 
the EC. 


N Y 


7) Improve 
Focus 


Assign President-Elect to 
organize 2 SAS PittCon 
sessions, which will mean 
that their program runs 
during their year in office. 


N Y 


8) Improve 
Focus 


Include a focus on service to 
the Society, in the 
qualifications for SAS Fellow. 


Y Y 


9) Enable Enable addition of new 
Society Publications Y Y 







 


 


Growth 
10) Clarify 


Roles 
Clarify Central and Regional, 
Technical, and Student 
Society operations 


Y N 


 


ATTACHMENT 1: 
 
In order to formally recognize the addition of the relationship of the 
prestigious Kowalski Award to the Society, we propose the following 
changes: 
 
To the Bylaws Under ARTICLE XVI. AWARDS 
 
Add: 
 
SECTION 10.  KOWALSKI AWARD IN CHEMOMETRICS.  This award, given to honor the 
legacy of Bruce R. Kowalski, is administered by the Society for Applied Spectroscopy and is 
funded via member donations.  The  selection  committee  shall  consist  of at least three  (3) 
members, one member designated by the Kowalski Award Committee, and two members invited 
by this designee, with representative founder-of-chemometrics and family approvals, as specified 
in the September, 2014 Bruce R. Kowalski Award in Chemometrics Agreement. This committee 
will also work with the Society Office and Web Editor to solicit sustaining donations.  The award is 
intended to cover travel and meeting costs for the awardee to present his or her research in either 
oral or poster format at an appropriate session at SAS's National meeting, the annual SciX 
Conference, beginning in 2015. 


  







 


 


ATTACHMENT 2: 
 
In order to clearly enable the recent addition of significant virtual 
meetings in the interest of the Society, and in anticipation that virtual 
meetings are a trend that will be important to the Society in the future, 
the following changes are proposed: 
 
To the Constitution: 
Under ARTICLE XII.  MEETINGS, Change: 


SECTION 1.  There shall be one (1) REGULAR MEETING of the Society per year at which the 
Governing Board shall convene.     This meeting shall be at a time and place recommended by 
the Executive Committee and approved by the Governing Board. 


SECTION 2.   The regular meeting shall be known as the ANNUAL MEETING, and shall 
be for the purpose of announcing officers for the coming year, receiving reports of officers and 
committees, and for any other business that may arise. 


SECTION 3.  SPECIAL MEETINGS may be called by the Executive Committee or the 
Governing Board, as stated in the Bylaws. The purpose of the meeting shall be stated in the 
call. 


SECTION 4.    A QUORUM of the Governing Board shall consist of two-thirds (2/3) of the 
elected members. The appointed officers and the Second-Past President may serve as voting 
alternates for the elected members. 


To: 
 


ARTICLE XII:  SAS MEETINGS 


SECTION 1.  In general, all meetings of the Society and its Committees can occur in-person or 
virtually (e.g. by electronic means, such as telephone or computer), unless otherwise specified 
in the Society’s Constitution or Bylaws.  For a meeting to be an official meeting of the Society, 
details of the meeting must be recorded and reported in the official records kept in the 
Society’s Office. 


SECTION 2. There shall be one (1) REGULAR MEETING of the Society per year at which the 
Governing Board shall convene in-person.     This meeting shall be at a time and place 
recommended by the Executive Committee and approved by the Governing Board. 


SECTION 3.   The regular meeting shall be known as the ANNUAL MEETING, and shall 
be for the purpose of announcing officers for the coming year, receiving reports of officers and 
committees, and for any other business that may arise. 


SECTION 4.  SPECIAL MEETINGS may be called by the Executive Committee or the 
Governing Board, as stated in the Bylaws. The purpose of the meeting shall be stated in the 
call. 







 


 


SECTION 5.    A QUORUM of the Governing Board shall consist of two-thirds (2/3) of the 
elected members. The appointed officers and the Second-Past President may serve as voting 
alternates for the elected members. 


In the Bylaws, Under: 
ARTICLE III.   DUTIES OF THE OFFICERS AND GOVERNING BOARD 
MEMBERS 


Change: 


SECTION 4. The SECRETARY shall: 


(a) be responsible for the minutes of all Governing Board and Executive Committee meetings 
(b) call the roll at the executive Committee and Governing Board meetings and determine the 


presence of a quorum 


(c) submit a written report for each regularly scheduled meeting of the Governing Board and 
Executive Committee. 


(d) perform all of the duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as 
requested by the President, the Executive Committee and/or the Governing Board. 


(e) In the absence of the Secretary from any meeting of the Governing Board or Executive 
Committee, a Secretary pro tempore may be appointed by the President to record the minutes 
of the meeting. 


(f) If either the President or the Executive Director are unavailable, the Secretary can act as 
signatory in one of their steads. 


To: 
SECTION 4. The SECRETARY shall: 


(a) be responsible for the minutes of all Governing Board and Executive Committee meetings, 
whether these meetings are in-person or virtual 


(b) call the roll at the executive Committee and Governing Board meetings and determine the 
presence of a quorum 


(c) submit a written report for each regularly scheduled meeting of the Governing Board and 
Executive Committee. 


(d) perform all of the duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as 
requested by the President, the Executive Committee and/or the Governing Board. 


(e) In the absence of the Secretary from any meeting of the Governing Board or Executive 
Committee, a Secretary pro tempore may be appointed by the President to record the minutes 
of the meeting. 


(f) If either the President or the Executive Director are unavailable, the Elected Secretary can act 
as signatory in one of their steads. 







 


 


  







 


 


ATTACHMENT 3: 
 
In order to enable electronic balloting, in general, for Society business: 
 
Change the Constitution: 
ARTICLE VIII.  OFFICERS 


SECTION 2.  The ELECTED OFFICERS of the Society shall consist of a President, President-
Elect, Past President, Secretary, and Treasurer.   Candidates for these offices shall meet the 
qualifications as set forth in the Bylaws of the Society.  These officers shall be elected by the 
members eligible to vote, as stated in the Bylaws, by means of a ballot according to the 
procedure listed in the Bylaws of the Society. These officers shall perform the duties listed in the 
Bylaws of the Society and the parliamentary authority adopted by the Society. 


To: 
SECTION 2.  The ELECTED OFFICERS of the Society shall consist of a President, President-
Elect, Past President, Secretary, and Treasurer.   Candidates for these offices shall meet the 
qualifications as set forth in the Bylaws of the Society.  These officers shall be elected by the 
members eligible to vote, as stated in the Bylaws, by means of either a physical or electronic 
ballot according to the procedure listed in the Bylaws of the Society. These officers shall perform 
the duties listed in the Bylaws of the Society and the parliamentary authority adopted by the 
Society. 


  







 


 


ATTACHMENT 4: 


In order to more completely reflect recent changes to Website 
operations, and to respect the importance of this Society tool to both 
members and Society operations, we recommend the following 
changes to split the web-editor and Office web-site responsibilities: 


To the Bylaws, Change: 


SECTION 6.  WEBSITE.  The Web Editor is an appointed position serving a 3-year term.  The 
Web Editor shall: 


(a) be responsible for the Web site. 


(b) provide written reports of Web site activity including Analytics of the website at the physical 
meetings of the Executive Committee. 


(c) provide a financial update on the Web site budget and expenses in the prior-mentioned 
written report.  
(d)  make  recommendations  in  the  prior-mentioned  written  report  to  the  Executive  
Committee  for 
improvement to the Web site format, technology platforms, and Web site 
operation. 
(e) The Web Editor's duties shall include: determining the structure and content of the Web 
site, review and approval of contractors for presentation for final approval by the Executive 
Committee or Governing Board,  liaison  with other  committees  to  provide  support on 
committee  projects  that require a Web presence or Web survey 


(f) The Web Editor may recommend appointment of a paid editorial staff to assist him/her.  
Appointment requests will be reviewed and if acceptable approved by the Executive Committee. 


(g) The Web Editor may appoint a volunteer (unpaid) editorial staff to assist him/her.  
Appointment will require a letter signed by the volunteer and the Web Editor including the length 
of appointment, acknowledging the unpaid nature of the appointment, and will come into effect 
only after the letter has been received at the Society Office by the Executive Director or 
Executive Director’s representative. 


(h) The Web Editor may request that the Society Office staff provide regular updates to certain 
sections of the Web site.  The Web Editor may wish to review pages and conduct testing prior 
to their being made live.  The Web Editor should communicate to the Society Office staff if 
review and/or testing is required or not on a project-by-project basis.  In cases where the Society 
Office staff are required to provide Web site work, a timeframe for the work should be 
constructed and communicated which takes into account staff availability and project criticality.  
Assignment of staff will be made and communicated by the Executive Director. 


To: 


SECTION 7.  WEBSITE.   







 


 


(a) The Web Editor is an appointed position serving a 3-year term.  The Web Editor shall: 


(i) be responsible for the content in the member-visible sections of the Web site.  


(ii) provide written reports of member Web site activity including Analytics of the website 
at the physical meetings of the Executive Committee. 


(iii)  make  recommendations  in  the  prior-mentioned  written  report  to  the  Executive  
Committee  for improvement to the Web site format and technology platforms, specific to 
member website use. 


(iv)  liaison with other  committees  to  provide  support on committee  projects  that 
require a Web presence or Web survey 


(v) The Web Editor may recommend appointment of a paid editorial staff to assist him/her.  
Appointment requests will be reviewed and if acceptable approved by the Executive 
Committee. 


(vi) The Web Editor may appoint a volunteer (unpaid) editorial staff to assist him/her.  
Appointment will require a letter signed by the volunteer and the Web Editor including the 
length of appointment, acknowledging the unpaid nature of the appointment, and will come 
into effect only after the letter has been received at the Society Office by the Executive 
Director or Executive Director’s representative. 


(vii) The Web Editor may request that the Society Office staff provide regular updates to 
certain sections of the Web site.  The Web Editor may wish to review pages and conduct 
testing prior to their being made live.  The Web Editor should communicate to the Society 
Office staff if review and/or testing is required or not on a project-by-project basis.  In cases 
where the Society Office staff are required to provide Web site work, a timeframe for the 
work should be constructed and communicated which takes into account staff availability 
and project criticality.  Assignment of staff will be made and communicated by the Executive 
Director. 


(b) The Executive Director shall be responsible for the business-end of the website, and will: 
(i) provide a financial update on the Web site budget and expenses to the Treasurer for 
inclusion in the Treasurer’s reports.  
(ii)  make  recommendations  in  a written  report  to  the  Executive  Committee  for 
improvement to the Web site format and technology platforms, specific to Web site business 
operation. 
(ii) Work with the Web Editor to determine the structure and content of the overall 
Web site, in order to meet both the member and business needs of the website.  The 
Executive Director will review and approve contractors for presentation for final approval by 
the Executive Committee or Governing Board 


  







 


 


ATTACHMENT 5: 
 
In order to make the Bylaws of the Society consistent with the Laws of 
the Land: 
 
Change: ARTICLE XVIII.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 


SECTION 1.  ANNUAL AUDIT.  The financial accounts and records of the Society shall be 
subjected to an annual audit by a Certified Public Accountant approved by the Executive 
Committee. 


To: 
SECTION 1.  AUDITS.  The financial accounts and records of the Society shall be subjected 
to audits by a Certified Public Accountant approved by the Executive Committee at the intervals 
required by the State in which the Office operates.  The audit schedule will be consistent with 
requirements to maintain the Society’s non-profit status. 


  







 


 


ATTACHMENT 6: 
 
In order to formally recognize a STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE position 
in the Society, and enable future Student appointments and 
development toward career participation in the Society, the following 
changes are recommended: 
 
 
To the Constitution Under ARTICLE VIII.  OFFICERS: 


Change: 


SECTION 6.  The APPOINTED OFFICERS of the Society shall be the Editor-in-Chief of the 
Journal, the Newsletter  Editor,  the  Web  Editor,  the  Membership  Committee Chairperson, 
and  the  Regional  and Technical Section Affairs Coordinator.  These officers shall perform the 
duties prescribed by the Bylaws of the Society.   These officers shall be appointed by the 
Governing Board upon recommendation of the Executive Committee and shall serve for a three 
(3) year renewable term or until their successors are appointed.   The appointed officers shall 
begin their respective terms at the beginning of the calendar year. 


To: 


SECTION 6.  The APPOINTED OFFICERS of the Society shall be the Editor-in-Chief of the 
Journal, the Newsletter  Editor,  the  Web  Editor,  the  Membership  Committee Chairperson, 
and the  Regional  and Technical Section Affairs Coordinator.  These officers shall perform the 
duties prescribed by the Bylaws of the Society.   These officers shall be appointed by the 
Governing Board upon recommendation of the Executive Committee and shall serve for a three 
(3) year renewable term or until their successors are appointed.   The appointed officers shall 
begin their respective terms at the beginning of the calendar year.  Along with the 
appointments listed above, a Student Representative will be elected by the Student Members of 
the Society, and this Student Representative will be put forward for acceptance and appointment 
by the Governing Board to serve a two year term as a non-voting Officer of the Society, until 
their successor is appointed. 


 
In the Bylaws, Under ARTICLE I.  MEMBERS 


Change: 
 


SECTION 7.  A STUDENT MEMBER shall not hold National Society office, nor serve as a voting 
delegate to the National Society Governing Board Meetings except as an official representative of 
an organized student section, nor vote on any matters pertaining to the Society except as an 
official representative of an organized student section.   Student Members can serve as 
Student Section, Technical Section, or Regional Section officers and committee members at the 
regional and international level.  The extent of his/her participation in the business of a Student, 







 


 


Regional, or Technical Section is the prerogative of that Section except for the limitations stated 
in the Constitution and Bylaws of the Society.  Student Members shall have an annual 
subscription to Applied Spectroscopy by reason of dues paid. 


To: 
SECTION 7.  A STUDENT shall be elected by a majority vote of the Society’s Student Members 
and put forward for appointment by the Governing Board to be the official “STUDENT 
REPRESENTATIVE” to represent the needs of students in a non-voting capacity on the 
Executive Committee.  Beyond the official STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE, students cannot hold 
elected National Society office, nor serve as a voting delegate to the National Society Governing 
Board Meetings except as an official representative of an organized student section, nor vote on 
any matters pertaining to the Society except as an official representative of an organized 
student section.   Student Members can serve as Student Section, Technical Section, or 
Regional Section officers and committee members at the regional and international level.  The 
extent of his/her participation in the business of a Student, Regional, or Technical Section is the 
prerogative of that Section except for the limitations stated in the Constitution and Bylaws of the 
Society.  Student Members shall have an annual subscription to Applied Spectroscopy by reason 
of dues paid. 


  


To recognize the student role, and then also recognize the 
future career of these students, Under ARTICLE II.  
QUALIFICATIONS FOR ELECTION/APPOINTMENT 


Change: 


SECTION 1.  Only members in good standing of the Society shall serve as elected or 
appointed officers or Governing Board members. 


 


SECTION 2. Elected candidates for Society office shall have served at least one year in one of 
the following capacities: executive committee elected or appointed member, journal editorial 
board member, delegate to the Governing Board, Regional or Technical Section officer, or chair 
of a Society committee. Appointed candidates for Society office must be a Member in Good 
Standing. 


To: 


SECTION 1.  Only non-student members in good standing of the Society shall serve as 
elected officers or Governing Board members.  Members in good standing of the Society, 
including student members, may serve as appointed officers. 


 


SECTION 2. Elected candidates for Society office shall have served at least one year in one of 
the following capacities: executive committee elected or appointed member, journal editorial 







 


 


board member, delegate to the Governing Board, Regional or Technical Section officer, or chair 
of a Society committee. Appointed positions held during a regular member’s student involvement 
with the Society will count toward this requirement.  Appointed candidates for Society office must 
be a Member in Good Standing. 


 


ATTACHMENT 7: 
 
In order to better enable the President to have an impact at PittCon in 
their year as President, we recommend the following change: 
 


Under Bylaws ARTICLE III.   DUTIES OF THE OFFICERS AND 
GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS,  


Change: 
 
SECTION 2.  The PRESIDENT-ELECT shall: 


(a) perform all duties that may be delegated to him/her. 


(b) appoint such committee chairs-elect and members as specified by the Bylaws.  The 
President-Elect or his/her designee shall be Chair of the Constitution and Bylaws Committee. 


(c) maintain proper signature authority on Society accounts with such authority being limited to 
the Treasurer, the Executive Director, and the person chosen to be President-Elect on the same 
ballot from which the Treasurer is chosen.   The said incoming President-elect shall continue to 
have signature authority during his/her term as President and as Past President, a total of three 
years. 


(d) serve as a FACSS Delegate.  If unable to participate the President-Elect shall propose an 
alternative for Executive Committee approval.  Alternatives must be a member in good standing. 


To: 
SECTION 2.  The PRESIDENT-ELECT shall: 


(a) perform all duties that may be delegated to him/her. 


(b) appoint such committee chairs-elect and members as specified by the Bylaws.  The 
President-Elect or his/her designee shall be Chair of the Constitution and Bylaws Committee. 


(c) maintain proper signature authority on Society accounts with such authority being limited to 
the Treasurer, the Executive Director, and the person chosen to be President-Elect on the same 
ballot from which the Treasurer is chosen.   The said incoming President-elect shall continue to 
have signature authority during his/her term as President and as Past President, a total of three 
years. 







 


 


(d) serve as a FACSS Delegate.  If unable to participate the President-Elect shall propose an 
alternative for Executive Committee approval.  Alternatives must be a member in good standing. 


(e) Organize/Supervise SAS-designated sessions for presentation at PittCon.  


 


 
 
  







 


 


ATTACHMENT 8: 


 
In order to better include recognition for contribution to SAS in the 
Fellows selection criteria, we propose the following three changes (one 
to Constitution, two to Bylaws): 
 
To the Constitution: 
 
Under ARTICLE IV. MEMBERSHIP 
 
Change: 
SECTION 10. FELLOWS are individual members recognized for their outstanding service to the field of 
spectroscopy. Fellows must continue to be members in good standing of the Society in order to maintain 
Fellow status 


To 


SECTION 10. FELLOWS are individual members recognized for their outstanding service to the field of 
Spectroscopy, including service to the Society for Applied Spectroscopy. Fellows must continue to be 
members in good standing of the Society in order to maintain Fellow status. 
 
To make the Bylaws consistent: 
 


Under ARTICLE I.  MEMBERS 
 
Change: 
SECTION 11.   A FELLOW is a Society member recognized for outstanding service to the field of 
spectroscopy.  Fellows must continue to be members in good standing of the Society in order to 
maintain Fellow status. Honorary members as defined in Article 1, Section 5 shall receive the title 
of Fellow but are exempt from dues by virtue of receiving Honorary member status. 


To 
 
SECTION 11.   A FELLOW is a Society member recognized for outstanding service to the field of 
spectroscopy, including service to the Society for Applied Spectroscopy.  Fellows must continue to 
be members in good standing of the Society in order to maintain Fellow status. Honorary 
members as defined in Article 1, Section 5 shall receive the title of Fellow but are exempt from 
dues by virtue of receiving Honorary member status. 


Also in the Bylaws, Under ARTICLE XVI.  AWARDS 
 
Change: 
SECTION 9.  FELLOWS.  This award is established to recognize individual members for their 
outstanding service to the field of spectroscopy.  The award consists of a plaque and recognition 
at the SAS annual meeting.  Up to 12 Fellows per year may be selected.  Nomination for the 
award of Fellow must be made by current SAS Fellows, the Executive Committee, the Governing 







 


 


Board, or the Fellows Committee.  The Fellows committee shall review all nominations and shall 
forward the award slate to the SAS Executive Committee for final approval.  Fellows must 
continue to be members in good standing of the Society in order to maintain Fellow status.   All 
Honorary Members of the Society shall be granted Fellowship automatically. 


To: 
 
SECTION 9.  FELLOWS.  This award is established to recognize individual members for their 
outstanding service to the field of spectroscopy and service to the Society for Applied 
Spectroscopy should be a strong consideration.  The award consists of a plaque and recognition 
at the SAS annual meeting.  Up to 12 Fellows per year may be selected.  Nomination for the 
award of Fellow must be made by current SAS Fellows, the Executive Committee, the Governing 
Board, or the Fellows Committee.  The Fellows committee shall review all nominations and shall 
forward the award slate to the SAS Executive Committee for final approval.  Fellows must 
continue to be members in good standing of the Society in order to maintain Fellow status.   All 
Honorary Members of the Society shall be granted Fellowship automatically. 


  







 


 


ATTACHMENT 9: 
 
In order to enable continuous enhancement of the Society’s ability to 
disseminate knowledge, in accordance with its stated objectives, we 
recommend the following option-enabling changes to the Publications 
guidance in the Constitution and Bylaws: 
 
To the Constitution: 
Under ARTICLE XIV.  PUBLICATIONS 


Change: 


SECTION 1.  The journal Applied Spectroscopy shall be the official publication of the Society 
and shall be distributed to the membership in accordance with the provisions of the Bylaws.  
The Society may also publish a membership newsletter. 


SECTION 2. The Journal and Newsletter shall operate on a budget approved by the Governing 
Board. 


SECTION 3.  The Editor-in-Chief of the Journal shall appoint his/her own staff and is 
responsible for the policy of the Journal. 


To: 
 


SECTION 1.  The journal Applied Spectroscopy shall be an official publication of the Society and 
shall be distributed to the membership in accordance with the provisions of the Bylaws.  The 
Society may also publish a membership newsletter, as well as additional Journals or 
Newsletters, in accordance with the Bylaws.. 


SECTION 2. Journals and Newsletters shall operate on a budget approved by the Governing 
Board. 


SECTION 3.  The Editor-in-Chief of the Applied Spectroscopy Journal shall appoint his/her own 
staff and is responsible for the policy of the Journal.  Additional Journals will also have Editor-in-
Chiefs, with similar responsibilities. 


 
 
 
To the Bylaws Under ARTICLE X.  PUBLICATIONS 


Change: 
SECTION 2.  JOURNAL. The Editor-in-Chief is an appointed position serving a three (3) year 
term.   The Editor-in-Chief of Applied Spectroscopy shall: 


(a) be responsible for the regular publication of the Journal of the Society. 







 


 


(b) have the prerogative of appointing an editorial advisory board to assist him/her. 


(c) have the prerogative of hiring editorial secretarial help, with the approval of the Executive 


Committee.  


(d) receive scientific papers, consider with the assistance of appropriate reviewers their 


suitability for publication, and prepare those acceptable for publication with a minimum of delay. 


(e) promote the publication of announcements of meetings of the Society and related 
organizations, abstracts of papers, book reviews, personal notes concerning members, et 
cetera. 


(f) approve the publication of Society News which the Editor deems is suitable for inclusion in 
the Journal. News which the Editor considers unsuitable for the Journal shall be referred to the 
Newsletter Editor for consideration in the Newsletter and the Publicity Committee for 
consideration for publication in the Society’s social media outlets 


(g) continually strive to improve the professional reputation of the Journal within the limits of the 
annual budget of the Journal. 


(h) establish all subscription rates to the Journal, other than those through membership, with 
approval of the Executive Committee. 


SECTION 3.  Applied Spectroscopy shall be published no less than twelve (12) times per year. 


SECTION 4.  Members outside the United States may be assessed an additional charge to 
cover delivery costs of print copies of Applied Spectroscopy.   The delivery charge shall be set 
by the Executive Committee on the basis of recommendations by the Editor-in-Chief. 


SECTION 5. The following provisions apply to Applied Spectroscopy: 


(a) Approval of all manuscripts for publication in Applied Spectroscopy may be made only by 
the Editor- in-Chief, following recommendations from external reviewers. 


(b) All manuscripts submitted for publication in Applied Spectroscopy shall not have been 
published elsewhere except in the form of company or government reports. 


(c)  Publication  in  Applied  Spectroscopy  is  not  a  requirement  for  papers  presented  at  
meetings  or symposia sponsored by the Society or Regional Sections. 


(d) Groups of papers on closely related topics, proceedings of meetings, or symposia may be 
published as separate volumes. 


(e) Special invited papers and critical reviews may be published. 


(f) Only the Society may copyright material in the name of the Society for Applied Spectroscopy.  
If a volume is to be copyrighted by a Regional Section, the suggested form is "Copyright, 20xx, 
Northwestern Section, Society for Applied Spectroscopy." 







 


 


(g)  The Society for Applied Spectroscopy shall own the copyright for the original and any 
renewal term thereof of any manuscript of an author which is published by the Society.   The 
author of any such manuscript shall have the right to make a nonprofit or noncommercial 
use of the work provided that he/she affixes to each copy the copyright notice used by the 
Society when the manuscript was first published.  The author shall have the right to make or 
authorize any for-profit or commercial use of any such writing only after first obtaining the written 
consent of the Executive Director. 


 


To: 
SECTION 2.  JOURNALS. The Editor-in-Chief of any Society-owned Journal is an appointed 
position serving a three (3) year term.    


The Editor-in-Chief shall: 


(a) be responsible for the regular publication of the Journal of the Society. 


(b) have the prerogative of appointing an editorial advisory board to assist him/her. 


(c) have the prerogative of hiring editorial secretarial help, with the approval of the Executive 


Committee.  


(d) receive scientific papers, consider with the assistance of appropriate reviewers their 


suitability for publication, and prepare those acceptable for publication with a minimum of delay. 


(e) promote the publication of announcements of meetings of the Society and related 
organizations, abstracts of papers, book reviews, personal notes concerning members, et 
cetera. 


(f) approve the publication of Society News which the Editor deems is suitable for inclusion in 
the Journal. News which the Editor considers unsuitable for the Journal shall be referred to the 
Newsletter Editor for consideration in the Newsletter and the Publicity Committee for 
consideration for publication in the Society’s social media outlets 


(g) continually strive to improve the professional reputation of the Journal within the limits of the 
annual budget of the Journal. 


(h) establish all subscription rates to the Journal, other than those through membership, with 
approval of the Executive Committee. 


SECTION 3.  The following applies to any Journal of the Society:  The Society for Applied 
Spectroscopy shall own the copyright for the original and any renewal term thereof of any 
manuscript of an author which is published by the Society.   The author of any such manuscript 
shall have the right to make a nonprofit or noncommercial use of the work provided that 
he/she affixes to each copy the copyright notice used by the Society when the manuscript was 
first published.  The author shall have the right to make or authorize any for-profit or commercial 
use of any such writing only after first obtaining the written consent of the Executive Director. 







 


 


SECTION 4.  The Journal Applied Spectroscopy shall be published no less than 
twelve (12) times per year. 


SECTION 5.  Members outside the United States may be assessed an additional charge to 
cover delivery costs of print copies of Applied Spectroscopy.   The delivery charge shall be set 
by the Executive Committee on the basis of recommendations by the Editor-in-Chief. 


SECTION 6. The following provisions apply to Applied Spectroscopy: 


(a) Approval of all manuscripts for publication in Applied Spectroscopy may be made only by 
the Editor- in-Chief, following recommendations from external reviewers. 


(b) All manuscripts submitted for publication in Applied Spectroscopy shall not have been 
published elsewhere except in the form of company or government reports. 


(c)  Publication  in  Applied  Spectroscopy  is  not  a  requirement  for  papers  presented  at  
meetings  or symposia sponsored by the Society or Regional Sections. 


(d) Groups of papers on closely related topics, proceedings of meetings, or symposia may be 
published as separate volumes. 


(e) Special invited papers and critical reviews may be published. 


(f) Only the Society may copyright material in the name of the Society for Applied Spectroscopy.  
If a volume is to be copyrighted by a Regional Section, the suggested form is "Copyright, 20xx, 
Northwestern Section, Society for Applied Spectroscopy." 


This same effort also requires a change to the Publications Committee  


Under ARTICLE XV.  COMMITTEES 


Change: 


SECTION  13.    PUBLICATIONS  COMMITTEE.    This  committee  shall  consist  of  a  total  of  
five  (5) members.  The chair-elect is appointed for a three (3) year term (as chair-elect for one 
year, chair for one year, and past-chair for one year).  Membership of the committee shall 
include the Editor-in-Chief and Editor of the journal.  Every other year one other member is 
appointed for a two (2) year term.     This committee shall: 


(a) serve in an advisory capacity to the Editor-in-Chief of the Journal, the Newsletter Editor, and 
the Executive Director regarding Applied Spectroscopy, the Newsletter, and other publications 
undertaken by the Society. 


(c) review applications for the position of Editor-in-Chief of the Journal and Newsletter Editor, 
when these positions need to be filled, and forward recommendations first to the Executive 
Committee and then to the Governing Board for approval. 


To: 







 


 


SECTION  13.    PUBLICATIONS  COMMITTEE.    This  committee  shall  consist  of  a  total  of  
at least five  (5) members.  The chair-elect is appointed for a three (3) year term (as chair-elect 
for one year, chair for one year, and past-chair for one year).  Membership of the committee 
shall include the Editor-in-Chief and Editor of each journal.  Every other year one other member 
is appointed for a two (2) year term.     This committee shall: 


(a) serve in an advisory capacity to the Editor-in-Chief of the Journal(s), the Newsletter Editor(s), 
and the Executive Director regarding the Journal(s), the Newsletter(s), and other publications 
undertaken by the Society. 


(b) review applications for the position of Editor-in-Chief of the Journal(s) and Newsletter 
Editor(s), when these positions need to be filled, and forward recommendations first to the 
Executive Committee and then to the Governing Board for approval. 


ATTACHMENT 10:  To provide clarifying guidance to members on the 
relative responsibilities of the Society and its Regional Affiliates and 
Sections. 


 


The inspiration for this guidance are the published documents of the American Chemical 
Society. 


 


Within the Constitution, change: 


ARTICLE IX.  GOVERNMENT 


SECTION 1. The Society shall be governed by the elected officers and the 
Governing Board. 


SECTION 2.  The GOVERNING BOARD shall consist of the elected officers, the second-Past 
President, and 10 elected members.  Those elected shall consist of 10 at-large members 
elected by the Society membership.     In addition, each Technical, Student, or Regional 
Section may send one voting delegate to represent that Section. 


SECTION 3.  Each elected Governing Board Member and each Regional, Student, or Technical 
Section delegate will have one vote.   Elected member terms shall be two (2) years, and 
members can be re- elected for future terms. 


SECTION  4.   A  QUORUM  of  the  Governing  Board  shall consist  of  two-thirds  (2/3)  of  
the  elected members.  The appointed officers and the Second-Past President may serve as 
voting alternates for the elected members. 


SECTION  5.    The  elected  officers,  as  voting  members,  and  the  appointed  officers  as  
non-voting members, shall constitute an EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE which shall assume 







 


 


responsibility for the government and welfare of the Society in the interim between Governing 
Board meetings. 


To: 


ARTICLE IX.  GOVERNANCE  


SECTION 1.  The SOCIETY shall be composed of members who in turn may be 
members of its Regional, Technical or Student Sections.  It shall be governed by its 
elected officials and a Governing Board which, in addition to such duties as may be 
prescribed in this Constitution and Bylaws of the SOCIETY, shall: 


1)  Act as an advisory body; a Board of Directors, which shall be the legal 
representative of the SOCIETY and establish its administrative policies; 
committees of both the Executive Committee and of the Board; and such officers 
and employees as are necessary to effectuate its purposes. 


2) Have responsibility for consistent Society-wide promotion of member interests, 
via various communications, awards, branding, marketing and development or 
maintenance of Regional, Technical and Student Sections. 


SECTION 2. The GOVERNING BOARD shall consist of the elected officers, the 
second-Past President, and 10 elected members.  Those elected shall consist of 10 
at-large members elected by the Society membership.     In addition, each 
Technical, Student, or Regional Section may send one voting delegate to represent 
that Section. 


SECTION 3.  Each elected Governing Board Member and each Regional, Student, or Technical 
Section delegate will have one vote.   Elected member terms shall be two (2) years, and 
members can be re- elected for future terms. 


SECTION  4.   A  QUORUM  of  the  Governing  Board  shall consist  of  two-thirds  (2/3)  of  
the  elected members.  The appointed officers and the Second-Past President may serve as 
voting alternates for the elected members. 


SECTION  5.    The  elected  officers,  as  voting  members,  and  the  appointed  officers  as  
non-voting members, shall constitute an EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE which shall assume 
responsibility for the government and welfare of the Society in the interim between Governing 
Board meetings. 


 


FROM the Constitution, also change: 


ARTICLE V.  REGIONAL SECTIONS 


SECTION 3.  The Constitution and Bylaws of such Regional Sections shall be consistent and in 
harmony with the Objective and the Constitution and Bylaws of the Society.   They shall be 
submitted to the Constitution and Bylaws Committee for approval prior to approval by the 







 


 


Governing Board of the Society; any subsequent changes must also be submitted to this 
committee for approval prior to approval by the Governing Board. 


To: 


ARTICLE V.  REGIONAL SECTIONS 


SECTION 3.  The Constitution and Bylaws of such Regional Sections shall be consistent and in 
harmony with the Objective and the Constitution and Bylaws of the Society.  By its meetings, 
professional contacts, reports, papers, discussions and publications, Regional Sections should 
promote the advancement and dissemination of knowledge and information concerning the art 
and science of spectroscopy and other allied sciences, providing the greatest benefits for local 
members and industry.  The Constitution and Bylaws of such Regional Sections shall be 
submitted to the Constitution and Bylaws Committee for approval prior to approval by the 
Governing Board of the Society; any subsequent changes must also be submitted to this 
committee for approval prior to approval by the Governing Board. 


FROM the Constitution, also change: 


 


ARTICLE VI.  TECHNICAL SECTIONS 


SECTION 2.  The Constitution and Bylaws of such Technical Sections shall be consistent and in 
harmony with the Objective and the Constitution and Bylaws of the Society.   They shall be 
submitted to the Constitution and Bylaws Committee for approval prior to approval by the 
Governing Board of the Society; any subsequent changes must also be submitted to this 
committee for approval prior to approval by the Governing Board. 


To: 


ARTICLE VI.  TECHNICAL SECTIONS 


SECTION 2.  The Constitution and Bylaws of such Technical Sections shall be consistent and in 
harmony with the Objective and the Constitution and Bylaws of the Society. By its meetings, 
professional contacts, reports, papers, discussions and publications, Technical Sections should 
promote the advancement and dissemination of knowledge and information concerning specific 
aspects of the art and science of spectroscopy and other allied sciences, providing the greatest 
benefits to members and industry with related technical interests.  The Constitution and Bylaws 
of such Technical Sections shall be submitted to the Constitution and Bylaws Committee for 
approval prior to approval by the Governing Board of the Society; any subsequent changes must 
also be submitted to this committee for approval prior to approval by the Governing Board. 


 


FROM the Constitution, also change: 


ARTICLE VII.  STUDENT SECTIONS 







 


 


SECTION 2.  The Constitution and Bylaws of such Student Sections shall be consistent and in 
harmony with the Objective and the Constitution and Bylaws of the Society.   They shall be 
submitted to the Constitution and Bylaws Committee for approval prior to approval by the 
Governing Board of the Society; any subsequent changes must also be submitted to this 
committee for approval prior to approval by the Governing Board. 


To: 


ARTICLE VII.  STUDENT SECTIONS 


SECTION 2.  The Constitution and Bylaws of such Student Sections shall be consistent and in 
harmony with the Objective and the Constitution and Bylaws of the Society By its meetings, 
professional contacts, reports, papers, discussions and publications, Student Sections should 
promote the advancement and dissemination of knowledge and information concerning the art 
and science of spectroscopy and other allied sciences, providing educational and professional 
development opportunities for Student members.  The Constitution and Bylaws of such Student 
Sections shall be submitted to the Constitution and Bylaws Committee for approval prior to 
approval by the Governing Board of the Society; any subsequent changes must also be 
submitted to this committee for approval prior to approval by the Governing Board.  
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Fellows Report – EC-Nominated Candidates 
9/22/14 


 
 
Following receipt of the Fellows report, the EC decided to consider additional Fellows 
candidates.  The EC considered and voted by telecon in April to grant Fellows status to the 
following additional individuals.  
 
Dr. John Jackovitz was nominated. This nomination was based on his stalwart support and 
enduring contributions to the Society for Applied Spectroscopy.  This contribution includes 
coordination between Pittcon, SSP, and SAS. Service as President of the Society 1981, the foundation of 
the National Office and the appointment of its first Executive Secretary, Donna Welch was during his 
presidential tenure, local section delegate to the Governing Board Delegate.  John has also served in 
coordination roles and/or Board roles with our technical affiliate the Coblentz Society, and with FACSS.  
John received SAS’s Distinguished Service Award in 2001.  John’s scientific career outside SAS, involved 
service as President of Pittcon, he was instrumental in founding the Society for Electroanalytical 
Chemistry, author of over 40 papers and 30 patents. 
 
Professor Mary Kate Donais was nominated. This nomination was based on her work on the 
application of spectroscopy to archeological problems. Her dedicated work at the local and 
international level on behalf of the Society, including recent activities under the auspices of 
Society President and as chair and chaperone of the recent major updates of the Society’s 
bylaws, was also determined to be factors in your selection.   
 
Report prepared by 
 
Ian R. Lewis 
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SAS Fellows Committee Nominations 2014-2015 
 


Nominee Main Basis Comments 
Kathryn Bakeev 
 


SAS Contribution Service as SAS president, she has been consistent, 
reliable, and professional as an organizer of symposia 
for FACSS. 


Colin Bain Research World class spectroscopic research in both 
fundamental and applied studies with an average of 
90 citations per article published. 


Rohit Bhargava Research Pioneering recent developments and applications  of 
FTIR imaging and applications for cancer and disease 
diagnostics and other applications evidenced by 
Meggers Award 1999, 2002; Coblenz Craver Award 
(2013), FACSS 2012 Innovation award and SAS 
Megger’s award (2014). 


David Cremers Research Led the way for the development of LIBS as a viable 
analytical technique.   


Rich Dluhy Research and SAS Has combined new enhancing surfaces for Raman 
with disease diagnostics to produce world leading 
applications of SERS that will benefit the public.  Also 
SAS UK tour speaker.  


Roy Goodacre Research and SAS World leader in using Raman and SERS for 
metabolomics and biological research.  Consistent 
organizer of biological SERS sessions for FACSS.  


Detlef Guenther Research The world leading authority on LA-ICPMS. 
Takeshi Hasegawa  World class work on the study molecular structure in 


organic ultra-thin films by using vibrational 
spectroscopic techniques evidenced by Coblenz 
Craver Award (2009) and Masao Horbia award (2005). 


David Hahn Research Steady and important contributions to the 
development of LIBS 


Paul Pudney Research One leading industrial scientist applying vibrational 
spectroscopy to food science in an industrial setting 
evidenced by high profile papers (see Nature 2000, 
406, 256) and 2013 Meggers award, as well being 
runner up in 2012 for the same award. 
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Report of the Fellows Committee to the Executive Committee 
 
 
The Fellows Committee recommends the following persons for Fellowship in the Society for 
Applied Spectroscopy.  The nominees are in alphabetical order. 
 
Ricardo Aroca of the University of Windsor 
Research:  Aroca is one of the pioneers of surface enhanced vibrational spectroscopy.  He has 
published seminal works on Raman and SERS detection (which includes a textbook on the area) 
which have provided demonstration of the use of SERS for analytical applications. 
 
Karl Booksh of the University of Delaware 
Research:  Booksh is a leader in fiber optic surface plasmon resonance Raman.  In addition, he 
is a specialist in the development of fluorescence detectors.  Several of his early papers on the 
subject of sensors have been cited so frequently that they are now considered classics. 
SAS:  Karl is a consistent contributor and organizer of sessions for FACSS (now SciX) in the 
area of SPR and sensing. 
 
Naresh Dalal of Florida State University 
Research:  Dalal is an international leader in the use of ESR spectroscopy, and for the hybrid 
technique of electron-nuclear double resonance.  His research encompasses a wide range of 
materials, including application of the technique to the analysis of superconductive materials, 
cooperative phase transitions, ferroelectric materials, and thermal and quantum phase transitions.  
He holds the Dirac Chair in Chemistry at Florida State University. 
 
Rina Dukor of Bio Tools 
Research:  Rina Dukor is the co-Founder and president of Bio Tools Inc.  Aside from her 
contributions to technology, she has significantly contributed to the acceptance of vibrational 
circular dichroism and Raman optical activity for analysis in the pharmaceutical industry and 
with the acceptance of these techniques by regulatory agencies.  
SAS:  Rina has been involved with SAS over many years.  She is particularly involved in SAS-
sponsored seminars that assist and encourage young colleagues in their activities to establish 
companies.  







Sergei Kazarian of Imperial College, London 
Research:  Kazarian has become one of the world-wide experts in the field of FT-IR/ATR 
imaging spectroscopy.   His use of FTIR and Raman spectroscopies to study supercritical fluids, 
ionic liquids and near-critical water have led to a clearer understanding of these complex 
systems. 
SAS:  He contributed focus articles in Applied Spectroscopy and organized sessions in his 
research field for SAS events, thereby supporting the dissemination of this technology in the 
scientific community.  
 
Igor Lednev of the State University of New York at Albany 
Research:  Lednev is involved in cutting-edge developments in laser spectroscopy for forensic 
applications and biomedical research, including diagnostic of diseases such as Alzheimer’s and 
Parkinson’s diseases. 
SAS: Igor regularly speaks at SAS meetings, and contributes to SAS related events and 
publications.  It should also be mentioned that he has recently been selected to be an advisory 
member of the White House subcommittee on forensic science. 
 
Jim Rydzak of GlaxoSmithKline 
Research:  Rydzak is a recognized expert in the field of process analytical technology based on 
vibrational spectroscopy in combination with chemometric evaluation techniques.  He is 
especially known for his application of these techniques to pharmaceutical process control.  
SAS:  Jim is very actively involved in SAS and the Coblentz Society, as well as the Eastern 
Analytical Symposium and PittCon. He has been on the Governing Board (and was chair) of 
FACSS.    
 
Nicholas Stone of the University of Exeter 
Research:  Stone is an NIHR Career Scientist Research Fellow.  He has pioneered novel optical 
diagnostics in the clinical environment, with techniques like in vivo Raman endoscopy.  He has 
numerous achievements, like the first genuinely confocal endoscopic Raman probe and the first 
Raman needle probe. 
SAS:  Stone has been involved in organizing sessions for FACSS.  He has been active in the 
organization of the Bioanalytical Section.  He contributes to the Meggars Award Committee. 
 
There were many fine candidates, but we considered these absolutely outstanding. I shall be 
happy to pass along all of the information to the chair of the Fellows Committee for 2015, once 
that person is known, as these other candidates are likely to be appropriate for a subsequent class 
of Fellows. 
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Society for Applied Spectroscopy  


The Premier Spectroscopic Information 
Source 


 
www.s-a-s.org 


1 www.s-a-s.org 







SAS RFP Meeting 


McKinley Room 
Tuesday 9/30/2014 


2 www.s-a-s.org 







Based on a Fundamental Review 
of All Aspects of the Society 


 
Driven by 2013 Budgetary Discussion 
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RFP Process 
• Original Material Created and provided to GB at SciX 2013 
• 3-person ad hoc Committee was formed in February 
• Mary Kate was appointed chair. 
• AMC Template completed with input as needed (including 


requests to the current office for additional information) 
• Process Started in Early July 
• Original List of 8 
• AMC Institute went out approx. same time 
• AMC members who replied to the RFP announcement 


received the RFP packet.   
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The “Original Eight” 
• Current National Office 
• Association Headquarters Inc.,  received 7/10/14. AH 


would not be submitting a proposal and included a list 
of AMCs that AH “knows and trusts” that we might 
want to consider (8/6/14). 


• Scientific Association Management, received (7/10/14).  
SAM (7/22/14) that indicated upon considering its 
current commitments to SciX/FACSS they would not be 
submitting a proposal. 


• SmithBucklin Corp., received (7/10/14). SmithBucklin 
indicated that they would not be submitting a proposal 
(8/20/14). 
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RFP Process 


• Mary Kate accepted as a clearing house for 
questions 


• A sanitized (no name) document of Q&A’s was 
produced and shared with all respondents 


• A separate DropBox Folder was established for 
each respondent. 


• Deadline August 22 for submissions 
• DropBox Folder closed to bidder at deadline  
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RFP Process 


• 15 proposals received 
 


• Dropbox Folders made available to voting EC 
 


• Voting EC reviewed proposals and have met 
on multiple occasions to score/review 
 


• GB Special meeting called (today) 
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Take Away’s at this Stage  
of the RFP 


• 15 different sets of input on the Society 
 


• Multiple vision inputs to the Society 
 


• Ultimately these proposals provide a resource 
of current industry practices, visions, etc to 
the Society 
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Take Away’s at this Stage  
of the RFP 


Identified Opportunities for SAS  
• Strategic Plan 
• Marketing the Society 
• Dashboard of Member Assets 
• On-line Presence (Web, social media etc) 
• Journal Cost / Staffing vs. Revenue 
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Status 


• 4 Groups (including our current office) appear 
to meet the RFP requests. 


 


10 www.s-a-s.org 







Based on a Fundamental Review 
of All Aspects of the Society 
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EC 2013/2014 Review  
Examples 


• Dues (no annual increases) 
• Subscriptions increase about 6% 
• SAS Spectroscopy Marketplace Investment 
• Newsletter Improvements 
• Web Development / Costs 
• Journal Publishing 
• New Journal Evaluation 
• Regional / Technical / Student Section Review and Engagement 
• Better Engagement with Certain Conferences 
• Budget Review / Breakdown / Analysis 
 
• But Still Need a SAS 2020 Vision 
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Financial Context 
Baseline is the Proposed 2015 Budget 
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Financial Context 
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Next Steps 


• 4 Groups (including our current office) appear to 
meet the RFP requests. 


 


Suggested Actions for Tomorrow 
a. GB stops process 
b. GB approval of the EC proceeding with further 


discussion with these 4 choices. 
– Timeframe (2 weeks post-SciX for update) 
– Additional meeting with GB (webex/telecon) 
– Decision 
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From the Desk of Bonnie Saylor, Executive Director of SAS 


Proposal to Save Costs on Website Maintenance and Development 
 
Objectives:  The goal of this proposal is continue with the maintenance and upgrades to the SAS 
website and backend databases while saving money over our current vendor, Caktus. 
  
Background:  This cost saving opportunity has been proposed in the past, but was passed on for 
further research which never occurred.  This is good time to revisit this option  
 
Proposal:  Beginning in 2015, switch from our current web development company, Caktus, and 
switch to a new company, Bixly, for the continued maintenance and development of our website 
and backend database. Bixly is a Django programming firm out of California that is very highly 
ranked in the field (see Attachment 1).  Bixly charges approximately $65 per hour compared to 
Caktus' $138 per hour.  The difference being we have dedicated programmers at Caktus and 
Bixly uses independent contractors.  Thus, we might not always have the same person working 
on our account like we currently do with Caktus. Bixly requires a minimum of 5 hours per week.  
At 20 hours a month (which is the minimum number of hours we are committed to with Caktus) 
that would be $1300 compared to Caktus at $2760 a month.  Yearly Bixly would be $16,900 
assuming we had no need for extra hours for a project.  We could use Bixly and continue with 
our current system at an annual cost of about $21,200 (this includes Bixly at $16,900 and hosting 
at $4300** - which Bixly thinks they will be able to lower) Total savings for 2015 would be 
approximately $16,000 (assuming no extra hours are needed on projects than the minimum 
contracted for).  The transition costs for 2015 would be about $1,000.   Also note that Bixly has a 
three day cancellation clause vs one month and no yearly contract.  Here is a link to Bixly's site 
for further information: http://bixly.com/ 


Next Steps:  This switch cannot happen immediately as Caktus is in the process of implementing 
our PayPal payment system and the certification program may also have an impact on timing, but 
we should consider whether or not to pursue this option for early to mid 2015.  The office, 
working in conjunction with the Treasurer and Web Editor, would be tasked with ironing out the 
details and time frame for the turnover after consultation and confirmation of details with Bixly 
representatives. 







From the Desk of Bonnie Saylor, Executive Director of SAS 


ATTACHMENT 1:  Bixly Ranking from 
http://www.bestwebdesignagencies.com 


Ranked Number 4 on the Best Django Developer & Best 
Django Development Company List- Sep 2014 


Overview of Bixly 


Adam Temple started Bixly.com shortly after his success as a co-founder, to programmer, to 
general manager at SermonSpice.com. There he learned to successfully run large, high-profile 
projects and the necessity for fine programming. Seeing a need for quality contract programming 
at a low price, he started Bixly. 
 
There he learned something you probably already know – it’s puzzling to find a company that is 
both high quality and economic. Finding just one of those qualities in a company isn’t very 
difficult. A group that is both? This is essentially where Bixly is positioned. Paying for the 
quality your project deserves doesn’t have to break the bank. 


Key Facts for Bixly 


Major Clients: 
Schipul, WCI Communities, Joseph David Advertising, Factabase, 
Justin.tv  


Year Founded: 2008 
Full Time Employees: 26 - 50 


Revenue: $1 million - $2,999,999  
Core Practice Areas: Django Development  


Secondary Areas: No services available.  
Languages: English  
Company 


Representative 
Adam Temple  


Bixly Rankings 


(awarded in last 3 months)  
 #5 - Best Django Development Company, September 2014. 
 #4 - Best Django Development Company, August 2014. 
 #4 - Best Django Development Company, July 2014. 


 






image15.emf
Updated_2014 Dues  Proposal_Rev1.pdf




1 
 


UPDATED REPORT – Updates are included as part of a new Appendix 
Dues Proposal 


9/29/14 
 


 
The EC proposes the following dues increase over a three year period starting in 2015.  The 
breakdown of these increases is outlined below. 


 
1. EC propose a $20 dollar dues increase for regular, interim student, retired, & student 


members receiving print copies of the journal for 2015.  This dues increase is broken up 
as 


 
$10 – offset difference between print and on-line journal access. 
$5 – create a strategic Regional, Technical, and Student (R,T, &S) sections fund where 
sections would submit proposals to receiving funding.  Proposals would initially be 
reviewed by R,T, and S section committee and recommendations made to the EC to 
approve. 
$5 – dues increase based on inflation etc. 


 
EC propose a $10 dollar dues increase for regular members receiving on-line only access 
to the journal for 2015, interim student on-line, and student on-line members.  This dues 
increase is broken up as 
 
$5 – create a strategic R,T, and S section fund where sections would submit proposals to 
receiving funding.  Proposals would initially be reviewed by R,T, and S section 
committee and recommendations made to the EC to approve. 
$5 – dues increase based on inflation etc. 


 
Current dues 


Type of Member USA Canada/Mexico Outside North America 
Regular Member ‡ $80.00 $95.00^ $120.00^* 


Regular Online $70.00 $70.00 $70.00 
Student ‡ $25.00 $40.00^ $65.00^* 


Student Online $15.00 $15.00 $15.00 
Interim Student ‡ $45.00 $60.00^ $85.00^* 


Interim Student Online $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 
Retired ‡ $25.00 $25.00 $25.00* 


^ Includes extra charge for mailing fees (retired members exempted). 
* For Air Mail service Outside North America add $20.00 USD. 
‡ Includes Print and Online 
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Proposed Dues for 2015 


Type of Member USA Canada/Mexico Outside North America 
Regular Member ‡ $100.00 $115.00^ $140.00^* 


Regular Online $80.00 $80.00 $80.00 
Student ‡ $45.00 $60.00^ $85.00^* 


Student Online $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 
Interim Student ‡ $65.00 $80.00^ $105.00^* 


Interim Student Online $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 
Retired ‡ $45.00 $45.00 $45.00* 


^ Includes extra charge for mailing fees (retired members exempted). 
* For Air Mail service Outside North America add $20.00 USD. 
‡ Includes Print and Online 


2. EC propose an automatic $15 dollar dues increase for regular, interim student, retired, & 
student members receiving print copies of the journal for 2016. 


   


3. EC propose an automatic $15 dollar dues increase for regular, interim student, retired, & 
student members receiving print copies of the journal for 2017.   


 
Background 
 
From the current dues Table it can seen that members receiving the print journal current pay $10 
more in member dues that members that receive on-line only access.  However what is probably 
not well understood by the Board is that the current cost difference to the Society at the current 
US mail rate is approximately $45 per member per year for print (actual difference print vs. on-
line only access member).  


Based on the Executive Director’s fall 2014 report we have 820 members receiving print copies 
and 100 retiree members.  If we assume an actual cost to the Society of $45 per print member 
then we can create two extremes. 


a. 720 members paying the current $10 premium for print and 100 retiree members 
receiving print but not paying a $10 premium 


b. 820 members paying the current $10 premium for print. 


These translate into the following  
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Paying 
Print 


Members Expenses 


2014 
Current 
Income 


Proposed 
2015 


Income 


Proposed 
2016 


Income 


Proposed 
2017 


Income 
720 -$36,900 $7,200 $14,400 $25,200 $36,000 
820 -$36,900 $8,200 $16,400 $28,700 $41,000 


 
In scenario a.  The Society in 2014 realizes $7,200 income on $36,900 of expenses.  Thus the 
Society subsidy is $29,700.  This subsidy drops to $900 in 2017 if the proposes dues increases 
are approved.  
 
In scenario b.  The Society in 2014 realizes $8,200 income on $36,900 of expenses.  Thus the 
Society subsidy is $28,700.  The subsidy is eliminated in 2017 with the proposed dues increases. 


 


The proposed increases will eliminate the Society’s subsidy of print copies within 3 years 
(assuming no significant increase in printing or mailing costs).   This contrasts with other 
scientific society’s and their journals where the whole cost of print and mailing is transferred to 
the membership annual.  The EC have discussed this approach, sort input from multiple sources, 
and believe a larger annual increase will negatively impact paid membership, sponsorship, and 
journal advertizing.  Thus the recommendation of a 3-year approach.  


 


Additional risks / factors that the GB should consider when reviewing this proposal are  


1. an increase in membership rates will significantly impact membership renewals.  
The EC deems this unlikely. 


2. an increase in print costs will cause a significant number of members to change 
from print to on-line only thus significantly changing the cost of per print copy.  
The EC believes that this is unlikely in the outlined approach but does 
recommend that the 2015 EC review the metrics used in this proposal at the GB 
meeting at SciX 2015 and modifying the dues for 2016/2017 based on the 
available 2015 numbers. 


3. The impact to our web-renewal process and dues collection from a website-
coding standpoint is minimal. 


4. The impact to our accounting process is minimal including the creation of a new 
category in Quickbooks to track the new R, T, & S fund. 


 
Submitted by 
 
Ian R. Lewis 
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Appendix 1 
 


These updates follow discussion at the EC meeting.  
 
Following the initial draft of this report, it was identified that we have 72 Honorary, Emeritus, 
and Distinguished members who receive Applied Spectroscopy via print.  These individuals do 
not pay any dues currently (as outlined in the Bylaws).  The EC charged the Constitution & 
ByLaws Committee with developing an update to the Bylaws for consideration of the Governing 
Board and R,T,S sections to address the above. 
 
The Constitution & Bylaws committee plans to modify the current member categories 
(Honorary, Emeritus, and Distinguished) language in the Bylaws to define that these categories 
would receive on-line access to the journal at no charge. Members in these categories would also 
have the ability to pay the prevailing member difference (on-line vs. print) if these members 
wished to receive print. 
 
With regards to the current dues proposal, if the Bylaws were changed and enacted by the Board, 
the Prevailing Member Difference (on-line vs. print) for the Honorary, Emeritus, and 
Distinguished members would be. 
 


1. 2015 = $20 
2. 2016 = $35 
3. 2017 = $50 


 
The EC suggested that a clear statement of how the current dues proposal, if enacted, would 
impact the Honorary, Emeritus, and Distinguised members if the proposed Bylaws change was 
also enacted. 
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Spectroscopist Certification Proposal 
 
Objectives:  The goal of this proposal is two-fold:  1) to leverage the extensive expertise among 
SAS members to help build and support the professional credibility of all members and 2) to 
support additional member benefits via an additional source of funding.  
 
Background:  This idea has been proposed in the past.  In previous discussions, the concerns 
that prevented SAS from pursuing certification previously were: 


 development of appropriate testing and how to proctor test taking. 


 concerns about increasing legal liability risks for the Society  
 
Since this idea was first proposed to SAS, new certification routes have been developed by other 
scientific organizations. Some of these new approaches seem to address the old concerns, and 
should be a better fit for SAS members and operations. For example, the Ecological Society of 
America (http://www.esa.org/esa/?page_id=181) has a simple program, based on a combination 
of education and experience and appropriate references, without any testing or continuing 
education credits. A non-profit attorney analyzed the risks involved in doing such a program for 
SAS, and, while nothing is totally safe, it appears liability risks would be fairly limited using this 
approach.  Net, the ESA-type of certification seems to address the previous SAS concerns.   
 
Proposal:  Develop an ESA-like certification program for SAS, using our web-site to host the 
program in the same way ESA does.  An SAS certification program should provide a useful 
reference for Spectroscopists working as consultants, sales reps, and people with a need to 
support their expertise with a third-party endorsement. If we were to charge similar rates to ESA 
(see details in Attachment 1), and had just 100 of our members take advantage of this at the 
lower rate we would generate $8500 of additional revenue.  The cost to SAS would likely be 
minimal, beyond initial web-site set-up and legal review. 


Next Steps:  This venture would require a special committee to flesh out the details including 
certification levels and descriptions, review board recruitment, marketing, and web presence.  
The committee should consist of the 3 SAS Executive Committee Members, the Publicity 
Committee Chair, and SAS Executive Director. It could be worthwhile to consider certification 
measures employed in other societies besides ESA, as well – for example, using a participation 
point system to maintain active certification, awarding points for attendance at scientific 
meetings, holding society offices, etc.  A certification maintenance point system could provide 
the added benefit of encouraging participation.  This is something that the appointed committee 
should further investigate. Marketing SAS certification correctly would be key to the success of 
this type of program, but there are plenty of other certification templates available that could 
provide inspiration for the right approach to fit Spectroscopists. See attachments for further 
details. 
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ATTACHMENT 1:  ESA Certification Details 


The ESA outlines their fee schedule on their website as follows: 


Application Fees 


  Member Rates Non-Member Rates


Ecologist in Training $85 $195 


Associate Ecologist $85 $195 


Ecologist $150 $320 


Senior Ecologist $150 $320 


Streamlined Application $150 N/A 


Recertification 
(Associate/Ecologist/Senior/Streamlined) 


$85/$150/$150/$150 $195/$320/$320/N/A


 


The definitions of these categories on the ESA site are as follows: 


Levels of Certification 


Ecologist	in	Training			


 Successful completion of a bachelor’s degree or higher degree in ecology or a related science 
from an accredited college or university. 


Associate	Ecologist	


 Successful completion of a bachelor’s degree or higher degree in ecology or a related science 
from an accredited college or university, 


 AND at least one (1) year of post‐graduate professional experience* gained in the performance 
of research or data analysis demonstrating technical competence in current application of 
ecological principles and/or theory.  Relevant experience should have been gained at least 
within the last five (5) years. 


Ecologist	


 Successful completion of a master’s or higher degree in ecology or a related science from an 
accredited college or university and at least two (2) years of full‐time equivalent professional 
experience* after degree; 


 OR at least five (5) years of professional experience* in addition to the education requirement 
for Associate Ecologist; 


 AND in addition to the experience required for Associate Ecologist, demonstration of ability to 
perform professional work in ecology such as independent studies, complex data analyses, and 
formulation and testing of hypotheses must follow completion of the education requirement for 
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qualification at the Ecologist level.  Relevant experience should have been gained at least within 
the last five (5) years. 


Senior	Ecologist	


 Successful completion of a doctoral degree in ecology or a related science from an accredited 
college or university, and at least five (5) years of full‐time equivalent professional experience* 
after degree, 


 OR at least ten (10) years of professional experience* after completion of the minimum 
education requirements for certification (qualifying bachelor’s degree or completion of required 
coursework in post‐baccalaureate courses). 


 Additional experience necessary to qualify at this level includes:  
o Demonstration, in work output, of thorough knowledge of the literature and scientific 


principles and theories of ecology; 
o Demonstration of written original contributions or original interpretation of ecological 


information; and 
o Demonstration of technical or organizational competence as evidenced by supervision 


of projects. 


   







From the Desk of Bonnie Saylor, Executive Director of SAS 


ATTACHMENT 2:  Proposed SAS Certification Details 


We are proposing that the SAS certification system and fees closely mirror that of ESA’s.  


Proposed SAS Application Fees* 


  Member Rates Non-Member Rates


Spectroscopist in Training $85 $195 


Associate Spectroscopist $85 $195 


Spectroscopist $150 $320 


Senior Spectroscopist $150 $320 


Streamlined Application $150 N/A 


Recertification 
(Associate/Ecologist/Senior/Streamlined) 


$85/$150/$150/$150 $195/$320/$320/N/A
 


*(These proposed fees are one-time charges good for up to 3 years unless the individual needs to recertify 
at a new level in between at which point they must pay a new fee for the new certification. If they took 
advantage of the SAS Member rate, they must maintain their SAS membership for those three years or the 
difference between the non-member and member rate will be assessed to keep the certification current.) 


Our current database and financial system would need to reflect this new program.  We would 
likely need a few updates to the database that would allow us to track certification for members 
and non-members alike and we would make this an added search function on our website so 
members can find other members with certifications. We would need some new parameters 
added to our current report functions as well. There would be a programming costs associated 
with these via our vendor Caktus.  Without actually giving Caktus an idea of exactly what we 
would need, it is hard to estimate what the cost would be for this programming.  My best guess 
would be around $3000-$5000. We would also have to update our website with pages dedicated 
to certification and to a non-interactive list of those who have been certified (the searchable 
version would only be for members).  This is something our Web Editor would be able to handle 
and would not cost the Society any additional money.  We can accept applications via email and 
hold off on any kind of programming that would require an online submissions until we know if 
this program will generate revenue (ESA has done it this way for years and only recently 
invested in an online system). With our new PayPal system that will be implemented on our site, 
we should be able to accept electronic payments for the certification. 


In order to be able to track expenses vs returns we would need to add new categories to our 
current budget and financials that would track these costs and revenues. 
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ATTACHMENT 3:  Proposed Timeline 


September/Early October 2014 
*Proposal to Executive Committee and Governing Board presented for approval 
*Certification Committee Appointed 
 
October 2014 
*Certification Committee in conjunction with National Office work out details on the program.  
 
November 15 
*Report from committee on implementation process to Executive Committee and request for 
vote.  Upon approval, assignments given to Web Editor for page design on website and to Caktus 
for database and report design. 
 
December 15 
*Marketing blast  
 
January 1 
*Acceptance of applications 
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ATTACHMENT 4:  Risk Analysis as Provided by SAS Attorney 


An email was sent to our SAS attorney, Sarita Nair, for clarification on the risks associated with 
implementing a certification program.  Her email follows along with an article (Attachment 5) 
with further details. 


Re: Certification question 
Inbox x 


 
Sarita Nair 
 


Aug 
20


to me 
 


Hi Bonnie, 
The most significant risk for a certification program is that someone who has received the certification will cause 
injury or death to persons or damage to property. Then the certifying entity may be brought into a lawsuit for 
negligence, failure to warn, or for making a “warranty” about the qualifications about the certified individual. The 
second main risk is that someone who does not receive the certification will sue SAS for lack of due process, 
defamation, or a similar claim.  
 
I came across an excellent article that I am attaching that goes into great depth on these and other risks and how to 
mitigate them. I would be happy to discuss any of this in more detail with you or your board, but this article is so 
thorough that I did not want to reinvent the wheel. If you find the beginning too dense, the end contains 20+ 
recommendations for mitigating risk that are right on point. Again, just let me know if you want to discuss how to 
implement any of the recommendations. 
 
I am also attaching an engagement letter to confirm that I will continue to work with SAS. Please let me know if you 
have any questions or concerns. 
 
Best regards, 
Sarita 
 
Sarita Nair 
SaritaNairLaw@gmail.com 
(505) 369-6196 
Post Office Box 7162 
Albuquerque, NM 87194 
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ATTACHMENT 5:  Risk Analysis Article 


 


Association Certification and Accreditation 
Programs: Minimizing the Liability 
Risks 


 


By: Jeffrey S. Tenenbaum Esq, Venable LLP 


Certification and accreditation programs (collectively referred to herein as "certification" 
programs) sponsored by trade and professional associations are increasingly common. 
Whether it is the certification of individuals, products or services, the credentialing of 
professionals, or the accreditation of programs, services or institutions, these programs confer 
an array of valuable benefits not only to associations and association members, but also to 
industry, government, and the general public. However, as the recent litigation involving the 
National Spa and Pool Institute and other associations remind us, standard-setting and 
certification programs are not without liability risk – potentially significant risks. 


Fortunately, proper care in establishing and operating certification programs can go a long 
way toward minimizing those risks. As association certification programs continue to play an 
increasingly important role in our society, it is more critical than ever to ensure that 
associations are not deterred from sponsoring such programs as a result of legal risks that can 
be effectively managed. This article is designed to outline the principal liability risks facing 
most association certification programs, and to suggest steps to limit these risks. 


 


Overview. In general, courts are extremely reluctant to interfere with certification programs 
operated by trade and professional associations. Courts generally are hesitant to second-
guess the reasonableness of association standards, policies or decisions, recognizing that 
professionals in associations have far greater experience than judges in formulating and 
applying standards of industry or professional excellence. Associations have prevailed in the 
vast majority of certification disputes. Moreover, courts often have found in favor of 
associations at the summary judgment stage – in other words, the association prevailed based 
on a motion at the close of discovery and thus avoided the risk and expense of trial. 


However, despite associations’ impressive track record of success in certification-related 
litigation, the significant risks of litigation cannot be ignored. Even if an association ultimately 
prevails in court, the costs, burdens and distractions of mounting a defense can be 
overwhelming. Although clearly in the public interest and beneficial to members and others, 
self- regulation programs such as certification programs raise risks of legal liability under the 
antitrust laws, under the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"), and under common law 
theories of negligence, warranty, due process, and defamation, among others. Fortunately, 
there are steps associations can take in structuring and administering a certification program to 
minimize the 
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risk of being sued in the first instance, and, if a lawsuit does materialize, to ensure that the 
association will prevail. In addition, appropriate errors and omissions insurance can help 
protect the association against the financial costs of such litigation. 


 


Areas of Liability Risk. Following is a brief discussion of the five principal areas of liability 
risk for associations in connection with the operation of certification programs: antitrust, 
negligence (liability to third parties), due process, defamation, and ADA compliance. Other 
theories of liability exist as well – such as theories of warranty and enterprise liability – but 
these five areas make up the majority of claims filed against association certification 
programs. 


1. Antitrust. Unsuccessful applicants for certification or those whose certification is revoked 
may seek to use the antitrust laws to obtain certification or to obtain damages for the failure 
to certify. An association could be held liable under those laws if the challenger can 
demonstrate (i) that certification is essential in order to effectively compete in the market, 
and (ii) that the program’s exclusion was the result of unreasonable or invalid standards or 
criteria or of unfair or inappropriate procedures. In addition, certification programs that 
require membership in the sponsoring association as a prerequisite to obtaining certification 
may be challenged as an illegal "tying" arrangement, among other antitrust theories. 
Certification programs that are anticompetitive, discriminatory, unrelated to objective 
standards, or implemented without fair procedures are most likely to attract antitrust 
challenges. Moreover, certification programs that charge an unreasonably high price to apply 
for or receive certification or recertification similarly are subject to and likely to attract 
antitrust challenge. 


As with all antitrust actions, the key factor in an antitrust challenge to an association’s 
certification program or decision is whether the association’s actions are unreasonably 
"anticompetitive" within the meaning of the antitrust laws. In other words, courts will look at all 
of the facts and circumstances to determine whether the certification program, on balance, 
restrains competition in the relevant market more than it promotes it. A certification program 
that, in purpose and effect, is designed to, and does in fact, further, protect and promote the 
economic health of, or consumer welfare within, a particular industry will generally be deemed 
to be more procompetitive than anticompetitive – even though those who fail to achieve 
certification may find it more difficult to compete in the market. 


Certifying bodies generally have broad discretion in setting and implementing certification 
requirements. Courts are particularly reluctant to second-guess technical standards – such 
as those used as the basis for certification decisions – as long as the standards are 
objectively established and substantively justifiable. Courts also recognize that certification 
programs are generally procompetitive in nature. Most importantly, court decisions in this 
area suggest that taking the steps set forth below in structuring and administering 
certification programs will significantly limit the antitrust risk arising from such programs. 


2. Negligence (Liability to Third Parties). Reliance on the certification of a professional, 
entity, product, or service can, in some cases, cause the association that granted the 
certification to be held liable when a patient, client or customer suffers harm (physical, financial 
or otherwise) at the hands of the certified individual, entity, product, or service. The most 
common claim is that the certifying association was negligent in granting the certification and 
should therefore be liable for resulting injuries. 
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This liability risk to third parties generally means negligence liability (a form of tort liability), but 
is sometimes couched in claims such as misrepresentation, failure to warn, warranty, strict 
liability, and enterprise liability. For instance, the injured party may allege that the association 
warranted or guaranteed the individuals, entities, products, or services certified by the 
association, and therefore should be responsible (under a breach of warranty theory) for 
resulting injuries to those who purchase, utilize or participate in them. 


 


Fortunately, court decisions holding certifying bodies liable in tort for loss or injury caused by 
the certified individual, entity, product, or service remain a rarity. This type of liability is subject 
to a number of conditions and remains infrequent. In short, the certifying body generally will be 
found liable under the tort of negligence only if the injured party can prove all of the elements of 
negligence liability – duty, breach of duty (negligence), reliance, and causation, along with 
proof of damages (injury). If any one of these four elements cannot be established, then liability 
will not result. 


▪  Duty:  The first question courts ask is whether or not the certifying association owed a duty of 
care to the third party (the injured plaintiff who utilized the services of a certified vendor, for 
instance). While there is generally no duty of care owed to third parties, some courts have held 
that once an organization undertakes to set standards or inspect, test or otherwise certify 
individuals, entities, products, or services, it should reasonably know that third parties might rely 
on those standards or certifications, and therefore must exercise reasonable care in doing so. 


▪  Breach of Duty (Negligence):  The court will next determine whether the certifying body 


failed to act with reasonable care (i.e., acted negligently) in granting the certification or 
in setting a particular standard. In other words, the association is obligated to use due 
diligence and reasonable care in promulgating the certification standards and in 
applying them to applicants for certification. For instance, a "mail-order" certification 
program that establishes no meaningful standards or that exercises no real scrutiny in 
evaluating applicants could be at risk for breach of its duty of care. 


▪  Reliance:  It must be proven that the plaintiff relied upon the association’s certification in 
utilizing the certified individual, entity, product, or service. It generally is not sufficient 
for a plaintiff merely to show that the association certified a vendor, for instance, and 
later an injury occurred; the plaintiff must establish that it was because of the 
association’s certification that the vendor’s products or services were utilized. If the 
association can establish that the plaintiff did not know of the association's certification 
or that the certification was not a material factor in the decision to utilize the vendor’s 
product or service, then it may be able to avoid liability. 


▪  Causation: The negligence of the certifying association must be considered to be a 
"proximate cause" of the injury to the ultimate user (the plaintiff). While the most direct 
cause of the plaintiff’s injury generally is the negligence of the certified party or product 
– not the certifying association – where the certifying body expects the public to rely 
upon the certification, and the injured party does just that in selecting the certified party 
or product, the causation and reliance criteria both may be met. In other words, if 
reliance is established, causation likely will be as well. 


▪  Damages (Injury):  There must be measurable injury (physical, financial or psychological) 
to the plaintiff for any damages to exist. 
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3. Due Process. Certification bodies must provide fair procedures in both setting and 
implementing standards. It is critical to carefully establish and strictly, consistently and 
objectively follow written rules and procedures for the administration of the certification 
program. Certifying bodies are legally bound to follow their own rules and regulations in making 
certification decisions. While this duty is sometimes described in contractual terms, the 
obligation is more often labeled as a matter of common law due process or fundamental 
fairness. 


 


Common law due process has two elements:  (i) substantive fairness, and (ii) procedural 
fairness. Substantive fairness requires the use of objective standards reasonably related to 
a legitimate organizational purpose. Procedural fairness refers to the procedures of 
decision- making.  


Courts are much more likely to defer to substantive standards established by a certifying 
association. However, standards and decisions by a certifying association may be overturned 
if they are arbitrary, capricious or discriminatory, or where they are influenced by bias, 
prejudice or where they lack good faith. Courts are more likely to scrutinize the fairness of the 
procedures more closely because these are matters with which they are more familiar.  


There is no definitive rule as to what due process requires, but at a minimum it would include 
notice and an opportunity to respond to an adverse certification decision. In addition, 
fundamental fairness requires that similarly situated persons and entities be treated the same.  


The recommendations below set forth more detailed guidelines for ensuring the satisfaction 
of common law due process requirements.  


4. Defamation. Defamation is the oral utterance (slander) or written publication (libel) of false 
or misleading facts, or false or misleading implied facts, that are derogatory or damaging to an 
individual’s, entity’s or product’s reputation. Accusing someone of dishonesty or other moral 
deficiency, or of professional or business deficiency, raises particularly significant risks of 
defamation liability. In the certification context, this risk is most likely to arise: (i) when an 
individual or entity is denied certification, and then damaging statements are made (to one or 
more third parties) by a representative of the certifying body about the individual or entity and 


the failure to be certified; or (ii) when sensitive, potentially damaging, information about an 
applicant for certification becomes known to the certifying body during the certification 
process, and that information is subsequently disclosed to one or more third parties 
(intentionally or unintentionally).  


Generally, defamation may be committed even by those who believe they are communicating 
the truth. For a statement to be defamatory, it must be actually communicated to a party other 
than the speaker or author. Anyone who republishes a defamatory statement can be equally 
responsible with the original speaker or author. The defamed individual or entity may sue 
anyone who publishes, prints or repeats the defamation, and, depending on the 
circumstances, may recover from the speaker(s) or author(s) money damages to compensate 
for the harm to reputation, and to punish the speaker(s) or author(s) as well. Truth is an 
absolute defense to virtually any defamation claim.  


In some circumstances, legal "privileges" apply that may protect the speaker or author from 
liability even where a statement might otherwise be defamatory. The three principal privileges 
in the ./ association context are: (i) where the speaker takes reasonable precautions to ensure 
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accuracy in every derogatory detail, including making reasonable inquiry; (ii) where the 
statement concerns a public official or figure, the speaker will not be liable unless the speaker 
actually knew the accusations were false and made the statement in reckless disregard of its 
truth or falsity; and (iii) publication or communication of a derogatory statement within an 
association – at least within the governing body or bodies of an association – for the purpose of 
promoting a common interest may be protected by a "qualified privilege." For example, 
deliberations among a certification board concerning certification-related proceedings are likely 
protected by this qualified privilege. Where this privilege applies, derogatory statements may 
give rise to defamation liability only if motivated by spite or ill-will, or if communicated to 
persons outside of the management or governing group.  


The recommendations below set forth guidelines for avoiding defamation liability, as well 
as ensuring protection of the qualified privilege.  


5. Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance. Private, nonprofit organizations generally 
are subject to the requirements of the federal Americans with Disabilities Act with respect to 
their general operations – including the sponsorship and administration of certification 
programs. The requirements of the ADA of most relevance to certifying bodies are the specific 
and extensive standards contained in the law for private entities that conduct examinations and 
courses relating to applications, licensing and certification, or credentialing for educational, 
professional or trade purposes. The U.S. Department of Justice’s regulations require that 
certifying bodies "offer such examinations or courses in a place and manner accessible to 
persons with disabilities or offer alternative accessible arrangements for such individuals."  


Note that the ADA does not apply if an individual seeking certification does not have a 
covered disability. For instance, recent U.S. Supreme Court decisions have clarified that 
available corrective and mitigating measures, such as medication or medical aids, must be 
considered in determining whether or not an individual has a disability under the ADA. Thus, 
for example, the Court held that correctable myopia is not a disability, nor is high blood 
pressure controlled with medication.  


A certifying body is responsible for selecting and administering the certification examination in 
a place and manner which ensures that the examination tests what the examination purports 
to measure, rather than testing the individual’s disability, such as impaired sensory, manual or 
speaking skills (unless those skills are what the examination is designed to test). This means 
ensuring that: (i) testing places are accessible to individuals with disabilities; and (ii) auxiliary 
aids and services are made available to enable individuals with disabilities to take the 
examination, in accordance with the ADA’s requirements.  


For example, for individuals with hearing impairments, oral instructions or other orally-delivered 
materials could be provided through an interpreter, assist of listing device, or other applicable 
means. For individuals with visual impairments, the examination and answer sheets could 
utilize large print or Braille, could be provided via audiotape, or could be provided through the 
use of qualified readers and transcribers to read questions and record answers.  


A certifying body does not have to provide auxiliary aids and services in all cases. If providing 
a particular auxiliary aid or service would fundamentally change the examination or result in 
an undue burden on the certifying body, it does not need to be provided. This determination is 
case-specific. 


Regarding who decides what type of auxiliary aid or service should be provided, when 
possible, the individual with the disability should be consulted to determine the type of aid or 
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service that may be needed. When more than one type of auxiliary aid or service will enable a 
person with a disability to participate effectively, a certifying body may choose what aid or 
service to make available. 


Aside from auxiliary aids or services, other types of modifications may be required. For 
instance, it may be necessary to modify the manner in which the test is administered. For 
example, if an individual has an impairment that makes writing difficult, it may be necessary to 
give that individual more time to complete the exam or to permit the typing of answers. 


The individual with a disability may not be required to bear the cost of the aid or modification. 
The certifying body must bear the cost of the aid or modification. However, a certifying body 
is required only to provide auxiliary aids or modifications that do not pose an undue burden 
on a certifying body and do not fundamentally change the examination.  


Examinations must be administered in facilities that are accessible to disabled individuals or 
alternative accessible arrangements must be made. If the facility in which the examination is 
offered is not accessible, it may be administered to an individual with a disability in a different 
room or another location. The alternative location should provide comparable conditions to 
the conditions in which the test is administered to others. All testing locations need not be 
accessible and offer specially designed exams, however, if an examination for individuals 
with disabilities is administered in an alternative accessible location or manner, it must be 
offered as often and in as timely a manner as other examinations. Examinations must be 
offered to individuals with disabilities at locations that are as convenient as the location(s) of 
other examinations.  


Individuals with disabilities cannot be required to file their applications to take the examination 
earlier than the deadline for other applicants in order to enable accommodations to be made. 
However, a certifying body may require individuals with disabilities to provide advance notice 
to the certifying body of their disability and of any aids and/or modifications that might be 
required – so long as the deadline for doing so is not earlier than the deadline for others 
applying to take the examination.  


A certifying body may require applicants to provide documentation of the existence and 
nature of the disability as evidence that they are entitled to an aid or modification – so long as 
the request is reasonable and limited to the need for the modification or aid requested. 
Appropriate documentation might include a letter from a doctor or other health care 
professional, or evidence of a prior diagnosis or accommodation (such as eligibility for a 
special education program). The applicant can be required to bear the cost of providing such 
documentation, but he or she cannot be charged for the cost of any modifications or auxiliary 
aids provided for the examination.  


Finally, the rules for courses are similar to those for examinations. They generally require 
that modifications be made in courses offered by private entities to ensure that the place and 
manner in which the course are given are accessible to individuals with disabilities. The 
most significant difference is that the general rule for courses applies to all individuals with 
disabilities – not just those with "impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills." Modifications 
in courses may include changes in the length of time allowed for completing the course, 
substitution of course requirements, or adapting the manner in which the course is 
conducted or materials are distributed. Advance notice of the opportunity to obtain materials 
in alternative formats must be provided to disabled individuals. Appropriate auxiliary aids 
also must be provided, unless to do so would fundamentally alter the course or create an 
undue burden. If courses cannot be administered in a facility accessible to individuals with 
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disabilities, comparable alternative arrangements must be made. Such arrangements may 
include offering the course through videotapes, cassettes, CD-ROM, the Internet, or 
prepared notes. The selection or choice of courses available to individuals with disabilities 
may not be restricted.  


Guidelines for Minimizing Liability Risks. Court decisions involving association certification 
programs suggest that taking the following steps in establishing and administering certification 
programs will significantly limit the association’s liability risks for such programs:  


1.  Certification standards should be clear and unambiguous, reasonable, fair, and 
objectively grounded – care should be taken to ensure that valid, objective bases 
support each certification standard. Standards should be based on data or on a 
respected body of industry or governmental opinion linking each particular standard to 
the qualities that the certification purports to measure. Where possible, standards 
should be directed at and focus on the ends, not the means. Where the means are 
specified, they must be legitimately, demonstrably and directly related to the objectives. 
Alternative eans to achieve a given objective should be permitted where possible. 
Standards should never be arbitrary or capricious, or vague or ambiguous, and 
procedures should be developed that document the development and reasonableness 
of, and the objective basis for, proposed standards.  


2.  Certification standards should be no more stringent or rigid than necessary to 
ensure that minimum competency or quality levels have been attained.  


3.  Certification programs should be open both to association members and non-
members on the same terms and conditions. Moreover, nothing in excess of a 
reasonable price should be charged to apply for or receive certification or 
recertification.  


4.  Specific commercial or economic considerations should play no role in the setting or 
application of the certification standards. In addition, certification programs should 
never be created or used for the purpose of raising, lowering or stabilizing prices or 
fees, excluding competitors from the market, or limiting the supply or products or 
services.  


5.  Prior to finalizing certification standards, provide interested parties with notice of the 
proposed standards and an opportunity to comment. Fairly and objectively consider 
such comments in finalizing the standards.  


6.  Where appropriate and feasible, consider utilizing and participating in the standard- 
setting procedures of the American National Standards Institute ("ANSI"), and, where 
a certification program is involved, consider obtaining accreditation of the certification 
program by ANSI.  


7.  Establish equivalent standards or alternative paths to certification wherever possible. 
As with the standards themselves, the determination as to whether the standards have 
been satisfied should focus on the ends, not the means. There must be valid, 
demonstrable and reasonable bases upon which to determine that applicants for 
certification have met the standards.  


8.  Periodically review and update all certification standards to ensure that they are current 
and reflect new legal, technological and other developments. Provide appropriate 
opportunities for public notice and comment whenever standards are modified, and 
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carefully consider such comments in the revision process. In addition, document any 
and all complaints or concerns about the standards and revise the standards 
accordingly if appropriate.  


9.         Ensure that participation in and use of the certification program is completely voluntary.  


10.  Widely publicize the availability of the certification program and permit application by 
all who choose to apply. Do not limit participation in the certification program to only 
members of the sponsoring association. However, fees charged to non-members for 
certification may be higher than those charged to association members to reflect any 
membership dues or assessments that contribute to funding the program.  


11.  There must be no bias, partiality or inconsistency in establishing or operating the 
program. The certification process must be objectively and uniformly administered, 
without subjectivity, favoritism or discrimination. The rules of the certification process 
must be scrupulously, consistently and objectively followed by those administering 
the program.  


12.       Due process should be built into the program. Before certification is denied or 
revoked,those who seek the certification should be provided with: (i) notice of an adverse 
decision and a meaningful opportunity to respond to the notice, (ii) a hearing before a panel of 
peers, none of whom has a direct economic or personal interest in the outcome of the 
proceeding, (iii) the right to be represented by another person, including an attorney, and to 
submit evidence and arguments in defense, (iv) the right to examine the evidence and to cross-
examine witnesses (if applicable), (v) the right to a written decision explaining the reasons 
underlying it, and (vi) the right to appeal an adverse decision to a higher-level decision-making 
body within the association. Proceedings of this nature should remain strictly confidential.  


13.  Require full disclosure by those involved in the certification process of any factor that 
might be considered bias or a conflict of interest. Require recusal or removal if a bias 
or conflict is particularly severe or pervasive. Full disclosure and appropriate checks 
and balances generally are effective mechanisms for safely managing most potential 
conflicts of interest. Generally, reduced volunteer involvement and increased 
association staff involvement may assist in objectivity and the absence of bias.  


14.  All certification decisions should be based completely and exclusively on the record 
of the review and not on extraneous, anecdotal, subjective, or other outside sources 
of information.  


15.  "Grandfathering" of those who do not meet all current certification standards 
generally should be avoided.  


16.  Require regular recertification as appropriate to ensure that those who are certified 
continue to meet the program’s standards. In addition, review the certification 
process itself on a periodic basis to ensure it is being properly administered.  


17.  While nothing prevents a certification program from publicizing the names of, and 
information about, those who are certified, care should be taken to avoid any explicit 
or implicit disparagement of those who are not certified. Maintain strict confidentiality 
with respect to all adverse allegations, complaints, actions, and proceedings that arise 
in connection with the certification program. While it is acceptable for a certifying 
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association to verify that an entity is not currently certified, no further details should be 
provided.  


18.  Ensure that all certification examinations – as well as all courses that prepare 
applicants for certification exams – are administered in strict compliance with the 
specific requirements imposed by the federal Americans with Disabilities Act and 
implementing regulations.  


19.  Maintain strict security regarding all aspects of the certification process. Any 
missing, stolen or copied examination booklets, for instance, can have a severe 
impact on the integrity of the certification process.  


20.  To minimize the risk of copyright infringement, maximize copyright rights, and 
facilitate enforcement of such rights, use a copyright notice on all certification program 
materials (e.g., standards, applications, brochures) and register such materials with 
the U.S. Copyright Office. Be sure that the association owns or has the right to use 
the entire contents of such materials. In addition, as listings of certified entities 
generally are not protectable under U.S. copyright laws, use a "shrinkwrap" license or 
other form of contractual commitment to place explicit, binding limits and conditions 
on the use of the list. The shrinkwrap license also can be a useful vehicle to disclaim 
any endorsement or guarantee of the certified entities by the association.  


21.  To minimize the risk of trademark infringement, maximize trademark rights, and 
facilitate enforcement of such rights, use a trademark notice in connection with the 
certification logo or seal and register the mark with the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office 
(either as a certification mark or as a service mark). Be sure the association's use of the 
mark does not infringe anyone else's trademark rights. In addition, codify the terms and 
conditions of, and limitations on, use of the mark by certified entities in a written 
agreement, possibly as part of the certification application form or in connection with 
distribution of the mark. Be sure to include provisions, among others, designed to 
prevent false or misleading use of the mark and to prohibit any further use upon 
decertification. Note that the federal Lanham Act, and similar state laws, prohibit the 
use of any false or misleading terms, names or symbols, or any other false or 
misleading descriptions or representations, that are likely to deceive the public with 
respect to the affiliation of the user with a particular organization.  


22.  Include binding limitation of liability and indemnification provisions in the certification 
application form (or other document) to absolve the association from liability to those 
who are certified, and to hold the association harmless from lawsuits by those injured 
by the acts or omissions of certified entities.  


23.  Avoid any implicit or explicit guarantee or warranty of certified products, services, 
individuals, or entities. To this end, avoid "puffery," do not overstate how a product, 
service or professional performs, and do not use superlatives such as "never fails" 
or "safest" in describing those that are certified.  


24.  Use written disclaimers where appropriate – such as on marketing materials, in the 
application form, and on the association's Web site – to clarify the association's 
limited role with respect to, lack of responsibility for, and absence of guarantees or 
warranties of, certified products, services or entities. If and where appropriate, require 
use of similar disclaimers by those that receive certification.  
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25.  Maintain sufficient insurance to cover the liability risks of the certification program. 
Some association professional liability insurance ("APLI") policies provide coverage for 
certain claims arising from certification programs as part of the basic policy, although 
some with coverage sublimits. Other APLI policies will not cover such programs without 
an endorsement to the policy. Importantly, APLI policies do not cover bodily injury or 
property damage claims arising from these programs. Stand-alone certification 
insurance policies are available and necessary to insure against these risks. Adequate 
insurance should be a prerequisite to the operation of any association certification 
program.  
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Treasurer’s  Report  Sept 3, 2014 
 
There are four parts to this Treasurer’s Report;  Audit Status, Current Financials, Historical Fund 
Balance, and 2015 Budget. 
 
Audit Status 
 
The 2012 Audit has been completed.  It is undergoing final checks for formatting at the Auditors 
Office and should issue in final form by Sept 5, 2014.  A copy of the draft which has been signed 
off on by all parties is included as Appendix A.   
 
The 2013 audit has completed all information checking and field questionnaires.  It is our hope 
that it will be completed by the end of September 2014. 
 
 
 
Current Financials 
 
The Statement of Activities  and Statement of Financial Position as of July 31, 2014 have been 
included as Appendix B.  The income to date is actually at 85% of budget which appears to be 
quite good.  However, our income is heavily weighted to the first half of the year.  Member dues 
and Web revenue is already above budget for the year.  Subscriptions are also above budget for 
the year.  Advertising is only at 45% of budget, and baring a major increase will likely be low for 
the year.  To date, our funds held at Vanguard have shown an increase in value of over $10,000.  
However, this is a market value and is subject to rise and fall of the markets.  Expenses also 
appear to be in line with budget for the most part.  However, expenses are more heavily loaded in 
the second half of the year so we should expect these number to increase especially with 
expenses related to Sciex.  Marketplace commissions are running high, but are a result of more 
income from Marketplace Ads.  In general expenses appear to be on track with budget for the 
year.  Unfortunately that budget projected a loss for 2014 of $84,400.  The projected year end 
financials are shown in the 2015 budget which is shown in Appendix C. 
 







Historical Fund Balance (Net Worth) 
 
The Fund Balance is a picture of our assets minus liabilities.  It is a measure of the long-term 
financial health of the Society.  Any reduction in Fund Balance represents a reduced capacity to 
operate in years where the expenses exceed the income. 
 
Since SAS cannot utilize restricted funds like Lippincott or Kowalski for other projects, the 
Unrestricted Fund Balance gives a better picture of the decline in the Society’s usable resources.  
Also, since Lippincott dropped out of the picture entirely in 2013, it makes the 2013 Total Fund 
Balance look artificially low compared to previous years. 
  
The Unrestricted Fund Balance has dropped by almost $281,000 in that four year period. 
 
 
 


 12/31/09  12/31/10  12/31/11  12/31/12  12/31/13 
Total Fund Balance 722,314  680,017  614,146  527,427  427,195 
Less Restricted Fund 
Balance (16,974)  (15,474)  (13,954)  (12,651)  (2,635) 
Unrestricted Fund 
Balance 705,340  664,544  600,193  514,776  424,560 


  
 The projected drop in Fund Balance or Net Worth for 2014 is $49,658 which will leave an 
unrestricted Fund Balance of $374,902. 
 
As shown below, the Chapter Designated Funds have gone from 15% of the Unrestricted Fund 
Balance to 24%, so that as of 12/31/13, we had a little over $322,000 in unrestricted, non-
designated funds.  In an environment where we have to make tough financial decisions and run 
deficits in order to initiate projects for long-term growth, having a quarter of our funds reserved 
for chapters that almost never use them may reduce a future EC’s flexibility or initiatives.  With 
the projected drop in Fund Balance of $49,658 in 2014 we will have an Unrestricted Non-
Designated Fund Balance of $272,738.  With the investment fund holding $300,000 we are at the 
point where we could experience cash flow issues at certain times of the year, especially if we 
incur large up-front costs for the new journal or other projects. 
  
We may wish to reconsider the decision to designate funds for the chapters. 
  
 12/31/09  12/31/10  12/31/11  12/31/12  12/31/13 
Unrestricted Fund Balance 705,340  664,544  600,193  514,776  424,560 
Less Funds Designated for 
Chptrs (106,239)  (98,719)  (98,965)  (100,637)  (102,163) 
Unrstrctd Non-Designated 
Funds 599,102  565,825  501,228  414,140  322,396 
  







The projection of these losses forward at this rate implies that within 5 to 7 years we will no 
longer have sufficient funds to operate.  It is abundantly clear that we must consider any and all 
means to increase income and reduce expenses. 
 
 
2015 Budget 
 
The proposed 2015 budget is given in Appendix C.  There are five columns.  The first column 
shows the actual 2013 data income and expense.  The second column shows the budget for 2014 
approved last year.  The third column shows 2014 cumulative income and expense through July 
31, 2014.  The fourth column shows the projected results for year end 2014 and the last column 
shows the proposed budget for 2015.  I am proposing a budget that actually increases our 
projected loss in 2015 to $100,070.  The increase in projected loss from 2014 to 2015 arises from 
three main components.  Two new expenses items are 1)  $15,000 for a marketing effort directed 
at increasing both membership and advertising revenue.  This effort will be coordinated by both 
the Office and Bill at TPI.  Proposal for expenditures in this category will come to the EC for 
approval before any expenditures are made.  2)  $10,000 is allocated to efforts directed at 
establishment of a new Journal.  3) The next major apparent increase is EC/GB expenses.  In the 
past there has been no cap on reimbursement of travel expenses for EC members at the Spring 
and Fall Meetings. In the years from 2010 through 2013 these costs ran on the order of $30,000. 
In 2014 one meeting was scheduled so the budgeted amount was significantly lower than the 
historical norm. The EC acted this year to define the maximum reimbursement for travel at each 
of these meetings assuming 100 % attendance.  For 2015 we are budgeting for two meetings 
instead of the one meeting in 2014 so  the budget now reflects this maximum expense for two 
meetings annually.  4)  Taxes on the operation of the Society have increased.  These are the 
major new items, and the increase in loss from 2014 to 2015 is due entirely to these four items.   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
[DATE] 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Society for Applied Spectroscopy, Inc.  
Frederick, Maryland 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Society for Applied Spectroscopy, 
Inc.  (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk  assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of  expressing  an  opinion  on  the  effectiveness  of  the  
entity’s  internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Society for Applied Spectroscopy, Inc. as of December 31, 
2012 and 2011, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matter 


Our audits were conducted for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial 
statements as a whole. The schedules of allocated expenses on pages 12 and 13 are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and related 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audits of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
 
 


    
 Frederick, Maryland 
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SOCIETY FOR APPLIED SPECTROSCOPY, INC.


STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION


DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011


2012 2011


ASSETS


CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 727,702$           773,200$           
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted 12,651               13,954               
Accounts Receivable 47,605               58,800               
Prepaid Expenses 31,383               32,523               


TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 819,341            878,477            


PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture and Equipment 36,902               34,214               


Less: Accumulated Depreciation 31,215               28,971               
TOTAL PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 5,687                5,243                


OTHER ASSETS 1,652                1,652                


TOTAL ASSETS 826,680$          885,372$          


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


LIABILITIES


CURRENT LIABILITES
Accounts Payable 23,795$             8,942$               
Other Payables 5,492                 3,153                 
Sections Payables 11,437               17,834               
Payroll Liabilities 16,645               24,826               
Deferred Revenue - Dues 62,176               40,594               
Deferred Revenue - Subscriptions 166,851             163,901             


TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITES 286,396            259,250            


LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred Revenue - Dues 12,856               11,976               


TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITES 12,856              11,976              


TOTAL LIABILITIES 299,252            271,226            


NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 514,777             600,192             
Temporarily Restricted 12,651               13,954               


TOTAL NET ASSETS 527,428            614,146            


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 826,680$          885,372$          


See Accompanying Notes
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SOCIETY FOR APPLIED SPECTROSCOPY, INC.


STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES


FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011


2012 2011


UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS


REVENUE AND GAINS


Member Dues 89,677$             91,408$             
Journal Income 794,916             818,041             
Contributions 13,815               7,915                 
Investment Income 998                    735                    
Other Income 976                    6,079                 


TOTAL REVENUE AND GAINS 900,382            924,178            


Net Assets Released from Restrictions 1,303                 1,520                 


TOTAL UNRESTRICTED 
REVENUE AND GAINS 901,685            925,698            


EXPENSES


Program Services 851,038             802,469             
Management and General 136,062             187,580             
Fundraising -                    -                    


TOTAL EXPENSES 987,100            990,049            


DECREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (85,415)             (64,351)             


TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS


Net Assets Released from Restrictions (1,303)                (1,520)                


DECREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (1,303)               (1,520)               


DECREASE IN NET ASSETS (86,718)             (65,871)             


Net Assets - Beginning of Year 614,146             680,017             


NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR 527,428$          614,146$          


See Accompanying Notes
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SOCIETY FOR APPLIED SPECTROSCOPY, INC.


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS


FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011


2012 2011


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Inflows:


Dues Received from Members 112,139$         90,485$           
Cash Received from Journal Activity 809,061           790,325           
Contributions Received 13,815             7,915               
Interest Received 998                  735                  
Miscellaneous Cash Receipts 976                  6,079               


936,989           895,539           
Outflows:


Cash Paid to Employees 289,421           291,090           
Journal Expenses Paid 366,084           358,521           
Operating Expenses Paid 325,597           346,091           


981,102           995,702           
 
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (44,113)          (100,163)        


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Outflows:


Purchase of Property and Equipment (2,688)             -                  
(2,688)             -                  


NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,688)            -                 


NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (46,801)          (100,163)        


Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 787,154           887,317           


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 740,353$       787,154$       


See Accompanying Notes
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Nature of Activities 
The Society for Applied Spectroscopy, Inc. (the “Society”) is a nonprofit membership 
organization that advances and disseminates knowledge and information concerning the art 
and science of spectroscopy and other allied sciences to its members, including publication of a 
monthly scientific journal, national meetings, and online resources. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 


For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on 
deposit and treasury bills with original maturities of six months or less. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
The Society evaluates the collectability of its accounts receivable and adjusts its allowance for 
doubtful accounts annually.  As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, all amounts were considered 
collectible. 
 
Property and Equipment 


Property and equipment with a value of $500 or more is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the 
estimated fair market value upon receipt.  Depreciation of property and equipment is 
computed on an accelerated basis over the estimated useful life of the respective asset. The 
estimated useful lives range from three to seven years depending on the nature of the asset.  
Depreciation expense was $2,244 and $2,522 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively. 
 
Net Assets 


The Society reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to 
three classes of net assets as follows:  
 


Unrestricted net assets 


Resources that are currently available for support of the Society's operations and are not 
subject to donor-imposed restrictions. 
  
Temporarily restricted net assets 


Resources that may be utilized only in accordance with the restricted purposes established 
by the donor.  The restriction may require passage of time or the occurrence of a specific 
event in order to trigger the release of the restriction.  The Society considers all 
contributions that are designated to a particular program to be transferred to unrestricted 
net assets when the terms of the restrictions have been met.  
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Permanently restricted net assets 


Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that must be maintained permanently. 
 
The Society had no permanently restricted net assets as of December 31, 2012 or 2011. 
 
Tax-Exempt Status 


The Society is classified as an organization exempt from federal income tax under the 
provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is recognized as a nonprofit 
organization by the State of Maryland.  However, the Internal Revenue Code imposes income 
taxes on the Society's unrelated business income, which is the profit derived from business 
activities which are not within the scope of the Society's exempt purpose.  The Society derives 
taxable income from the sale of membership mailing lists and the sale of advertising in the 
Society's journal.  Tax laws allow certain deductions for direct advertising expenses and 
publication costs.  The tax liability for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were 
$9,362, and $-0-, respectively.  
 
The Society’s Federal Exempt Organization Income Tax Returns (990 and 990-T) for the years 
ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, and 2009, are subject to examination by the IRS.  The 
Society believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does 
not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial statements. 
 
Revenue Recognition 


All revenues are recognized when earned. Members are subject to annual dues based on their 
anniversary date.  Dues revenue is recognized in the year that each month of membership 
applies. Deferred revenue consists of dues received in advance for months in the subsequent 
calendar year.  
 
Subscriptions are recognized as revenue in the applicable calendar year. Journal subscriptions 
received prior to December 31 that relate to the next calendar year are recorded as deferred 
revenue.  
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses 


The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the statements of activities and changes in net assets.  Accordingly, certain 
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited based on 
time records kept by the Society's staff. 
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Estimates 


Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
 
Reclassifications 


Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year 
presentation. 
 
Subsequent Events 


Management has evaluated subsequent events through [DATE], the date which the financial 
statements were available to be issued.   
 
 
Note 2. Operating Lease Commitments 
The Society conducts its office operations from facilities under a five-year non-cancelable 
operating lease that expires on December 31, 2014.  Rental expense was $20,691 and $24,565 
for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  Future minimum rental 
payments required under the Society's operating leases are as follows: 
 


2013 $ 17,144 
2014    17,658 


 $ 34,802 
 
 
Note 3. Concentrations of Credit Risk 
The Society maintains its cash balances in several financial institutions in Frederick, 
Maryland.  Non-interest bearing balances were fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.  All interest-bearing 
balances were insured by the FDIC up to $250,000 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 
2011.  As of December 31, 2012, the total uninsured balance in these financial institutions was 
$324,314.  As of January 1, 2013, due to changes in FDIC regulations, the total uninsured 
balance in these financial institutions was $498,801. 
 
The uninsured balance is a repurchase obligation of the Society’s banking institution; the 
Society relies on the creditworthiness of the bank.  The repurchase agreement is collateralized 
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by a pool of bank assets, U.S. Treasury, governmental and agency obligations (which are 
guaranteed by the U.S. government), as well as bank certificate of deposits and time deposits. 
 
 
Note 4. Deferred Revenue 
Deferred revenue consists of the following at December 31: 
 


         2012         2011 
Deferred membership dues $ 75,032 $ 52,570 
Deferred subscription revenue _166,851   163,901 
 $241,883 $216,471 


 
 
Note 5. Functional Expenses 
Expenses by function for the years ended December 31 were as follows: 
 


         2012         2011 
Program services $851,038 $801,290 
Management and general 136,062   188,759 


Fundraising 
  


- -  
 $987,100 $990,049 


 
Note 6. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 
Effective January 1, 1993, the assets and activities of the Lippincott Fund are to be held and 
accounted for by the Society in accordance with an operating agreement between the Society 
for Applied Spectroscopy, Inc., the Coblentz Society, and the Optical Society of America, Inc.  
This Fund administers an award annually to recognize an individual that have made 
significant contributions to the field of vibrational spectroscopy. 
 
Following is a summary of the related activity for the years ended December 31: 


         2012         2011 
Temporarily restricted net assets, beginning $ 13,954 $ 15,454 
Awards and other expenses  (1,303)   (1,520) 
Temporarily restricted net assets, ending $12,651 $ 13,954 


 
The Society holds the Lippincott Funds in a separate restricted cash account.  
 
The Society did not receive any contributions in 2012 or 2011 with donor-imposed restrictions 
that would result in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets. 
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Note 7. Revenue Concentrations 
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, journal income represented 88% of total 
revenue and gains.    
 
A portion of the journal income originates from an agreement that the Society has with 
Optical Society of America, Inc., which has been renewed through December 31, 2015 as of the 
report date of these statements.  Optical Society of America, Inc. agrees to sell the Society's 
journal, Applied Spectroscopy, in various package options for a set percentage depending on 
the package selected by the customer.  Revenues earned under this agreement were $248,709 
and $244,213 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, which represented 26% of total 
revenues of the Society for both years.   As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, $1,180 and $6,255, 
respectively, was due from Optical Society of America, Inc. 
 
Additionally, journal advertising income originates from an agreement that the Society has 
with Allen Press, Inc. through December 31, 2013.  Allen Press, Inc. sells advertising space in 
Applied Spectroscopy, in various package options.  Revenues earned under this agreement 
were $262,428 and $270,573 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, which 
represented 29% of total revenues of the Society for both years.   As of December 31, 2012 and 
2011, $38,773 and $44,940, respectively, was due from Allen Press, Inc. 
 
 
Note 8. Chapters and Affiliates 
The Society’s local section affiliates are separate organizations with their own governing 
bodies apart from the Society.  The Society’s by-laws provide for a portion of membership dues 
to be allocated to the local section affiliates.  These payments are expensed by the Society as 
dues distributions.  For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, affiliate distributions to 
local sections totaled $11,177 and $7,721, respectively. 
 
 
Note 9. Conditional Promises to Give from Related Party 
The Society is a member of the Federation of Analytical Chemistry and Spectroscopy Societies 
(FACSS), which organizes the annual SciX conference.  As a member of FACSS, the Society 
receives, from time to time, an allocation of surplus funds as calculated annually by a formula 
in the FACSS bylaws.  If an allocation of surplus funds is approved, the funds assigned to the 
Society are held by FACSS and are to be used for the sole purpose of furthering the 
advancement of analytical chemistry and spectroscopy at an activity presented by FACSS.  
There is no time limit set for the use of these funds; unspent funds roll over for each member 
Society.  However, if the Society withdraws its FACSS membership, any remaining funds are 
forfeited.  
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Since the allocation of funds is conditional and no distribution occurs until a condition is 
substantially met, the allocation is not a completed gift and is subject to forfeiture.  Therefore, 
the amounts allocated by FACSS to the Society of $XXXX and $42,016 as of December 31, 
2012 and 2011, respectively, are not recognized on the statement of financial position. 
 
Contribution revenue and a related expense is recognized in the period in which the 
contribution is made.  During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Society 
directed the use of $5,000 and $2,375, respectively, of its allocated funds held by FACSS to be 
used for speaker registrations at a conference presented by FACSS.   
 
 
 
 
Note 10. Reconciliations of Decrease in Net Assets to Net Cash Used by Operating 


Activities 
 


 2012 2011 
Decrease in Net Assets $(86,718) $(65,871) 


Adjustments to Reconcile Decrease in Net 
Assets to Net Cash Used by Operating 
Activities: 


  


Depreciation  2,244 2,522 
(Increase) Decrease in:   


Accounts Receivable 11,195 (2,536) 
Prepaid Expense 1,140 23,511 
Other Assets - - 


Increase (Decrease) in:   
Accounts Payable 14,853 (4,723) 
Sections Payable (6,397) 7,842 
Other Payables 2,339 2,166 
Accrued Liabilities (8,181) 8,109 
Deferred Revenues    25,412    (26,103 


Net Cash Used by Operating Activities  $(44,113) $(100,163) 
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SCHEDULE OF ALLOCATED EXPENSES


FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012


Schedule "1"


Program 
Services


Management 
and General Fundraising Totals


Awards & Grants 29,400$        -$                -$              29,400$        
Conferences 9,393            -                  -                9,393            
Executive Committee, Governing 
Board & Other Committee 35,382          11,848             -                47,230          
Internet Services & Data 
Management Systems 69,130          -                  -                69,130          
Journals 366,083        -                  -                366,083        
Member Services 26,665          -                  -                26,665          
Other Expenses 12,611          4,223               -                16,834          
Personnel & Fringes 225,714        98,771             -                324,485        
Sections 13,291          -                  -                13,291          
Society Office 63,369          21,220             -                84,589          


TOTAL EXPENSES 851,038$     136,062$        -$                 987,100$     


See Accompanying Notes
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 SCHEDULE OF ALLOCATED EXPENSES


FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011


Schedule "1"


Program 
Services


Management 
and General Fundraising Totals


Awards & Grants 28,269$        -$                 - -$              28,269$        
Conferences 9,198            -                   -                9,198            
Executive Committee, Governing 
Board & Other Committee 24,263          13,612             -                37,875          
Internet Services & Data 
Management Systems 74,017          -                   -                74,017          
Journals 358,522        -                   -                358,522        
Member Services 30,168          -                   -                30,168          
Other Expenses 5,130            2,878               -                8,008            
Personnel & Fringes 206,931        139,302           -                346,233        
Sections 9,313            -                   -                9,313            
Society Office 56,658          31,788             -                88,446          


TOTAL EXPENSES 802,469$     187,580$        -$                 990,049$     


See Accompanying Notes
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2014 July Financials 







Jan - Jul 14 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget


Income
4300 · Member Dues


4305 · Regular 74,936.69
4310 · Corp Sponsor 37,729.16
4300 · Member Dues - Other 0.00 110,000.00 (110,000.00) 0.0%


Total 4300 · Member Dues 112,665.85 110,000.00 2,665.85 102.4%


4400 · Web Revenue
4410 · Newsletter Ads 3,432.00
4420 · Marketplace Ads 23,494.00
4400 · Web Revenue - Other 0.00 18,000.00 (18,000.00) 0.0%


Total 4400 · Web Revenue 26,926.00 18,000.00 8,926.00 149.6%


4500 · Journal Income
4505 · Subscriptions 417,864.92 400,000.00 17,864.92 104.5%
4625 · Advertising 111,760.80 250,000.00 (138,239.20) 44.7%
4630 · Reprints 740.00 3,000.00 (2,260.00) 24.7%
4635 · Royalties 415.69 17,000.00 (16,584.31) 2.4%
4640 · Open Access 1,000.00
4650 · Other Jrnl Inc


4655 · Back Issues 1,220.53
4675 · Color Figures 130.00
4650 · Other Jrnl Inc - Other 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%


Total 4650 · Other Jrnl Inc 1,350.53 1,500.00 (149.47) 90.0%


Total 4500 · Journal Income 533,131.94 671,500.00 (138,368.06) 79.4%


4825 · Contributions
4830 · General Contributions 6,350.00 6,000.00 350.00 105.8%
4842 · Kowalski Contrib (temp rest) 1,550.00


Total 4825 · Contributions 7,900.00 6,000.00 1,900.00 131.7%


4850 · Investment Revenue
4855 · Interest - Unrstrctd Accts 373.18
4060 · Dividends - Unrstrctd Accts 1,547.92
4870 · Intrst/Dvdnds - Kowalski 2.38
4885 · Unrealized Gain 2,645.28
4850 · Investment Revenue - Other 0.00 50.00 (50.00) 0.0%


Total 4850 · Investment Revenue 4,568.76 50.00 4,518.76 9,137.5%


4900 · Other Income
4920 · Processing Fees 16.00
4940 · Mailing List 270.00
4980 · Miscellaneous 1,500.00
4900 · Other Income - Other 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%


Total 4900 · Other Income 1,786.00 500.00 1,286.00 357.2%


Total Income 686,978.55 806,050.00 (119,071.45) 85.2%


Expense
5995 · Personnel & Fringes


6000 · Salaries 94,974.59 184,000.00 (89,025.41) 51.6%
6040 · Payroll Taxes 7,338.73 12,000.00 (4,661.27) 61.2%
6060 · Personnel Benefits


6064 · Health/Dental Insurance 9,365.10
6060 · Personnel Benefits - Other 0.00 12,000.00 (12,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6060 · Personnel Benefits 9,365.10 12,000.00 (2,634.90) 78.0%


Total 5995 · Personnel & Fringes 111,678.42 208,000.00 (96,321.58) 53.7%


Society for Applied Spectroscopy, Inc.
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Jan - Jul 14 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget


6095 · Exec Cm, Gov Bd, & Other Cm
6100 · Executive Comm


6101 · Travel 4,069.85
6105 · Meeting Exp 60.00
6100 · Executive Comm - Other 0.00 15,000.00 (15,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6100 · Executive Comm 4,129.85 15,000.00 (10,870.15) 27.5%


6150 · Governing Board 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%
6170 · Membership Comm 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%
6190 · Other Committees 55.47 700.00 (644.53) 7.9%


Total 6095 · Exec Cm, Gov Bd, & Other Cm 4,185.32 18,700.00 (14,514.68) 22.4%


6195 · Journals
6200 · Applied Spec Jrnl


6205 · Advertising
6206 · Ad Commissions 25,534.35
6207 · Ad Publication Costs 18,812.62
6209 · Other Advrtsng Exp 1,401.38
6205 · Advertising - Other 0.00 107,000.00 (107,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6205 · Advertising 45,748.35 107,000.00 (61,251.65) 42.8%


6210 · Publication 94,937.38 163,600.00 (68,662.62) 58.0%
6220 · Operating


6222 · Prep - Graphics 5,130.00
6224 · Prep - Editing 1,050.00
6225 · Jrnl Ofc - Clearance 65,802.10
6228 · Jrnl Ofc - Currency Exch (2,620.39)
6220 · Operating - Other 0.00 140,000.00 (140,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6220 · Operating 69,361.71 140,000.00 (70,638.29) 49.5%


6240 · Postage / Shipping 0.00 50.00 (50.00) 0.0%
6245 · Honorariums / Stipends 12,745.81 25,000.00 (12,254.19) 51.0%
6250 · Promotion 0.00 300.00 (300.00) 0.0%
6265 · Travel 0.00 5,000.00 (5,000.00) 0.0%
6275 · Online 14,362.70 14,000.00 362.70 102.6%
6280 · Small Furniture/Equip 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%
6285 · Back Issues


6286 · Costs 1,361.88
6287 · Storage 1,293.23
6285 · Back Issues - Other 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6285 · Back Issues 2,655.11 4,000.00 (1,344.89) 66.4%


6288 · Media Liability Ins 2,308.00 2,500.00 (192.00) 92.3%
6290 · Editorial Board 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%
6295 · Miscellaneous 0.00 100.00 (100.00) 0.0%


Total 6200 · Applied Spec Jrnl 242,119.06 463,550.00 (221,430.94) 52.2%


6300 · NEW Journal
6368 · Other Exp 2,674.81


Total 6300 · NEW Journal 2,674.81


Total 6195 · Journals 244,793.87 463,550.00 (218,756.13) 52.8%


6380 · Intrnt Srvcs / Data Mgmt Systms
6382 · Contracted Srvcs Fees 19,943.76
6385 · Other Exp 3,461.33
6380 · Intrnt Srvcs / Data Mgmt Systms - Other 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6380 · Intrnt Srvcs / Data Mgmt Systms 23,405.09 50,000.00 (26,594.91) 46.8%


6400 · Member Services
6405 · Tour Speaker Program 1,223.59
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Jan - Jul 14 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget


6410 · Newsletter
6414 · Publication 2,100.00
6416 · Ad Commissions 763.85
6410 · Newsletter - Other 0.00 3,600.00 (3,600.00) 0.0%


Total 6410 · Newsletter 2,863.85 3,600.00 (736.15) 79.6%


6435 · Student Activities 5,132.57
6454 · Marketplc Commissions 10,197.00
6456 · Marketplc Programming 3,100.00
6465 · Other Exp 1,824.38
6400 · Member Services - Other 0.00 15,000.00 (15,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6400 · Member Services 24,341.39 18,600.00 5,741.39 130.9%


6600 · Awards / Grants
6605 · SAS Awards


6615 · Presentation Items 204.30


Total 6605 · SAS Awards 204.30


6600 · Awards / Grants - Other 0.00 15,000.00 (15,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6600 · Awards / Grants 204.30 15,000.00 (14,795.70) 1.4%


6650 · Sections
6660 · Chapter Expenses


6662 · Meeting Exp 68.37
6664 · Speaker Exp 139.22
6674 · Honorariums / Awards 500.00


Total 6660 · Chapter Expenses 707.59


6650 · Sections - Other 0.00 13,000.00 (13,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6650 · Sections 707.59 13,000.00 (12,292.41) 5.4%


6700 · Conferences
6704 · Postage / Shipping 790.49
6708 · Other Exp 3,171.73
6700 · Conferences - Other 0.00 8,000.00 (8,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6700 · Conferences 3,962.22 8,000.00 (4,037.78) 49.5%


6800 · Society Office
6810 · Facilities


6812 · Rent 13,820.24
6814 · Utilities, Alarm, Cleaning 3,043.64
6810 · Facilities - Other 0.00 34,000.00 (34,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6810 · Facilities 16,863.88 34,000.00 (17,136.12) 49.6%


6825 · Insurances (Ofc & Personnel) 5,644.08 6,000.00 (355.92) 94.1%
6830 · Postage / Shipping 293.33 700.00 (406.67) 41.9%
6835 · Phone 2,568.89 3,000.00 (431.11) 85.6%
6840 · Printing, Dsgn, Ml Prep 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%
6845 · Dues & Subscriptions 1,425.00 1,500.00 (75.00) 95.0%
6850 · Travel 4,997.96 7,300.00 (2,302.04) 68.5%
6865 · Supplies 996.94 1,600.00 (603.06) 62.3%
6870 · Equip / Furniture / Sftwr


6872 · Purchase 631.08
6874 · Rental 3,947.00
6870 · Equip / Furniture / Sftwr - Other 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%


Total 6870 · Equip / Furniture / Sftwr 4,578.08 4,000.00 578.08 114.5%


6875 · Legal Fees 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%
6880 · Auditors 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.0%
6885 · Bookkeeper / Pyrl Srvc 5,907.20 12,000.00 (6,092.80) 49.2%
6890 · Employee Training 0.00 300.00 (300.00) 0.0%
6899 · Miscellaneous 438.70 800.00 (361.30) 54.8%


Total 6800 · Society Office 43,714.06 82,200.00 (38,485.94) 53.2%
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6950 · Other Expenses
7000 · Financing Exp


7010 · Bank Fees - Unrstrctd Accts 770.46
7030 · Processing Fees/Discounts 1,903.79
7040 · Service & Finance Fees 45.53
7000 · Financing Exp - Other 0.00 4,500.00 (4,500.00) 0.0%


Total 7000 · Financing Exp 2,719.78 4,500.00 (1,780.22) 60.4%


7200 · Depreciation 1,197.00 2,500.00 (1,303.00) 47.9%
7300 · Member Acquistion/Retention


7310 · Promotional Items / Misc. 453.40
7315 · Sponsor Commissions 2,850.00
7300 · Member Acquistion/Retention - Other 0.00 800.00 (800.00) 0.0%


Total 7300 · Member Acquistion/Retention 3,303.40 800.00 2,503.40 412.9%


8200 · Income Taxes
8210 · Federal 3,020.00
8220 · State 1,661.00
8200 · Income Taxes - Other 0.00 5,600.00 (5,600.00) 0.0%


Total 8200 · Income Taxes 4,681.00 5,600.00 (919.00) 83.6%


Total 6950 · Other Expenses 11,901.18 13,400.00 (1,498.82) 88.8%


Total Expense 468,893.44 890,450.00 (421,556.56) 52.7%


Net Income 218,085.11 (84,400.00) 302,485.11 (258.4)%
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Jul 31, 14


ASSETS
Current Assets


Checking/Savings
1000 · Unrestricted Cash


1005 · Non-Designated Funds
1007 · Operating & Sweep 330,647.03
1012 · Chapter Dsgntd Funds (-) (102,163.41)
1018 · Rst Fnds Adj Pndng (+/-) 414.94
1020 · Savings 7,226.13
1075 · Petty Cash (54.34)


Total 1005 · Non-Designated Funds 236,070.35


1080 · Chapter Dsgntd Funds (+) 102,163.41


Total 1000 · Unrestricted Cash 338,233.76


1200 · Temporarily Restricted Cash
1235 · Kowalski Fund 4,602.45
1250 · Rst Fnds Adj Pndng (+/-) (414.94)


Total 1200 · Temporarily Restricted Cash 4,187.51


Total Checking/Savings 342,421.27


Accounts Receivable
1300 · Accounts Receivable


1315 · Marketing Rep Accts 87,745.70
1320 · Dues Via OSA 3,120.00


Total 1300 · Accounts Receivable 90,865.70


Total Accounts Receivable 90,865.70


Other Current Assets
1359 · Other Receivables 2,672.00
1450 · Deposits & Prepaid Expns


1455 · Prepaid Expenses 653.29
1458 · UBC Jrnl Exp Advance 5,014.37
1470 · Postage - Permit #66    (SO) 3,330.22
1475 · Postage - Short Pd #96049 63.76
1480 · Postage - Meter/Reserve Acct 1,188.40
1490 · Security Deposit 1,652.43


Total 1450 · Deposits & Prepaid Expns 11,902.47


1510 · Vanguard Investments 304,193.20


Total Other Current Assets 318,767.67


Total Current Assets 752,054.64


Fixed Assets
1600 · Furniture & Equipment 39,282.86
1610 · Accumulated Depreciation (34,464.24)


Total Fixed Assets 4,818.62


TOTAL ASSETS 756,873.26


LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities


Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable


2010 · Vendor Payables 25,937.45


Total Accounts Payable 25,937.45


Other Current Liabilities
2050 · Accrued Liabilities & Pybls


2051 · Credit Card Charges 4,075.31
2080 · Other Payables 4,369.95


Total 2050 · Accrued Liabilities & Pybls 8,445.26
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2200 · Passthrough Payables
2205 · JAAS Subs 1,086.75
2210 · Spectrochimica Subs 258.00
2213 · Inst Science & Tech Subs 900.00
2215 · Anal & Bio Chem Subs 610.00
2218 · App Spec Reviews Subs 310.00
2220 · OSA Memberships 65.00
2223 · Spectroscopy Ltrs Subs 555.00


Total 2200 · Passthrough Payables 3,784.75


2260 · Affiliate Payables 15,744.69
2280 · Accrued Vacation Payable 12,202.03
2300 · Dues Dfrd


2301 · 1YO 27,395.58
2302 · 2YO 5,019.73
2303 · 3+YO 390.83
2305 · Dues Clrnc - Regular 2,635.00


Total 2300 · Dues Dfrd 35,441.14


2400 · Ad Prepymts Dfrd 7,221.00
2500 · Journal Subs Dfrd


2505 · Subs Clearance 241,391.50
2500 · Journal Subs Dfrd - Other (238,574.50)


Total 2500 · Journal Subs Dfrd 2,817.00


Total Other Current Liabilities 85,655.87


Total Current Liabilities 111,593.32


Total Liabilities 111,593.32


Equity
3000 · Fund Balance - Unrestricted 642,644.81
3200 · Fund Balance - Temp Rstrctd 2,635.13
3900 · Net Income Offset (218,085.11)
Net Income 218,085.11


Total Equity 645,279.94


TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 756,873.26
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2013 2014 July, 2014 YTD 2014 Actual 2015 Proposed
v4 Actual Budget  Draft Actual Projected Budget


Income
4300 · Member Dues


4305 · Regular 82,254.23 74,936.69 76,000.00 70,000.00
4310 · Corp Sponsor 20,413.58 37,729.16 37,750.00 35,000.00
4300 · Member Dues - Other 0.00 110,000.00


Total 4300 · Member Dues 102,667.81 110,000.00 112,665.85 113,750.00 105,000.00


4400 · Web Revenue
4405 · Banner Ads 4,830.00
4410 · Newsletter Ads 5,874.00 3,432.00
4415 · Search Engine Spnsr 6,000.00
4420 · Marketplace Ads 0.00 23,494.00
4400 · Web Revenue - Other 0.00 18,000.00 40,000.00 55,000.00


Total 4400 · Web Revenue 16,704.00 18,000.00 26,926.00 40,000.00 55,000.00


4500 · Journal Income
4505 · Subscriptions 483,078.51 400,000.00 417,864.92 440,000.00 420,000.00
4625 · Advertising 234,088.35 250,000.00 111,760.80 200,000.00 230,000.00
4630 · Reprints 1,312.00 3,000.00 740.00 750.00 400.00
4635 · Royalties 19,693.42 17,000.00 415.69 15,000.00 15,000.00
4640 · Open Access 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
4650 · Other Jrnl Inc


4655 · Back Issues 545.00 1,220.53
4675 · Color Figures 2,066.00 130.00
4650 · Other Jrnl Inc - Other 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00


Total 4650 · Other Jrnl Inc 2,611.00 1,500.00 1,350.53 1,500.00 1,500.00


Total 4500 · Journal Income 740,783.28 671,500.00 533,131.94 658,250.00 667,900.00


4825 · Contributions
4830 · General Contributions 6,881.00 6,350.00
4840 · SciX Surplus Claimed 5,640.00 15,000.00 16,000.00
4842 · Kowalski Contrib (temp rest) 3,150.00 1,550.00
4825 · Contributions - Other 0.00 6,000.00 8,000.00 6,000.00


Total 4825 · Contributions 15,671.00 6,000.00 7,900.00 23,000.00 22,000.00


4850 · Investment Revenue
4855 · Interest - Unrstrctd Accts 653.16 373.18
4060 · Dividends - Unrstrctd Accts 0.00 1,547.92
4870 · Intrst/Dvdnds - Kowalski 0.07 2.38
4885 · Unrealized Gain 0.00 2,645.28
4850 · Investment Revenue - Other 0.00 50.00 0.00 8,000.00 10,000.00


Total 4850 · Investment Revenue 653.23 50.00 4,568.76 8,000.00 10,000.00


4900 · Other Income
4920 · Processing Fees (136.00) 16.00
4940 · Mailing List 270.00 270.00
4980 · Miscellaneous 641.20 1,500.00
4900 · Other Income - Other 0.00 500.00 1,800.00 1,000.00


Total 4900 · Other Income 775.20 500.00 1,786.00 1,800.00 1,000.00


Total Income 877,254.52 806,050.00 686,978.55 844,800.00 860,900.00


Expense
5995 · Personnel & Fringes


6000 · Salaries 201,554.64 184,000.00 94,974.59 165,000.00 165,000.00
6040 · Payroll Taxes 15,104.15 12,000.00 7,338.73 14,000.00 14,000.00
6060 · Personnel Benefits


6064 · Health/Dental Insurance 16,533.61 9,365.10
6068 · Accrued Vacation 702.58
6060 · Personnel Benefits - Other 0.00 12,000.00 16,000.00 16,000.00


Total 6060 · Personnel Benefits 17,236.19 12,000.00 9,365.10 16,000.00 16,000.00


Total 5995 · Personnel & Fringes 233,894.98 208,000.00 111,678.42 195,000.00 195,000.00


6095 · Exec Cm, Gov Bd, & Other Cm
6100 · Executive Comm


6101 · Travel 9,938.57 4,069.85
6103 · Lodging 20,534.12 60.00
6105 · Meeting Exp 5,936.81
6100 · Executive Comm - Other 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 39,220.00


Total 6100 · Executive Comm 36,409.50 15,000.00 4,129.85 15,000.00 39,220.00


6150 · Governing Board 1,331.08 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,500.00
6170 · Membership Comm 1,623.12 1,000.00 500.00 500.00
6190 · Other Committees 1,665.62 700.00 55.47 500.00 500.00


Total 6095 · Exec Cm, Gov Bd, & Other Cm 41,029.32 18,700.00 4,185.32 18,000.00 42,720.00


6195 · Journals
6200 · Applied Spec Jrnl


6205 · Advertising
6206 · Ad Commissions 62,759.33 25,534.35
6207 · Ad Publication Costs 39,185.68 18,812.62
6209 · Other Advrtsng Exp 6,420.22 1,401.38
6205 · Advertising - Other 0.00 107,000.00 100,000.00 105,000.00


Total 6205 · Advertising 108,365.23 107,000.00 45,748.35 100,000.00 105,000.00


6210 · Publication 167,259.65 163,600.00 94,937.38 169,000.00 170,000.00
6220 · Operating
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6222 · Prep - Graphics 8,954.97 5,130.00
6224 · Prep - Editing 1,800.00 1,050.00
6225 · Jrnl Ofc - Clearance 0.00 65,802.10
6228 · Jrnl Ofc - Currency Exch 1,984.76 (2,620.39)
6229 · Jrnl Ofc - Bank Fees 305.50
6231 · Jrnl Ofc - Administration 110,086.40
6232 · Jrnl Ofc - Postage 42.24
6233 · Jrnl Ofc - Supplies 21.67
6234 · Jrnl Ofc - Travel 99.30
6236 · Jrnl Ofc - Printing 0.20
6238 · Jrnl Ofc - Dues & Rgstrtn 870.36
6239 · Jrnl Ofc - Miscellaneous 217.59
6220 · Operating - Other 0.00 140,000.00 125,000.00 130,000.00


Total 6220 · Operating 124,382.99 140,000.00 69,361.71 125,000.00 130,000.00


6240 · Postage / Shipping 217.50 50.00 50.00 50.00
6245 · Honorariums / Stipends 21,849.96 25,000.00 12,745.81 22,000.00 25,000.00
6250 · Promotion 0.00 300.00 300.00
6265 · Travel 4,358.64 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
6275 · Online 14,007.17 14,000.00 14,362.70 14,400.00 14,800.00
6280 · Small Furniture/Equip 0.00 500.00 100.00 200.00
6285 · Back Issues


6286 · Costs 3,114.57 1,361.88
6287 · Storage 2,476.72 1,293.23 4,500.00
6285 · Back Issues - Other 0.00 4,000.00 4,500.00


Total 6285 · Back Issues 5,591.29 4,000.00 2,655.11 4,500.00 4,500.00


6288 · Media Liability Ins 2,308.00 2,500.00 2,308.00 2,308.00 2,500.00
6290 · Editorial Board 2,309.50 1,500.00 500.00 500.00
6295 · Miscellaneous 429.95 100.00 100.00 100.00


Total 6200 · Applied Spec Jrnl 451,079.88 463,550.00 242,119.06 442,958.00 457,950.00


6300 · NEW Journal
6368 · Other Exp 0.00 2,674.81
6300 · NEW Journal - Other 0.00 10,000.00


Total 6300 · NEW Journal 0.00 2,674.81 2,800.00 10,000.00


Total 6195 · Journals 451,079.88 463,550.00 244,793.87 445,758.00 467,950.00


6380 · Intrnt Srvcs / Data Mgmt Systms
6382 · Contracted Srvcs Fees 38,383.12 19,943.76
6385 · Other Exp 6,648.43 3,461.33
6380 · Intrnt Srvcs / Data Mgmt Systms - Other 0.00 50,000.00 41,000.00 42,500.00


Total 6380 · Intrnt Srvcs / Data Mgmt Systms 45,031.55 50,000.00 23,405.09 41,000.00 42,500.00


6400 · Member Services
6405 · Tour Speaker Program 3,347.22 1,223.59
6410 · Newsletter


6412 · Honorariums 500.00
6414 · Publication 0.00 2,100.00
6416 · Ad Commissions 1,574.83 763.85
6410 · Newsletter - Other 0.00


Total 6410 · Newsletter 2,074.83 2,863.85


6435 · Student Activities 7,295.07 5,132.57
6440 · Events 5,530.00
6450 · SciX Exp (from surplus) 5,640.00
6452 · Web Bnr Commissions 2,903.54
6454 · Marketplc Commissions 0.00 10,197.00
6456 · Marketplc Programming 0.00 3,100.00
6465 · Other Exp 1,803.92 1,824.38
6400 · Member Services - Other 0.00 18,600.00 44,000.00 44,000.00


Total 6400 · Member Services 28,594.58 18,600.00 24,341.39 44,000.00 44,000.00


6600 · Awards / Grants
6605 · SAS Awards


6608 · Reception 24,254.55
6610 · Honorariums/Donations 1,700.00
6615 · Presentation Items 2,373.52 204.30
6618 · Other Exp 1,480.62


Total 6605 · SAS Awards 29,808.69 204.30 0.00


6620 · Lippincott Award
6622 · Honorariums 1,500.00


Total 6620 · Lippincott Award 1,500.00 0.00 0.00


6630 · Kowalski Award
6631 · Legal Exp 514.94


Total 6630 · Kowalski Award 514.94 0.00 0.00


6600 · Awards / Grants - Other 0.00 15,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
Total 6600 · Awards / Grants 31,823.63 15,000.00 204.30 20,000.00 20,000.00


6650 · Sections
6655 · Affiliate Donations 12,830.72
6660 · Chapter Expenses


6662 · Meeting Exp 174.33 68.37
6664 · Speaker Exp 1,008.56 139.22
6666 · Postage / Shipping 138.00
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6670 · Printing, Dsgn, Ml Prep 42.00
6674 · Honorariums / Awards 400.00 500.00


Total 6660 · Chapter Expenses 1,762.89 707.59


6690 · Chapter Distribution (Internal) 2,997.92
6650 · Sections - Other 0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 13,000.00


Total 6650 · Sections 17,591.53 13,000.00 707.59 13,000.00 13,000.00


6700 · Conferences
6702 · Booth Rental 575.00
6704 · Postage / Shipping 754.45 790.49
6708 · Other Exp 7,013.97 3,171.73
6700 · Conferences - Other 0.00 8,000.00 10,500.00 8,000.00


Total 6700 · Conferences 8,343.42 8,000.00 3,962.22 10,500.00 8,000.00


6800 · Society Office
6810 · Facilities


6812 · Rent 23,098.64 13,820.24
6814 · Utilities, Alarm, Cleaning 4,410.00 3,043.64
6816 · Internet Connection 55.98
6818 · Equip Mntnc & Rpr 1,976.83
6810 · Facilities - Other 0.00 34,000.00 32,000.00 31,500.00


Total 6810 · Facilities 29,541.45 34,000.00 16,863.88 32,000.00 31,500.00


6825 · Insurances (Ofc & Personnel) 6,252.00 6,000.00 5,644.08 5,650.00 6,000.00
6830 · Postage / Shipping 2,560.85 700.00 293.33 1,500.00 1,500.00
6835 · Phone 3,420.25 3,000.00 2,568.89 4,000.00 3,000.00
6840 · Printing, Dsgn, Ml Prep 3,580.09 500.00 0.00 700.00 200.00
6845 · Dues & Subscriptions 1,782.50 1,500.00 1,425.00 1,450.00 1,500.00
6850 · Travel 13,224.55 7,300.00 4,997.96 9,000.00 9,000.00
6865 · Supplies 2,506.12 1,600.00 996.94 1,600.00 1,600.00
6870 · Equip / Furniture / Sftwr


6872 · Purchase 490.93 631.08
6874 · Rental 5,246.00 3,947.00
6870 · Equip / Furniture / Sftwr - Other 0.00 4,000.00 5,900.00 6,000.00


Total 6870 · Equip / Furniture / Sftwr 5,736.93 4,000.00 4,578.08 5,900.00 6,000.00


6875 · Legal Fees 0.00 500.00 500.00 1,500.00
6880 · Auditors 7,100.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
6885 · Bookkeeper / Pyrl Srvc 9,114.02 12,000.00 5,907.20 11,000.00 12,000.00
6890 · Employee Training 0.00 300.00
6899 · Miscellaneous 735.23 800.00 438.70 800.00 500.00


Total 6800 · Society Office 85,553.99 82,200.00 43,714.06 84,100.00 84,300.00


6950 · Other Expenses
7000 · Financing Exp


7010 · Bank Fees - Unrstrctd Accts 1,030.32 770.46
7030 · Processing Fees/Discounts 3,481.72 1,903.79
7040 · Service & Finance Fees 19.20 45.53
7000 · Financing Exp - Other 0.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00


Total 7000 · Financing Exp 4,531.24 4,500.00 2,719.78 4,500.00 4,500.00


7200 · Depreciation 2,052.00 2,500.00 1,197.00 2,500.00 2,500.00
7300 · Member Acquistion/Retention


7310 · Promotional Items / Misc. 1,757.85 453.40
7315 · Sponsor Commissions 1,100.00 2,850.00
7300 · Member Acquistion/Retention - Other 0.00 800.00 5,600.00 6,000.00


Total 7300 · Member Acquistion/Retention 2,857.85 800.00 3,303.40 5,600.00 6,000.00


8200 · Income Taxes
8210 · Federal 10,376.00 3,020.00
8220 · State 5,074.00 1,661.00
8200 · Income Taxes - Other 0.00 5,600.00 15,500.00 15,500.00


Total 8200 · Income Taxes 15,450.00 5,600.00 4,681.00 15,500.00 15,500.00


Total 6950 · Other Expenses 24,891.09 13,400.00 11,901.18 28,100.00 28,500.00


8950 · Marketing Clearance 0.00 15,000.00
9000 · Suspensed Transactions 0.00
9900 · Chapter Distribution Add-Back (2,997.92)
Total Expense 964,836.05 890,450.00 468,893.44 899,458.00 960,970.00


Net Income (87,581.53) (84,400.00) 218,085.11 (54,658.00) (100,070.00)
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Agenda Item: VI / F. 
SAS Regional, Technical, and Student Section Affairs, Report to the Executive Committee 
August 28, 2014 
 
Committee Chair: Rob Lascola 
Committee Members: Brian Dable, James Patterson 
 
Activity 
 
The Spring 2014 RTSA report described 4 projects that the committee would undertake.   
 


1) Reinvigorate sections that are currently underactive.  
 


A letter from the committee and from the SAS Chair was sent to the membership in the August 
newsletter and was posted on the SAS LinkedIn group.  The letter is appended to this report.  It 
identifies the underactive sections and solicits volunteers from the membership to assume 
leadership roles within the sections.  We received several responses, and further approached 
several individuals who were thought to be candidates to help in this regard.  The resulting new 
information for certain sections, current to the date of this report, is described below.  Subsequent 
information between now and the Executive Committee and Governing Board meetings at SciX 
will be presented at those times.  The letter provided a response deadline of September 15. 
 


• Atomic:  Paul Farnsworth has agreed to be the second officer for this section and will 
represent the section at the upcoming Governing Board meeting. 


 
• Chemometrics:  Barry Lavine, Karl Booksh, and Shawn Chen have agreed to serve as 


interim officers for this section.  They have received a “starter kit” which includes a 
section membership roster, templates for the section’s constitution and bylaws (current 
versions of these could not be found), a template for the annual report, and a copy of the 
national constitution and bylaws with sections relevant to the technical sections 
highlighted.  They will conduct an election in the fall and submit an annual report.  A 
version of the “starter kit” will be distributed to all other sections that are getting 
(re)started. 


 
• Houston:  Anthony Stender, who was active in the Iowa State student section, will be 


starting a post-doc at Rice in the fall and expressed interest in helping others who are 
trying to revive the section. 


 
• Intermountain:  Joel Harris, Paul Farnsworth, and Peter Griffiths have indicated strong 


interest in reviving the Intermountain section, which is primarily constituted of members 
in Utah.  Both the U. Utah and BYU student sections are active, which helps maintain 
professional interest.  Bonnie Saylor has forwarded a roster and constitution/bylaws and 
annual report templates to them. 


 
• Mid-Michigan:  Shawn Chen expressed interest in reviving this section and has received 


a roster and other information.   
 


• Niagara Frontier:  Joe Gardella gave a detailed assessment of the status of this section, 
which encompasses Western New York (Buffalo/Rochester) and southern Ontario (up to 
Toronto), but has functionally been based in Buffalo.  Section membership has been 
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adversely affected by the decline of industry, particularly in Rochester.   It may be 
possible to get more interest in the section but it will require renewed efforts to expand 
activity outside of Buffalo. 
 


• Pacific Northwest: Brian Marquardt has agreed to serve as Chair of this section. 
 


• Snake River: This section covers the northern end of the Rocky Mountain range (Idaho 
and Montana).  There are very few members living here and it is unlikely that a section 
can be maintained.  The membership may be best served by redistributing them to the 
Intermountain and Pacific Northwest sections. 


 
• St. Louis:  David McCurdy provided a detailed description of the activities of this section.  


It is probable that an annual report will be submitted this year. 
 
Summary – Regional Sections:  The Houston, Intermountain, Mid-Michigan, Niagara Frontier, 
Pacific Northwest, and St. Louis Regional Sections all had members respond to the call for 
volunteers, and should be given time to reorganize.  An expectation should be that these sections 
will submit an annual report at the end of the year and otherwise meet the requirements to remain 
an active section. 
 
The Snake River section has too few members to remain viable and should be deactivated.  
Members in southeast Idaho should be transferred to the Intermountain region.  Members in 
western Idaho should be transferred to the Pacific Northwest region. 
 
The remaining sections on the at-risk list - Penn-York, Piedmont, Rio Grande, and Rocky 
Mountain – did not have anyone respond to the solicitation.  Additional efforts will be made to 
contact members before and during SciX, and the results of those efforts will be reported at the 
Governing Board meeting at SciX.  Comments on these sections are as follows.  The Penn-York 
and Rio Grande sections do not have enough members to be sustained, and should be declared 
inactive. The Rocky Mountain section covers an unworkably large area.  Members who live in 
Utah would be better suited to the Intermountain region, while others who live in New Mexico 
should have a narrower region (or just be at-large members).  The Piedmont section is spread out, 
with a four-hour drive required to cover the core area of the Carolinas.  However, there are many 
active members and students in this region, and a last push before inactivation has the best chance 
out of these four sections of being successful. 
 
Summary - Technical Sections:  The expectation for the Atomic and Chemometric Sections is 
that they will meet the requirements for active sections. 
 
No response was obtained for the other technical sections.  The priority of the Committee to this 
point has been to work on Regional sections.  We propose that another year be allowed to pursue 
renewal of the underactive Technical sections.  Membership levels in most of these sections are 
high enough to support some level of activity.  Further, for most international members, 
Technical sections are the only opportunity for increased involvement with the Society besides 
receiving the Journal.  As with the Regional sections, the ability of the Society to be a resource 
for the Technical sections (web site, symposium sponsorship, certification, etc.) will be critical 
for successful reactivation.  However, for Chirality and NMR, the sections are too small to be 
viable and should be declared inactive. 
 
Summary - Student sections:  Student sections were not part of the reactivation call.  The 
Committee and the SAS Student Representative were able to obtain new information about some 
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sections.  We have compiled a list of faculty advisors, which is included as a footnote to the 
membership table at the end of this report.  The faculty advisors were encouraged to remind the 
students to submit an annual report; only two of the eight sections submitted a report in 2013.  
The faculty advisors contacted at the time of this writing also expressed interest (or at least 
willingness) to be included on emails from the SAS Office to the section officers, to help them 
keep appraised of their section’s obligations. 
 


• Arizona State:  Per discussion with Mark Hayes (ASU faculty advisor), there are no 
students in the section and it should be considered inactive.  The numbers in the 
membership table below are probably legacy from earier registrations. 
 


• University of Idaho:  There are no students listed as being part of the section.  Per 
discussion with Peter Griffiths, within a year there will no longer be any faculty at Idaho 
doing research in spectroscopy.  Therefore, the section should be considered inactive. 


 
• University of Utah:  Per discussion with Joel Harris, there is an active student section 


despite there not being any members listed in the database.  It is possible that there are 
members of the student section who are not student members of SAS.  Whatever the 
cause, this section should not be deactivated. 


 
For reference, Article XII, Section 6 of the SAS Bylaws, which discusses inactivation of Regional 
sections, is included.  The language for a Technical section (Article XIII, Section 5) is similar.1 
 


 
 


                                                           
1 Art. XIII, Sec. 5 differs from Art. XII, Sec. 6 in that, in the former, there is no discussion of the disposition of 
funds for an affiliate section.  Inclusion of such language should be considered for the next Bylaws change. 
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2) Update RTSA-related website content.  
 


This effort is a lower priority than identifying leaders of the moribund sections, and has not yet 
been promoted.  This work will pick up in the next 6 months.  Success for this effort will require 
that the sections provide content to put onto the website.  For those groups which already have 
websites, such as Coblentz, New York, and Pittsburgh, a brief description of the section and a 
link to the website is probably sufficient.  For other groups that do not have sites set up, the SAS 
section pages would be a handy way to host section information.  The Committee will work with 
the Web Editor to make a simple, standard template that will maintain a consistent design.   


 
3) Develop “snapshot” or “status board” to quickly access section health and activity and prioritize 


RTSA committee activities. 
 


The status board is emerging, now that the Committee is addressing activity issues and has 
information to populate the board.  The board will continue to develop and become a useful tool 
for managing section activity. 


 
4) Obtain information to determine if the large number of underactive sections can be traced to the 


RTSA selection process, and if a change in the selection process is warranted. 
 


A series of questions intended to obtain this information will be included in a larger SAS 
membership survey.  The survey was originally intended to be distributed this past summer, but 
has been delayed.  Roughly, about half of SAS members in the US who reside in the territory of a 
regional section do not join that section.  Many members do not affiliate with more than the one 
“free” section that comes with membership.  The survey questions are intended to determine if 
those who do not join a regional section make that choice because of (perceived or real) section 
activity, not wanting to spend extra for a second affiliation, or another reason.   
 
There are several reasons why some sections are less active, such as geographic spread, loss of 
spectroscopy jobs in the area reducing the potential membership, and competition from other 
professional societies such as ACS local sections.  Still, low membership is the greatest challenge 
to the sections.  Almost all the at-risk sections are the smallest in SAS, and are far below 
whatever critical mass is required to keep section activities going.  The loss of one or two leaders 
is enough to shut down these groups.  A larger pool of people is required to absorb those losses 
when they occur. 
 
I would like to have a discussion with the Executive Committee and Governing Board to consider 
ways to increase the Regional section membership.  The starting point would be to reconsider the 
way that members join Regional sections, specifically to assign members to the local section they 
reside in, in a manner similar to the assignment done by the ACS, while also allowing members 
to select a “free” technical section affiliation.  Some administrative considerations for 
implementation would include the following: 
 


• Specific geographic regions would have to be defined for each section.  Some affiliates 
already have these regions.  The RTSA Committee is drafting a map which shows rough 
geographic boundaries based on the locations of declared members.  The Regional 
sections would have to agree to the final boundaries. 


• Persons who do not live within the boundaries of a Regional section would be assigned to 
an at-large section.  Outside the US, members may be assigned to continental at-large 
sections.  (Arrangements for appropriate representation on the Governing Board would 
have to be considered.) 
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• Dues would be increased to help bring more money to the sections and faciliate activities.  
An initial estimate is to raise dues by $5 US, which is half the cost to join an additional 
section.  It is hoped that this increase would have minimal impact on overall membership 
levels. 


• The formulas for dues distribution may have to be re-examined and tweaked slightly.  It 
is not the intent of this proposal to have a funding redistribution away from successful 
sections.  The information exists in the membership database to predict the new section 
membership numbers, and before/after comparisons can be made.  If these calculations 
can be done before the physical meetings of the Executive Committee and Governing 
Board at SciX, the results will be presented as an addendum to those bodies.  Charges and 
distribution to At-Large “regions” may require special consideration, if their numbers are 
disproportionately large. 


 
Increasing membership rolls can only be a part of the solution.  It is apparent from comments 
(direct discussions, LinkedIn forums, etc.) that traditional section activities, such as regular 
meetings with Tour speakers, need to be supplemented with new ideas to help members meet 
Society goals at the Regional level.  Otherwise, we will just be formally counting a larger number 
of people not being active.  Each section must determine what is relevant and important for its 
membership and allow those activities to define the meaning of the section’s existence. 
Maintaining the tradition of giving a national- or regional-level award, organizing a symposium, 
participating in specific outreach activities, or even just having a regular dinner meeting, can 
provide the momentum to keep going during leaner years and be the base to support growth in 
better times.   The following is a partial list of ideas intended to spark discussions.  Many of these 
examples may be pursued already by several sections, but perhaps there are other sections who 
have not considered them. 
 


• It should be easier for each section to see what other sections are doing.  The RTSA 
Committee and the Newsletter Editor will start featuring Regional and Technical Section 
activities in the monthly newsletter sent to the membership.  Annual reports, which 
include yearly activities summaries, should be available on the SAS web site (financial 
information can be scrubbed if necessary).   


• Collaboration with other organizations, such as ACS local sections or university 
departments, can be a way to leverage limited resources or reach new audiences.  
Inclusion of student SAS sections in regular Regional section activities benefits both 
groups.  Regular members will appreciate talking with and advising younger scientists, 
and the students will gain from meeting scientists outside their particular university. 


• All Student sections are especially dependent on the energy of a few students and/or 
faculty advisor.  Expanding student sections to include members from several 
universities and colleges will help provide continuity over the years, exposure the 
students to new environments (each department has its own culture!), and provide a way 
for students from smaller institutions to participate.   


• The role of webinars or virtual meetings in new Regional Section activities has been 
discussed for a couple of years, and at least one section (New England) has successfully 
carried out a virtual meeting.  The technical information and lessons learned from this 
experience should be disseminated to other sections, preferably within a few months, so 
that they may have time to plan and budget for conducting their own meetings.  
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Recommendations for Committee / Proposed Steps Forward 
 
These actions should be pursued in addition to the regular activities of the Committee. 
 


1. Develop the tools described above to facilitate Regional and Technical section activities, both 
formally active and re-invigorated.  Development of the SAS web site as a resource for this 
information is important. 


2. Identify and approach persons to assume leadership of Technical sections. 
3. Continue to support the re-invigoration efforts of those working with Regional sections. 
4. Develop a specific proposal, by the end of December, for changing regional/technical 


membership affiliation and work out the implications of the changes.  Questions to be considered 
include: 


a. What changes to the bylaws would be required? 
b. What are the financial outcomes of dues changes? 
c. What is the timetable for implementing a change? 
d. What approval is required?  (EC, GB, or both?) 
e. Are there specific criteria for considering the change to have been a success, and is there 


a time frame by which the criteria should be met? 
f. How do we provide services to  


5. Develop a mission statement which defines the roles that Regional and Technical sections should 
have in SAS.  The mission statement will incorporate input from the Executive Committee and 
Governing Board, as well as from the general membership.  There have been some comments 
made in previous discussions (e.g. on LinkedIn) which question whether the sections are still 
relevant.  The mission statement should convincingly answer those questions, and in so doing will 
perhaps motivate more of the membership to be active in the sections. 


 
Actions for EC/SAS 
 
These discussions should occur at the EC meeting at SciX, and perhaps during teleconferences 
beforehand if there is specific information that should be brought before the Governing Board. 
 


1. Discuss allowing inactivation of the Penn-York, Rio Grande, Rocky Mountain, and Snake River 
Regional sections and the Chirality and NMR Technical Sections. 


2. Discuss affiliate status and 501(c)3 registration of Northern California section.   
3. Discuss aspects of the membership proposal. 
4. (Constitution and Bylaws Committee) – Note footnote on p. 3 of this report. 


 
Items to be voted by EC/GB 
 


1. EC: Vote on inactivation of sections listed in EC Action Item 1. 
2. EC: Possible vote on path forward with Northern California section, based on discussion in Ec 


Action Item 2. 
3. EC and/or GB: Vote on membership proposal.  (Due to the timing of obtaining input and writing 


the proposal, any vote would probably occur electronically, after SciX.) 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Regional, Technical, and Student Section Affairs Committee 
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Demographic Information  


The latest membership numbers are current as of 8/20/14 and include members within the three month grace period for renewal.  Information for 
section officers is current as of annual reports submitted at the end of 2013.  These tables do not reflect developments for specific sections that are 
described above. 


Regional Sections 
Name A/


C/I 
A
R 


Membership Trends Elected Officers 


   Aug-
14 


Feb-
14 


Sep-
13 


Mar-
13 


Chair Chair-Elect Secretary Treasurer 


Arizona I          
Balt-Wash A Y 47 53 54 50 John Canham (a)  Kris Patterson Jeb Taylor 
Chicago A Y 46 51 59 62 Fred Swiecinski  Alyison Leigh  


Cincinnati C N 17 18 16 14     
Cleveland A Y 18 19 16 13 Brian Perry Tom Steele Sara Freeman Bob Williams 
Del. Valley A Y 30 29 25 25 Cecil Dybkowski Lois Weyer David Russell David Russell 


Detroit C Y 16 15 11 9 Patsy Coleman Ian Lewis David Coleman David Coleman 
Houston C N 13 16 13 14     
Indiana C Y* 20 20 18 17     


Intermountain C N 6 9 8 6     
Kansas City I          
Mid-Michigan C N 14 14 13 10     


Minnesota C Y* 21 23 25 22     
New England A Y 56 59 68 70 resigned  Ellen Miseo Stephen Williams 
New York A Y 61 60 61 48 Eugene Hall David Tuschel Deborah Peru Richard Castino 


Niag. Frontier C N 6 6 4 4     
No. California A Y 29 33 31 30 Steve Barnett Steve Rabin   
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Ohio Valley C Y 9 17 17 12 Paul Hsu  Hans Stauffer  


Pacific NW C N 12 15 15 11     
Penn York C N 3 6 6 3     
Piedmont C N 19 20 24 29     


Pittsburgh A Y 36 23 25 22 Manny Miller Stephanie Wetzel Karen Johnson Karry Holzworth 
Rio Grande C N 8 9 9 7     
Rocky Mtn C N 16 14 19 20     


St. Louis C N 26 29 28 28     
Snake River C N 4 6 6 5     
UK C Y 46 47 51 48 Pavel Matousek Caroline Rodger Andy Brookes John Chalmers 


 
Technical Sections 
 
Name A/


C/I 
A
R 


Membership Trends Elected Officers 


   Aug-
14 


Feb-
14 


Sep-
13 


Mar-
13 


Chair Chair-Elect Secretary Treasurer 


Atomic C Y 165 163 175 166 D. Bradshaw    
BioTech C N 36 41 52 50     
Chemometrics C N 114 107 103 100     
Chirality C N 8 7 8 11     
Fluorescence C N 47 58 70 67     
Forensics C N 41 36 45 45     
Imaging C N 91 91 91 81     
Laser Sampl. C N 20 14 21 22     
NIR/CNIRS A Y 70 70 76 66 Gary Ritchie Igor Kovalenko Art Springsteen Susan Foulk 
NMR C N 10 11 13 13     
Polymer Char. C N 50 59 53 56     
Process C Y 31 33 28 33 Jim Rydzak B. Smith-Goettler Benoit Inge E. Botonjic-Sehic 
Vibn/Coblentz A Y 310 319 334 313 Jim Rydzak  R. Crocombe Mary Carrabba 
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Student Sections 
 
Name A/


C/I 
A
R 


Membership Trends Elected Officers 


   Aug-
14 


Feb-
14 


Sep-
13 


Mar-
13 


Chair Chair-Elect Secretary Treasurer 


Arizona State   4 4 6 4     
BYU   9 6 5 3     
Iowa State   3 3 3 4 Dipak Mainali A. Augspurger Aleem Syed Aleem Syed 
Truman State   11 4 3 3     
U. Delaware   11 2 5 3     
U. Idaho   0 0 1 1     
U. Utah   0 0 1 2     
U Wisc-Milw.   6 7 7 6 Ryan Schmeling Kelly Teske Xavier Udad Hannah Wagie 


 
Confirmed faculty advisors: 
ASU: Mark Hayes; BYU: James Patterson; Iowa State: Emily Smith; Truman State: David McCurdy; Utah: Joel Harris.  We will attempt to 
confirm the Delaware and Wisconsin-Milwaukee faculty advisors before SciX and update the table accordingly. 
 
A/C/I: A = Affiliate, C = Chapter, I = Inactive.  AR: Annual Report submitted? Yes or No.  Y* = section has indicated that report is being 
prepared. 
(a): Acting. 
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Letter to Membership (August SAS Newsletter) 
 
SAS Needs YOU to Revive Regional, Technical, and Student Sections 


One of the benefits of SAS membership is affiliation with a regional, student, or technical section of your choice. The affiliation is a way to find and interact with 
spectroscopists with whom you share common interests. Unfortunately, many of these sections have become functionally inactive in recent years, and a large 
portion of SAS members are not benefiting from this facet of their affiliation. We have personally received emails and been asked at conferences, "I joined my 
regional section X and they don't do anything. Why is this an option for me to sign-up? What are my dues being used for?" 


The Executive Committee, Regional and Technical Section Affairs Committee, and Membership Committee are developing a number of Society-wide 
improvements to address common problems for each section. Virtual conferencing capabilities will help alleviate issues where it is difficult for sections to meet in 
person. We have plans to enhance the content of the SAS website to better meet section needs. We will soon distribute a membership survey, in which members 
can raise specific concerns about regional, student, and technical sections. The National Office reserves a portion of your dues to be paid to the sections to 
support their activities. 


Still, we need your help—not only to facilitate some of the solutions we are working on, but also to devise and implement solutions to section-specific problems. 
We are asking for volunteers to serve as officers of the inactive sections. At a minimum, the section needs a Chair and a Treasurer to be viable. With officers in 
place, each section will be able to actively promote both Section-specific and SAS goals, and use its allocated funds for activities that support those goals. 
Possible activities include (but are not limited to!) supporting local events or conferences and benefiting from the SAS-organized tour speaker program. Members 
of the section will get real benefits from their membership, rather than wondering what checking the box during their yearly renewal brings them. Also, members 
will have a voice at national-level affairs through the presence of a section delegate at SAS Governing Board meetings (currently held at SciX). So, we ask you to 
please consider volunteering and helping direct a Section for current and future members. If you would like more information, please ask either of us, and we will 
send you details on the duties of the position(s) and resources that would be available to you. Please let us know of your interest by September 15. 


Here is the list of functionally inactive sections. Please note that the Society bylaws outline only two section states, Active and Inactive. Without officers, and 
without having filed a complete annual report, the section is technically inactive. These sections are at risk of formally being declared Inactive by the Executive 
Committee, at which point reactivation will become a more involved process. So, if you are at all considering becoming more involved, now is the ideal time to do 
so! 


Regional Sections: Houston; InterMountain; Mid-Michigan; Niagara Frontier; Pacific Northwest; Penn-York; Piedmont; Rio Grande; Rocky Mountain; St. Louis; 
Snake River. 


Technical Sections: Biotech; Chirality; Fluorescence; Imaging; Laser Sampling; NMR; Polymer Characterization. 


Of course, if you have any suggestions or comments concerning how Regional, Technical, or Student Sections might better serve your needs, we will be happy to 
hear them. Let us know what's on your mind! 


Thank you for your consideration, 


Rob Lascola 
Regional/Technical Section Affairs Coordinator 2014-16, SAS 
robert.lascola@srnl.doe.gov 
 


 
Ian R. Lewis 
President 2014, SAS 
irlewis@kosi.com 



mailto:robert.lascola@srnl.doe.gov

mailto:irlewis@kosi.com
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August 27, 2014 
 
To:    SAS Governing Board 
 
From:   David S Trimble, Ph.D. 
 
Subject:  Chemical Heritage Foundation 
 SAS Delegate Report 
 
 
I have been challenged by several members of the EC to better inform you in the ways CHF is 
important to the Society for Applied Spectroscopy, and how our membership might benefit from direct 
updates of CHF happenings.  
 
How the CHF Serves the General Public, Scientific S cholars, and Member Organizations:  
 
First we might start with the mission statement: 


Mission Statement 


To foster dialogue on science and technology in society. 


CHF’s staff and fellows study the past in order to understand the present and inform the future. 
We focus on the sciences and technologies of matter and materials and their effect on our 
modern world, in territory ranging from the physical sciences and industries, through the 
chemical sciences and engineering, to the life sciences and technologies.  


We collect, preserve, and exhibit historical artifacts. We engage communities of scientists and 
engineers. We tell the stories of the people behind breakthroughs and innovations. 


 
Here are some examples of how the CHF fosters dialogue in the community: 
 


• First Fridays – Held at the CHF the first Friday of each month. These events are often 
informal, hands on and always interactive with the whole family in mind. September’s topic is 
“Suited for Space”. 


 
• Science on Tap – Held monthly at the National Mechanics pub and brew house.  This is a 


gathering to encourage public discussion on scientific topics in an informal setting.  This month 
urban orchardist Phil Forsyth will discuss permaculture – in particular how we can create 
functioning, diverse environments within the city limits that mimic the natural systems within 
forests. 


 
• Brown Bag Lectures (BBLs) are a series of weekly informal talks on the history of chemistry or 


related subjects. 
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More for the professional community: 


• The Joseph Priestley Society (JPS) lecture series explores topics in science, technology, and 
industry through professional networking receptions and lectures by industry leaders. During 
this month’s event Fernando Musa, CEO, Braskem America, will deliver the keynote address 
“Survival, Growth, and Perpetuity.” 


• Heritage Day is CHF’s signature celebration of the achievements and promise of the sciences 
and technologies that shape material culture. Festivities include presentation of the Othmer 
Gold Medal; the Richard J. Bolte Sr. Award for Supporting Industries; and the AIC Gold Medal. 
Heritage Day 2014  honored the accomplishments of three distinguished leaders: Kiran 
Mazumdar-Shaw, Ronald C. D. Breslow, and Atsushi Horiba. (yes – the Horiba whose 
company bears his name). 


 The facilities are world class: 


• The Othmer Library of Chemical History collects, preserves, and makes accessible 
materials relating to the history of science, technology, and medicine, with an emphasis on 
chemistry and chemical engineering from ancient to modern times. The Othmer Library 
currently houses approximately 160,000 print and microform volumes, rare books and 
manuscripts, significant archival materials, and historical photographs of great value to 
researchers and our cultural heritage. Together these collections, spanning nearly 6 miles of 
shelves, form an unrivaled resource for the history of chemistry and related sciences, 
technologies, and industries. 


 
• The Museum at CHF features permanent and changing exhibits that explore the fascinating 


history of chemistry and the role science plays in the modern world.  I refer you to their web 
site for photos and a thorough description of the current exhibits: 
http://www.chemheritage.org/visit/museum/exhibits/index.aspx 
 


How can I better let you and the membership know what events and happenings are scheduled?  
These might be the low hanging fruit….. 
 


1. Through the national office provide email blasts.  Any member of the CHF receives a lot of 
information by email. 


 
2. Provide the EC and perhaps local section heads with complimentary copies of the CHF 


magazine, published three times per year. 
 


3. Encourage any members to stay informed themselves via facebook or the CHF website itself. 
 


4. Use the SAS website and facebook pages to pass along CHF information – by the way, all 
sponsoring organizations are supposed to have a link to the CHF on their web site ….  I notice 
we don’t? 


 


The remainder of this report pertains to the spring  meetings: 
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Instrument and Artifacts Committee: 


This committee met as usual prior to the Heritage Council meeting.   Efforts that were planned at that 
time included cataloging the instrument holdings to make the collection more useful to researchers, 
perhaps “crowd sourcing” organization and inventory of the stored instruments and associated “stuff” 
to locals and retirees.  However staffing has suddenly become an issue.  The committee was aware 
that Curator Jennifer Landry had resigned her position to pursue a wonderful opportunity out of state.  
Then more suddenly, this summer her successor resigned to become the Museum Curator at NIST.  
As of this writing I have not learned if a replacement has been identified or hired. 
 
The Spring Heritage Council Meeting: 


Significant highlights from the meeting are included below.  For deeper reading the complete minutes 
of the meeting are attached. 
 
New Heritage Council Chair – Gary Patterson.   Gary’s goals include making the Heritage Council a 
365 day activity, not just twice a year.  There is a vast experience base sitting on the council – he’d 
like to see us more involved and available to each other and to the CHF.  He views the CHF and the 
HC as global organizations, and wishes to reach out across the waters.  More information about Gary 
can be found: http://www.chem.cmu.edu/faculty/patterson.html  
 
President’s Report – Carsten Reinhardt. The CHF endowment is at an all-time high - $184M.  We 
were very lucky this past year – we do not expect to repeat last year’s market performance.  Most 
(40%) of the operating budget still comes from members/donations.  As with all organizations – we 
must become more dependent on individual donors as corporate and foundation grants are 
diminishing.   
 
Carsten expanded on a collaborative effort with Columbia University to train the next generation of 
scholars in the history of science, especially the benefits of interdisciplinary work between the natural 
sciences and humanities.  He has a vision of the establishment of a digital lab at CHF in the future 
that would again engage both scholars in the sciences and the humanities. 
 
Patrick Shea – Chief Curator of Archives and Manusc ripts.  Best summary of his presentation is 
to quote his introductory remarks: “Unless an act of acquisition is subject to proper organization, 
cataloging, preservation and storage it is nothing but an act of hording.”  Shea went on to comment 
that digitization is a tool for access, not archiving.  Paper lasts 500-1000 years, and electronic media 
20 years in the best case.  How do we archive email? Print it! 
 
Ron Brashear – Director, Othmer Library of Chemical  History. Ron spoke regarding the state of 
the art in digitization of collections.  To comment of the daunting size of this task, Ron remarked “In 
another 15 years CHF will be up to the 20th century”.  He introduces the council to the “LOCKSS” 
principle (pronounced locks) – Lots Of Copies Keeps Stuff Safe. Modern practice is to have multiple 
redundant copies on servers kept on different tectonic plates. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 


Dave Trimble
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Minutes of the Thirtieth Heritage Council Meeting 


Held at Chemical Heritage Foundation in Philadelphia on 


May 14, 2014 
 


These notes summarize the discussions, decisions, and action items made during the thirtieth Heritage 


Council meeting on May 14, 2014 at CHF in Philadelphia and were prepared by Bob Kenworthy of CHF.  


The meeting was held in conjunction with other governance related meetings from 10:30AM – 4:30PM.  


 


MEETING ATTENDEES: 


Affiliate Representatives/Members-at-Large/Observers: 


 


David Alcorn – Member-at- Large 


Gary D. Anderson – Alpha Chi Sigma Fraternity 


Tom Archibald - AIChE 


John P. Baltrus - PITTCON 


Emmerson Bowes – Royal Society of Chemistry 


Kathryn Bullock – Electrochemical Society (by telephone) 


Mark C. Cesa – International Union of Pure and Applied Chemistry 


Roger Egolf – Division of the History of Chemistry of the American Chemical Society 


Anthony Dent - NOBBChE 


Marc Donohue – Council on Chemical Research 


Ernest Gilmont – Société de Chimie Industrielle 


Michael Grayson – American Society for Mass Spectrometry 


L. Louis Hegedus – National Academy of Engineering (Observer) 


Ned Heindel – Member-at-Large 


W. Richard Howe – Member-at-Large 


Peter Lederman – Member-at-Large  


David Manuta – American Institute of Chemists 


Anne T. O’Brien - ACS 


Gary Patterson – Member-at-Large 


Joe Pilaro – Member-at-Large 


Lew Boxenbaum – The Chemists’ Club 


Jeffrey I. Seeman, Chair – Member-at-Large 


John Sharkey - ACS 


A. Wayne Tamarelli – Joseph Priestley Society 


David Trimble – Society of Applied Spectroscopy 
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Guests 


Philip E. Rakita – Candidate for Member-at-Large, Brigitte Van Tiggelen – CHF Office of the President, 


Europe. Edwin (Ted) Becker – Former Member, Evan Hepler-Smith – Scholar/Presenter  


 


Chemical Heritage Foundation Staff: 


Carsten Reinhardt, Beth Alfaro, Ron Brashear, Carin Berkowitz, David Caruso, Shelley Geehr, Sarah 


Reisert, Jody Roberts, Patrick Shea, and Bob Kenworthy. 


 
Thirtieth Meeting of the Heritage Council 


of the Chemical Heritage Foundation 


May 14, 2013 


        Agenda 


 


This meeting of the Heritage Council members has two foci:  the election of the next Chair of the Heritage Council; and an examination of 


‘The State-of-the-Art” in areas of critical interest to the Chemical Heritage Foundation 


 


 10:30 a.m.  Welcome 


Approval of October 10, 2013 Meeting Minutes 


           


10:35 a.m.  Round Table Introduction and General Reports     


• Bolton Society 


• Joseph Priestley Society 


• Instrument and Artifacts Committee 


• Membership Committee 


• Nominating Committee  


 


11:00 a.m.  Election of the Next Chair of the Heritage Council 


Outcome:  The members of the HC will have the opportunity to learn the candidates’ vision for the HC through 


presentations and Q&A and then voice their opinions in a vote for the next Chair. 


 


• 10-minute presentation by each candidate 


• 10-minute Q&A session 


• The Election 


 


12:00 noon Luncheon and Celebration of the Incoming HC Chair 


 


  1:00 p.m.  President’s Report 


Outcome:  Affiliates will gain an appreciation of CHF’s new mission statement and Strategic Plan. 


 


 


  1:35 p.m.  Presentation 1:   Collecting and Archiving – Including the Challenges  Presented by Digitization and Born  


Digital Records   (Ron Brashear and Patrick Shea)  


     


  2:30 p.m.  Presentation 2: Oral Histories (David Caruso) 


Outcome:  Affiliates will gain an appreciation of the State-of-the-Art in several areas of importance in CHF 


programming 


 


  3:00 p.m.  Break 


 


  3:15 p.m.  Meet a CHF staffer:  Beth Alfaro, Human Resources Manager 


Outcome:  Affiliates will learn who Beth Alfaro is, what her job entails, and what she feels are her and CHF’s highest 


priorities. 


 


  4:00 p.m.  BCHOC Scholarly Presentation:  Evan Hepler-Smith 


"The Structure of Compounds, the Function of Nomenclature, and the History of Chemical Information" 


 


  4:30 p.m.  Meeting Review 


 


  4:45 p.m.  Other Business 


 


  5:00 p.m.  Transfer of the Gavel.  Words by the incoming Chair of the HC 


    


“Sneak Peek” of “Suited for Space” 
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   Two-20 minute tours/20 persons per tour - Clifford C. Hach Gallery 


 


  6:00 p.m.  Spring Governance Dinner 


   Union League, 140 South Broad Street, Lincoln Memorial Room 


Shuttle will depart CHF at 5:45 p.m. and return to CHF after dinner at approximately 9:00 p.m. 


Welcome and Opening Remarks 


 


Chair, Jeffrey Seeman, welcomed all to the meeting and outlined the flow of the meeting including the 


election of the next Heritage Council Chair. He described the process is being followed and the fact that 


the meeting was being attended to by at least one member by telephone conference call. He then 


announced the changes in the membership of the Heritage Council since the last meeting.  Jeff then 


asked each member to introduce him/herself including the newly hired Director – Office of the President, 


CHF Europe, Brigitte Van Tiggelen, who attended the meeting as a guest preceding her employment by 


CHF on July 1st.    


  


Approval of Minutes 


 


The Minutes from the October 10, 2013 meeting were approved unanimously. 


 


General Reports 


 


Bolton Society 


 Gary Patterson reported for the Bolton Society and which he noted continues to be a working part of 


CHF.  Gary reported that new members are joining and international membership is growing.  He noted 


that founding member, Herb Pratt, was remembered reverently at this morning’s meeting.  Noting that 


the publication Boltonia  is now an e-newsletter, Gary pointed out that the latest issue contained elegies 


for Jim Bohning and Herb Pratt as well as a report on the successful SHAC/Bolton meeting in London in 


November 2013.  At that London meeting, the day at the Royal Institution in London was the Annual 


General Meeting of the Society for the History of Alchemy and Chemistry.  Speakers from the Bolton 


Society included Gary Patterson, Ned Heindel, Ron Brashear, Ron Smeltzer and Jim Voelkel.  The group 


also toured Cambridge and Oxford with Robert Anderson as guide.   


Gary went on to report that the latest oral history for David Sparkman is now approaching publication 


and the next volume will be Arnold Thackray.  Finally, he reported that the Collectors Showcase included 


a rare volume by Berzelius(1814) on “Mineralogy”, a very rare book on the “Transits of Venus” by 


Benjamin Martin (1761), and a scholar’s copy of “A New Method of Chemistry” by Herman Boerhaave 


(1727). 


 


Joseph Priestley Society 


 Wayne Tamarelli reported on the nature and character of the Joseph Priestley Society noting that the 


concept still has value to CHF and continues to change in response to the changing needs of CHF.  The 


full detail report on JPS activities was given in writing with the agenda for this meeting and is attached to 


these minutes as Attachment I. 


 


Instrument and Artifact Committee (HCIAC) 


 Mike Grayson reported for the HCIAC.  He reported that Jennifer Landry announced that she was 


resigning to take a position at the Scouting Museum in Irving TX.  May 29, 2014 is her final day at CHF.  
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The group acknowledged Jenn’s contributions during her service.  Mike also reported that Kristen 


Frederick-Frost reviewed the collections activities since their last meeting and acknowledged the 


challenges facing her in balancing the desire to collect with the space to hold that collection. For 


example, select items from the Beckman Institute relating to X-ray crystallography were collected.  These 


were primarily models of various crystal structures.    Kristen chose only models for which she could ‘tell 


the stories and processes behind the items’.  The 50 most important instruments has been discontinued 


as a collection goal, since most of the items have been collected or could no longer be found. 


 


DuPont is offering a collection of dyes to CHF.  This contact will be explored in the coming months.  


Kristen would like help with assessing this collection.  It was suggested that the successor to Herb Pratt, 


Martha Carper, would be the ideal individual to help in this regard. Kristen would like to approach the 


collection process with a view to contextualizing scientific instruments with tales, touch, and technology.  


This would involve matching stories with objects, the use of augmented reality via the cell phone, and 


better use of the educational prop collection.  


 


Membership Committee 


There was no report from the Membership Committee. 


Nominating Committee  


In the physical absence of Kathryn Bullock, Bob Kenworthy read her report and, on behalf of the 


Heritage Council Nominating Committee nominated Philip E. Rakita to serve as member-at-large. The 


Heritage Council elected him unanimously.   


 


Specific Reports 


Election for Chair of the Heritage Council   


 


The election process as outlined in the agenda and earlier mailings began with the three nominees for 


the position of Chair, Marc Donohue, Mike Grayson, and Gary Patterson, each presenting himself and 


answering questions.  Specifically, the three offered the following in answer to the question of how he 


would address the future value of the Heritage Council to CHF and of CHF to the individual affiliates 


represented on the Heritage Council: 


 


Marc Donohue: 


 


Stated his belief that the greatest opportunity for the Heritage Council to increase its impact and 


the impact of the CHF overall is by having the HC members each work with CHF staff and their 


affiliate organizations to find ways for CHF to participate in the affiliate organizations’ meeting 


activities. He suggested the following: 


 


• Increase the desirability of Heritage Council organizations to use CHF facilities for events 


such as Board meetings, etc. 


• Have affiliates jointly sponsor (or endorse) exhibits at CHF. If possible, consider having 


some CHF exhibits tour and be presented at affiliates’ annual meetings.  


• Have Heritage Council member organizations make presentations to the Heritage  
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Council or larger CHF groups about the goals, purposes, and exciting things happening in 


their organizations at CHF events.  


• Have CHF staff (fellows and permanent staff) give lectures at the annual (or other) 


meetings of the affiliates.  


 


Mike Grayson: 


 


      Mike Grayson pointed out that the Heritage Council provides affiliates with a unique entrée to the 


resources of the Chemical Heritage Foundation and that every Heritage Council member should 


ensure that their affiliated society is fully aware of these resources and the possibilities for their 


utilization.  He specifically encouraged the following:  


 


• Affiliated societies should consider establishing a joint Oral History program with CHF, Co-


sponsor oral histories of outstanding individuals of their choice, and help define CHF’s wider 


Oral History Program. 


• Ensure that every affiliated society has a PROMINENT link back to the CHF web-page, link 


CHF’s web site to their web sites, produce higher visibility for the Heritage Council on the CHF 


web-site, and produce an affiliate web-page on CHF web-site devoted specifically to the 


history of that affiliate. 


• Feature one affiliate in each issue of Chemical Heritage magazine with news about the history 


of the affiliate, information about an important member or upcoming anniversaries, and 


recent significant news.   


• Promote and assist the formation of an office or officer within each affiliated society whose 


charter is to promote the history of the field and that society. 


• Create a ‘go to’ group of Heritage Council members to assist CHF with technical issues. 


• Produce a ‘VIP’ pass for members of affiliated societies when visiting CHF in Philadelphia. 


• Produce higher visibility for the Heritage Council in CHF Vision and Strategic Plan. 


• Aggressively promote the “Six CHF Offers of Assistance” among affiliates. 


• Draw on and help build the resources of CHF’s Othmer Library of Chemical History 


• Sponsor joint awards and other forms of recognition. 


• Produce joint programming (e.g., symposia, conferences, member-specific activities). 


• Support joint research on the heritage of chemistry and related sciences, technologies, and 


industries, and on contemporary issues, in areas of mutual interest.  Encourage affiliates to 


assist important members in securing their papers with CHF 


 


Gary Patterson: 


 


Stressed his desire to implement the Mission Statement of the Heritage Council and promised the 


following actions if elected: 


 


• To get to know each member personally and to serve as a sounding board and clearing house 


for information. 


• To make the Heritage Council a 365 day a year activity, rather than just a twice yearly 


opportunity to sit and eat. 
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• To work to make the vast knowledge and experience base of the members available to CHF 


and to each other. 


• To reach out to the world chemical community and identify other organizations that would 


make a logical addition to the Heritage Council. 


• To represent the views and interests of the Heritage Council on the Board of CHF. 


 


After each presentation and Q&A, as well as at the end of all three, Jeff Seeman complimented the 


candidates and urged the entire HC to follow through on many if not all of the ideas, recommendations 


and suggestions being offered by the candidates (and not necessarily focus just on those of the 


candidate who would eventually be elected).  Once the presentations were finished, the election was held 


by secret ballot.  There were 25 people voting (including Kathryn Bullock by telephone).  Since no 


candidate received a majority on the first ballot – the votes were split 9,8,8 – additional ballots were 


required.  A runoff was conducted between Mike Grayson and Marc Donohue - Grayson prevailing by a 


vote of 13-12.  On the third ballot (between Mike Grayson and Gary Patterson), Gary Patterson received 


16 votes and was elected to be the next chair of the Heritage Council. This final result was announced to 


the Heritage Council as they were eating lunch. 


 


President’s Report 


 


Following lunch, the Heritage Council meeting resumed with the president’s report.  Carsten 


Reinhardt presented the current state of implementation of the strategic plan.  Since the members of the 


Heritage Council had previously seen this plan, Carsten focused on the implementation steps being taken 


now.  


CHF is seeking new employees to be hired into two expanded groups both of which will operate 


under the overall umbrella of research into materials and material culture. He explained the collaborative 


work with Columbia University to train the next generation of scholars in the history of science.  This 


partnership aims to foster advanced scholarship in interdisciplinary work between the natural sciences 


and humanistic inquiry and research.  Bringing CHF together with Columbia University will have benefits 


for joint work among the sciences, the humanities, and social sciences, and will provide opportunities to 


combine laboratory and humanistic research, as well as to explore digital dimensions of research on early 


modern history of science that can be shared beyond the two institutions.  


 Carsten also announced that CHF has received a $3 million grant from the Arnold and Mabel 


Beckman Foundation for the Beckman Legacy Project that, over its 4 year life, will increase public 


understanding of Beckman’s social impact, based on the digitization of Beckman archival materials, 


original historical research, and the development of video- and web-based outreach. Carsten then 


outlined his vision of the establishment of a digital lab at CHF in the future.  Such a lab would engage 


scientists as well as historians in the work.  The exchange and feed-back processes are critically 


important as CHF moves into its future.   


 


Collecting and Archiving – Including the Challenges Presented by Digitization and Born Digital Records    


 


Patrick Shea, Chief Curator of Archives and Manuscripts, gave the Heritage Council a presentation on 


the CHF Archives and the state of the art in archiving the records of scientific research and related topics. 


He first discussed how archives are identified, appraised and selected, giving photographic examples of 
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the condition of archival materials as found.  Following this, Patrick then presented the process of 


acquisition and accession of these records pointing out the importance of organization of the material 


and the production of a finding guide. He made sure that the Heritage Council understood that records 


as not an archive until such organization and searchability is established.  Patrick finished with a 


presentation of the issues involved with preservation including security and disaster planning.  His slides 


are given as Attachment II to these minutes. 


 


Following Patrick’s presentation, Ron Brashear, Arnold Thackray Director, Othmer Library of Chemical 


History, talked about the state of the art in digitization of collections.  He first clarified the meaning of 


“Digitization” as not simply the scanning and imaging of materials, but essentially a complicated set of 


activities that includes scanning/imaging, then ingest of those materials into a database with appropriate 


metadata, the managing of a complex database of digital objects that have many different properties and 


descriptors, the issues of storage of these digital assets, providing useful access to the assets by staff, 


researchers, and the public, and finally a long-term process of preserving digital assets so they can be 


read in the future and not deteriorate. 


 


Ron pointed out that CHF has been scanning & imaging materials for some time but has paid scant 


attention to how to store them properly and provide access afterwards. Examples of some of CHF’s 


efforts can be found on the Library OPAC (http://othmerlib.chemheritage.org/search), the CHF Website 


(http://www.chemheritage.org/discover/collections/search.aspx), and Flickr 


(https://www.flickr.com/photos/chemheritage/).   Ron pointed out that the idea going forward is to 


better manage CHF’s digital assets, to put some thought into what is digitized, and to systematize the 


process.  Good examples of how CHF might do that can be found on other institutions’ websites (we 


don’t have to reinvent the wheel) such as: 


 


a. The Ransom Center at the University of Texas uses CONTENTdm software to manage 


and provide access to its digital assets: http://hrc.contentdm.oclc.org. This is an 


example of a proprietary software system that works well for images but becomes a 


problem for when on has a great variety of digital objects in various formats. 


 


b. The American Philosophical Society has a digital library that is better suited to 


managing a wider variety of digital objects such as audio, video, and image files: 


http://www.amphilsoc.org/library/digcoll. This is an open source system, based on 


Islandora, which is likely the type of software CHF will invest in the future.  


 


Finally, Ron informed the Heritage Council that the CHF plan going forward is first to hire a Curator of 


Digital Collections who will bring some in-house expertise on managing digital assets to CHF. It is 


expected that this person will develop an understanding of the needs and processes of the various 


collecting groups at CHF, establish the new workflows and resources required for new systems, and then 


implement a digital system in-house.  After implementation (in early 2015), CHF will be on the road to 


begin the basic digitization processes required of a 21st-century collecting institution, to scale-up for 


major digitization projects, and to develop basic digital humanities tools. 


  


Oral Histories  
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David Caruso, Director of the Center for Oral History at CHF, gave the Heritage Council a presentation 


about the state of the art in collecting and preserving oral histories.  David outlined what an oral history 


is and is not, how CHF grows its collection of oral histories, current recording technologies, and the use 


of audio files and transcripts.  He followed this with a thorough review of the legal and ethical issues 


involved with oral histories and ended by pointing out the current thinking among oral historians about 


archival storage systems.  His slides are given as Attachment III to these minutes. 


 


Meet a CHF staffer 


 


 After a short break, the Heritage Council was given an opportunity to meet a relatively new CHF 


employee, Beth Alfaro, Human Resources Manager.  Beth presented some of her personal and 


professional background and outlined the responsibilities she has at CHF in this newly created position. 


 


BCHOC Scholarly Presentation:   


 


Finally, the Heritage Council heard from the current Herdegen Fellow at the Beckman Center for the 


History of Chemistry at CHF, Evan Hepler-Smith, who is currently a graduate student in the History of 


Science Program, Department of History, Princeton University.  His presentation was "The Structure of 


Compounds, the Function of Nomenclature, and the History of Chemical Information" and his slides are 


given as Attachment IV to these minutes. 


 


Other Business 


 


Jeff Seeman gave a short motivational talk to the Heritage Council, praising the group for their 


participation and enthusiasm, urging them to consider the many excellent suggestions offered by the 


candidates for Chair, wishing the new Chair well, and thanking the Heritage Council members for seven 


years of shared activities.  As there was no other business for the Heritage Council, the meeting 


concluded with a presentation of a certificate of appreciation to Jeff Seeman for his six years of service as 


Chair of the Heritage Council.  


 


 The Heritage Council meeting adjourned at 4:30pm.   


 


 


Planned Dates for Future Heritage Council meetings are: 


 


Wednesday, October 8, 2014 


Wednesday, May 13, 2015 
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Heritage Council of the Chemical Heritage Foundation 
Mission Statement 


 


The Heritage Council represents the broad community drawn from chemistry, chemical engineering and 


molecular sciences interested in chemical heritage.  The Council: 


 


• Supports and counsels the Chemical Heritage Foundation on its mission and ways to accomplish it;  


 


• Provides and enhances communication and collaboration between CHF and its Affiliated 


Organizations; 


 


• Encourages and coordinates volunteer activities to augment CHF staff in carrying out the work of CHF; 


and 


 


• Provides networking opportunities and discussion forums for key individuals in academe, government, 


and industry who are interested in the history, progress and future of the chemical and molecular 


sciences and related technologies. 


 


Adopted: 3 April 2008 


 






